
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

Notice is hereby given of a Board of 
Education meeting of School District No. 17, 
in the County of Douglas, which will be held 
at 6:00 p.m. on Monday, September 18, 
2017 at 5606 South 147th Street, Omaha, 
Nebraska. 

Agenda for such meeting, kept 
continuously current, is available for public 
inspection at the offtee of the superintendent 
at 5606 South 14 7th Street, Omaha, 
Nebraska. 

9·15-17 

Linda Poole 
Secretary 

THE DAILY RECORD 
OF OMAHA 

LYNDA K. HENNINGSEN, Publisher 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

Th~ S~ate of Nebraska, ss. 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, } 

D1str1ct of Nebr aska, 
County of Douglas, 

City of Omaha, 

J. BOYD 

b eing duly sworn, deposes and says that she is 

LEGAL EDITOR 

of THE DAILY RECORD, of Omaha, a legal newspaper, printed and 
published daily in the English language, having a bona fide paid 
circulation in Douglas County in excess of 300 copies, printed in 
Omaha, in said County of Douglas, for more than fifty-two weeks last 
past; that the printed notice hereto attached was published in THE 

DAILY RECORD, of Omaha, on---------------
September 15, 2017 

Publis her's Fee $ ___ _ 

Additional Copies $ ___ _ 

Total $16· 1 O 

'-----------day of 

-lll-*-------2J_7 -

tary Public in and for Douglas County, 
State of Nebraska 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT 

OF NOTICE OF MEETING 

The undersigned members of the Board of Education of Millard, District #017, Omaha, 

Nebraska, hereby acknowledge receipt of advance notice of a meeting of said Board of 

Education and the agenda for such meeting held at 6:00 P.M. on September 18, 2017, at the Don 

Stroh Administrative Center, 5606 South 147 Street, Omaha, NE 68137 

Dated this 18th day of September, 2017 

~~cketts 

~ A{b.i(l~ 
Amanda McGill J ~n 

Tatum Morris - MNHS Representative 



BOARD OF EDUCATION SIGN IN 

September 18, 2017 

NAME: 

C.orri& Fed v-bcd rC\ 

IZDLh-e\ S+ C>~~ '( 

µ\ &\\lorj \ci l\l,~ 

~~ \\ L \)Fe_-ffq 
1~woi~ O 

REPRESENTING: 

V 1 

~~p-k~-

I <'e Dd e.rs hf p Aca de rvy 
Co l 10JR of S+. /V1 Qr 

loUeoit <A ~y'\± Ma.I\./ 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION  
MEETING 

 

 

 

 

 
September 18, 2017 

 

1



  
   BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
OMAHA, NEBRASKA 

     
 BOARD MEETING                                  STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
 6:00 P.M.                                              5606 SOUTH 147 STREET 
                        September 18, 2017 
 
        

AGENDA 
 

 
A. Call to Order 

 
The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection. 

 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
C. Roll Call  

 
D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  

Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 
  E. Routine Matters 

1.   *Approval of Board of Education Minutes September 5, 2017 
2.     *Approval of Bills 
3.    *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 
4.  Summary of the Board Committee of the Whole Meeting – September 11, 2017 
 

F. Information Items 
1. Superintendent’s Comments 
2.    Board Comments/Announcements 
3. Report from Student Representatives 

 
G. Unfinished Business 

1. Second Reading and Approval of Policy 3718 – Support Services – Program-Beverages 
 

H. New Business  
1. Approval of Rule 3718.1 – Support Services – Program-Beverages 
2. *Reaffirm Policy 4115 – Human Resources – Access to Personnel Files 
3. *Reaffirm Rule 4115.1 – Human Resources – Access to Personnel Files 
4. *Reaffirm Policy 4215 – Human Resources – Summer School and Adult Education Teachers 
5. Approval of the Annual Cooperative Agreement for Dual Enrollment at the University of Nebraska at Omaha 
 (UNO) and the Millard Public Schools, 2017-2018 
6. Approval of the Learning Community Early Childhood/Buffett Institute Agreement 
7. Approval of the Poverty Plan for 2018-2019 School Year for State Aid 
8. Approval of the 2018-2019 Limited English Proficiency Plan 
  

I. Reports 
1. ACT Report - Graduating Class 2017 
2. Student Services Report 
   

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar   
       1.  Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 2, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
    2.  Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, October 9, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center 
  3.  NASB Area Membership Meeting on October 11, 2017 at Omaha Marriott (Regency). Sessions begin at 4:30 with 
    Dinner and Awards at 7:25 p.m.  

    4.  Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 16, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
    5.  Conferences – No School for Students – October 18-20, 2017 
    6.  Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 6, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
 

2



 
Board Meeting Agenda   
September 18, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
    7.  Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, November 13, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center 
    8.  Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 20, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
    9.  Thanksgiving Holiday - No School for Students and Staff - November 23-24, 2017  
 
 K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request 
   form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 
 L.    Adjournment:   

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may be 
deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

3



 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA  
 

BOARD MEETING                   STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
6:00 P.M.                                            5606 SOUTH 147 STREET 
                         September 18, 2017 
 
   

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 
 
 
A.  Call to Order 
 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection 
 

B.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C.  Roll Call 
 
D.   Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only. 
   Please make sure a request form is completed and given to the Board President prior to the meeting.   
 
*E.1. Motion by                    , seconded by __________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes from September 5, 2017. 
 (See enclosure.) 
 
*E.2. Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to approve the bills.  (See enclosure.) 
 
*E.3.  Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File (See enclosure.) 
 
*E4.  Summary of the Board Committee of the Whole Meeting – September 11, 2017 
 
F.1. Superintendent’s Comments 
  
F.2. Board Comments/Announcements  
 
F.3. Report from Student Representatives 
 
G.1. Second Reading by ___________.   Motion by ___________, seconded by ____________, to approve Policy 3718 – 
  Support Services – Program-Beverages (See enclosure) 
 
H.1. Motion by___________, seconded by ____________, to approve Rule 3718.1 – Support Services – Program-Beverages 
  (See enclosure) 
 
*H.2. Motion by___________, seconded by ____________, to reaffirm Policy 4115 – Human Resources – Access to Personnel 
  Files (See enclosure) 
 
*H.3. Motion by___________, seconded by ____________, to reaffirm Rule 4115.1 – Human Resources – Access to Personnel 
  Files (See enclosure) 
 
*H.4. Motion by___________, seconded by ____________, to reaffirm Policy 4215 – Human Resources – Summer School and 
  Adult Education Teachers (See enclosure) 
 
H.5. Motion by___________, seconded by ____________, that the Annual Cooperative Agreement for Dual Enrollment at the 
 University of Nebraska at Omaha (UNO) and the Millard Public Schools, 2017-2018 be approved and that the Associate 
 Superintendent for Educational Services be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to this 
 program. (See enclosure) 
 
H.6. Motion by___________, seconded by ____________, that the Board approve the Learning Community Early 
 Childhood/Buffett Institute Agreement and that the Associate Superintendent for Educational Services be authorized and 
 directed to execute all documents related to this program. (See enclosure) 
 



 
Board Meeting Agenda  
September 18, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
H.7. Motion by___________, seconded by ____________, to approve the 2018-2019 Poverty Plan as submitted. (See 
 enclosure) 
 
H.8. Motion by___________, seconded by ____________, to approve the 2018-2019 Limited English Proficiency Plan as 
 submitted. (See enclosure) 
 
I.   Reports 
   1.  ACT Report – Graduating Class 2017 
   2. Student Services Report 
     
J.  Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 
   1.  Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 2, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
   2.  Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, October 9, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
   3.  NASB Area Membership Meeting on October 11, 2017 at Omaha Marriott (Regency). Sessions begin at 4:30 with 
     Dinner and Awards at 7:25 p.m. 
   4.  Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 16, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
   5.  Conferences – No School for Students – October 18-20, 2017 
   6.  Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 6, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
   7.  Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, November 13, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
   8.  Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 20, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
   9.  Thanksgiving Holiday - No School for Students and Staff - November 23-24, 2017  
  
K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request 
 form is completed and given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 
L.    Adjournment    
 
 All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may be 

deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 

A meeting of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the State of Nebraska 
was convened in open and public session at 6:00 p.m., Monday, September 5, 2017, at the Don Stroh Administration 
Center, 5606 South 147th Street.   
  
Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, September 1, 2017; 
a copy of the publication is being attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the 
Board of Education and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these 
minutes.  Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education 
of this meeting.  All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance 
of the public. 
 
President Mike Kennedy announced that the open meeting laws are posted and available for public inspection and 
asked everyone to join in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll call was taken.  Mr. Pate, Mr. Ricketts, Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, and Mrs. McGill Johnson                    
were present. 

Mr. Kennedy said that since we have several speakers this evening, Dr. Sutfin will give his comments now, which 
may answer a few of their questions.   
 
Superintendent’s Comments:   
Last year in the Legislative Session, we were in a position where we could see our budget was going to be in a tough 
spot again.  We worked with a state senator to come forward with a bill that would have created a three cent override 
that a Board could have voted on. That bill would have been temporary.  The bill failed in the legislature after much 
public debate.  During that time of public debate, we heard statements telling us that we – the Board of Education and 
Administration – already have a tool in place to allow us to exceed the levy.  Millard could reach out to the community 
through a vote and ask for a levy override.  After hearing this information, the planning process began.   
 
Dr. Sutfin then presented a history of how MPS came to be in the budget situation we are in today and how we arrived 
at the recommendation we have before the Board this evening, with a request for approval of a levy override.  
 
Information Dr. Sutfin shared included results of parent surveys, MPS financial information from 2010-2017, changes 
in the state aid formula, and the MPS Budget Cuts from 2010-11 through 2016-17.  He also discussed the 2017 state 
aid changes, anticipated revenue and expenses, and the 2017 property valuations. Dr. Sutfin went on to address the 
budget cuts for the 2017-2018 school year, cost savings measures through the years, changing demographics and state 
aid, and comparisons in the 3 largest school districts in Nebraska.  He concluded with sharing cost per student, average 
daily membership and also the differences between a levy override and a bond issue. 
  
Mr. Kennedy announced the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  Mr. Kennedy 
received six requests to address the Board. Called to the podium to speak in this order were, Jessica Kutash of 4011 
S. 176 Circle, Kim Sosalla-Bahr of 2423 S. 148 Ave., Knut Haasch of 14405 Shirley Circle, Stacy Jolley of 1706 S. 
153 Ave. Circle, Renae Vermaas of 17660 Patrick Ave. and Julie Kolpin of 2406 S. 151 St.  All speakers spoke of 
their support and the need for a levy override.   
 
Mr. Kennedy recognized the Boy Scouts in the audience and asked that they stand and introduce themselves.  
 
Motion was made by Patrick Ricketts, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the Board of Education Minutes for 
August 21, 2017, approve the bills and receive the treasurer’s report and place on file.  Voting in favor of said 
Motion was:  Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mr. Ricketts, Mr. Kennedy and Mr. Anderson.  Voting 
against were: None.  Motion carried. 

6



Board of Education Minutes 
September 5, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
Board Comments:   
Amanda McGill Johnson:   
Mrs. McGill Johnson welcomed the new Student Representatives to the Board and said she is looking forward to 
getting to know them this year. 
 
Linda Poole:  
Mrs. Poole shared that one of the biggest decisions for the Millard Board of Education is before us and has the power 
to dramatically change the educational offerings that our community has valued over past years.  When she was elected 
to the Board twenty one years ago, she pledged that she would make decisions based on what was best for our students 
and community, while doing so in the most cost effective way. The Board has always been fiscally conservative and 
has been able to meet our budget which has not always been easy. There have been many challenges over the last five 
years.   
 
Mrs. Poole said as a district, since 2010, our expenses have increased, teaching positions and administrator positions 
have been cut while at the same time, student numbers have increased by over 1200 students.  As a Board and 
Administrative team, we have spent the last 5 years looking internally to find ways we could still deliver the world 
class education that our community has come to expect with the resources we have been dealt.  Through the selective 
abandonment process, we eliminated programs, academies, teacher leader positions, interventionists, and made 
changes to the transportation schedule just to name a few.  In order to meet this year’s budget, we will need to dip into 
our cash reserves in order to pay our bills and not further eliminate programs.   
 
We have kept the community informed and recently surveyed our community as to the quality of education they 
believe our students are receiving. Mrs. Poole also attended informative meetings the public was invited to attend and 
they reaffirmed that the community is happy with the educational programs that MPS offers and they want to ensure 
it continues.   
 
Mrs. Poole shared that MPS has been a leader in strategic planning.  She said last month we completed a five year 
major rewrite of our plan. One of the strategies that our planning committee came to consensus with was:  We will 
engage the Millard Educational Community to maximize resources in order to address our financial challenges and 
better achieve our mission and objectives.  Mrs. Poole stressed that the vote this evening is the first step in this process.  
She thanked everyone for allowing her to be their advocate for the last twenty one years. Mrs. Poole said it has been 
an honor to serve the Millard community and hopes that you will stand beside her in support of the levy override that 
she will be voting for tonight. 
 
Dave Anderson:   
Mr. Anderson said he would hold his comments on the levy override until the agenda item is reached.   
 
Mr. Anderson thanked the student representatives for serving on the Board and invited them to share their input at any 
time during the meetings. 
 
Patrick Ricketts: 
Mr. Ricketts also said he would reserve his comments until the levy override motion is reached on the agenda.   
 
Welcome to the new student representatives.  Mr. Ricketts said their thoughts and input are welcomed.     
 
Mike Pate:   
Mr. Pate said he would hold his comments on the levy override as well. 
 
 

7



Board of Education Minutes 
September 5, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 
Welcome to the student representatives and thank you for agreeing to serve on the Board.  He told the students that 
we welcome their comments and feedback on agenda items.  It is good to hear from a student’s perspective.   
 
Thank you to the community members that are here this evening and for sharing their input and supportive comments 
on this very important decision.  Mr. Pate said this in probably one of the most important decisions this School Board 
will make.  It is the future of our school programs.  Mr. Pate has been on the Board for 20 plus years and said he 
cannot think of one single item that has a greater impact then what we will discuss this evening.  It is preserving what 
has made Millard great over the years.   
 
Mike Kennedy:   
Mr. Kennedy said he will reserve his comments on the levy override until that portion of the meeting.   
 
To the student representatives, Mr. Kennedy said he welcomes hearing their comments concerning the happenings at 
their schools. 
 
Student Representatives: 
Tatum Morris, student representative from Millard North High School, Megan Willburn, student representative from 
Millard West High School, and Gabby Hogan student representative from Millard South High School, reported on the 
academic and athletic happenings at their respective schools. 
 
Unfinished Business:   
Linda Poole provided the Second Reading of Policy 4140.  Motion was made by Linda Poole, seconded by Dave 
Anderson, to approve Policy 4140 – Human Resources – Responsibilities and Duties.  Voting in favor of said motion 
was:  Mr. Ricketts, Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson and Mr. Pate. Voting against were:  
None.  Motion carried. 
 
Mike Pate provided the Second Reading of Policy 4171.  Motion was made by Mike Pate, seconded by Patrick 
Ricketts, to approve Policy 4171 – Human Resources – Reduction in Force – Non-Certificated Staff.  Voting in favor 
of said motion was:  Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mr. Ricketts, and Mr. Kennedy. 
Voting against were:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
New Business: 
Amanda McGill Johnson provided the first reading of Policy 3718 – Support Services – Program-Beverages. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Patrick Ricketts, to approve Rule 4140.1 – Human Resources – Responsibilities 
and Duties – Certificated. Voting in favor of said motion was:  Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mr. Ricketts, Mr. 
Kennedy, Mr. Anderson, and Mrs. Poole. Voting against were:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion was made by Patrick Ricketts, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve Rule 4140.2 – Human Resources – 
Responsibilities and Duties – Non-certified.  Voting in favor of said motion was:  Mr. Pate, Mr. Ricketts, Mr. Kennedy, 
Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, and Mrs. McGill Johnson. Voting against were:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve Rule 5100.9 – Student Services – Enrollment of 
Homeless Children and Youth Voting in favor of said motion was:   Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mr. 
Ricketts, Mr. Kennedy, and Mr. Anderson. Voting against were:  None.  Motion carried.  
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Linda Poole, that the FYE18 Budget be adopted as submitted in the Revised 
Budget Summary and that such document be incorporated herein in its entirety by this reference approve.  Voting in  
 

8



Board of Education Minutes 
September 5, 2017 
Page 4 
 
 
favor of said motion was: Mr. Ricketts, Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and Mr. Pate.  
Voting against were:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Dave Anderson, that approval be given to the Resolution Regarding FYE18 
Property Tax Requests as submitted and that such resolution be incorporated in its entirety into this motion. Voting in 
favor of said motion was: Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mr. Ricketts, and Mr. Kennedy.  
Voting against were:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Linda Poole, that the resolution calling for an election to exceed the statutory limits 
on the District’s Property Tax Levy Authority and Budget of Expenditures be adopted as submitted. 
   
Mr. Kennedy shared that in 2001 he was encouraged to run for the Millard Board of Education because he cared 
deeply about education. He said he didn’t realize how rewarding it would be to serve on the Board and serve the 
community. Mr. Kennedy said that Mike Pate and Linda Poole deserve much praise for their twenty plus years of 
service.  He said he serves on a fiscally conservative Board.  In the last six years, we have faced tremendous obstacles 
dealing with our tax base and with state aid.  We have gotten along by making small cuts.  Now there is nothing left 
to cut.  The governor, despite a down turn in the agricultural economy, found two percent funding to put into the state 
aid formula. Millard still took a cut.  Mr. Kennedy said he doesn’t know how you can grow 1200 students, thousands 
of poverty students and have the same number of state aid dollars that we received back in 2009-2010.  Over the last 
several years, we have created an A.P. culture, International Baccalaureate, Early College and several other 
wonderful programs.  We want our students to be college and career ready for the 21st Century.  These are our students 
and we want them to succeed.  They are our future.  We are going to take this to the vote of the people.  If the Millard 
community says “thumbs up”, great, we will proceed.  If the state of Nebraska and the assessor’s office are able to 
come in and help in other areas, then we will do what Millard has always done.  We will adjust the property tax levy 
accordingly.  
 
Pat Ricketts added that he is a graduate of Millard.  His family moved to Kansas and made a decision to attend private 
schools because the public schools were not as strong as the ones they left.  We moved back to Omaha and chose to 
attend Millard again instead of continuing with private schooling.  Mr. Ricketts said in his career he gets the chance 
to work with families moving to Omaha and asks them what they like about the state.  They usually say affordable 
housing and strong schools, the down side is property taxes.  He said in Millard, we have programs of choice and that 
is now what we are giving the voters.  We are giving them a choice – are these programs valuable to them? Mr. 
Ricketts said he has been on the Board for seven years and during that time, they have always taken the common sense 
approach.  We have self-funded health insurance. Since 2014 we have done strategic reduction. We took the common 
sense approach to refinancing bonds, saving the district $12 million in interest by taking advantage of the low interest 
rate environment.  Mr. Ricketts stated he is a big advocate for leveraging technology in the classroom.  We went 
outside the district and found a partner in the Millard Foundation.  In the future, this technology is a cost savings 
technique and at the same time, it delivers 21st century results.  Mr. Ricketts shared that the Board has always been 
fiscally conservative and we will continue to take that approach by asking the voters, giving them the choice to further 
programs in MPS.  He said, “I will be voting for the levy override”. 
 
Mike Pate said this is a huge and important issue.  There aren’t many school districts that are put in the position to 
go to the voters and ask for additional money.  We don’t take this decision lightly.  This Board thinks things through 
very well and look at things from all angles.  Communities are often defined by the school districts.  Millard has 
defined itself over the years.  When taking a look at Millard’s rich tradition and history, much of it has to do with the 
schools and what we have been able to accomplish as a school district.  When parents talk about the research they 
have done before moving, they define Millard by the quality of education.  There are some people that believe all 
school districts should be alike.  Our Millard community has told us what they expect in their schools, which is high  
 

9



Board of Education Minutes 
September 5, 2017 
Page 5 
 
 
expectations. We also want that.  In Millard, we have raised the bar and exceeded expectations.  He does not look at 
this issue as a cost or expense.  It is preserving and continuing programs of excellence which have made Millard so 
great over the last several years. Three quality indicators as Dr. Sutfin mentioned earlier, gave Millard success over 
the years:  Small Class Size, Advanced Degrees, and Instructional Time.  All are very important for what we have 
been trying to do in Millard.  That funding has been taken away from us.  I think this Board is committed to the levy 
override.  I think the people that have come to our meetings have been very supportive.  Mr. Pate said I appreciate 
the administration’s work on this. I appreciate the community for being here and I’m going to vote for the levy 
override. 
  
Amanda McGill Johnson said we have heard from great speakers tonight.  Dr. Sutfin with his details of the budget 
and parents who shared their experiences.  Thank you.  We have heard from most of the Board members.  I am new. 
They have had to slowly make decisions on difficult cuts.  We are at the cross-roads now, where we need to continue 
to cut, but the cuts will have direct implications for our students and families.  We shouldn’t make this decision on our 
own.  Including our community in the decision on whether or not to keep cutting is the responsible thing to do which 
is why I am supporting putting a levy override before the voters.  In Millard, we are proud of our schools, our teachers, 
and we are especially proud of our students. We are proud of our programs, our AP Culture, and we are proud of all 
of our different learning opportunities.  Mrs. McGill Johnson said she is just starting her family and ha a six month 
old son.  As a Millard grad, I chose to come back to Millard because I want my children in this district.  I found out 
when I came back that Millard is even better then when I left.  If we don’t raise our levy, fundamental changes will be 
made.  I look forward to the dialog with the community over the next couple of months and it is my hope that voters 
will choose to invest in excellence.  Together we will decide the future of our district and the future of our students. 
 
Dave Anderson commented that we have worked hard for a long time on this issue. Dr. Sutfin has shared what has 
happened financially from 2009-10 until now. If you look at the charts, they tell the story.  It is important now for the 
community to tell us or reaffirm what is important to them.  There is a fraction of folks that would say, “Why should 
Millard be different than other districts?” The answer is, for years we have taken great pride in being different.  We 
have offered extreme diverse opportunities for our kids and their families.  There is a lot of choice for programs and 
these are programs that work.  People say that we should offer basic education without all the diverse programs 
because those programs cost money.  The AP and IB culture take highly qualified teachers to be able to teach those 
courses.  That is one of the items in the state aid formula that hurt us.  We had a high proponent through the Strategic 
Planning process, of building an AP and IB culture.  Mr. Anderson said if you look at the stats of where that culture 
sits today, it is phenomenal. We have always voted on bonds, but those are for infrastructure, for buildings for growth.  
Our growth has slowed down. We have made cuts, but now we are at the point where we have to look at cutting 
significant programs.  Programs that make Millard, Millard.  That takes a levy override to be able to fund those 
programs.  The large percentage of our budget is people.  This means, people who run our programs. Millard has the 
best people and I am proud of that fact.  Mr. Anderson said I’m very confidant of the decisions that we collectively 
have made over the last number of years.  I think we have given great value back to the community.  It’s interesting 
that no one came tonight to speak against the levy override.  I am happy we are asking the voters of our community 
to let us know what is important.  We will let our community speak and find out what the vote is.  We are hopeful that 
the vote will be positive.  If it is not, we will adjust. 
Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mr. Ricketts, Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Anderson, and 
Mrs. Poole.  Voting against were:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the use of Local Substitutes for the 2017-2018 school 
year.  Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Pate, Mr. Ricketts, Mr. Kennedy, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, and Mrs. 
McGill Johnson.  Voting against were:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve Personnel Actions:  Resignation:  Anne M. Oeth; 
Recommended for Hire:  Sommer R. Ruhland; Contract Addendum:  Anne C. Keith.  Voting in favor of said  

10



Board of Education Minutes 
September 5, 2017 
Page6 

motion was: Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mr. Ricketts, Mr. Kennedy, and Mr. Anderson. Voting 
against were: None. Motion carried. 

Reports: 
Enrollment Report: 

Dr. Kelberlau gave the beginning of the year enrollment report for Millard Public Schools. The PK- 12 enrollment as 
of Friday, August 25 is 24,002 students. This number is 150 students up from the same time last year. The official 
enrollment numbers with the Nebraska Department of Education are pulled on the last Friday of September. Dr. 
Kelberlau said he will bring that report to the Board at the first meeting in November. 

Mr. Kennedy reminded the Board of future agenda items and said this is the proper time for public questions and 
comments. There were no requests to speak. 

Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar: 
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, September 11, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center 
2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, September 18, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center 
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 2, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
4. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, October 9, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center 
5. NASB Area Membership Meeting on October 11 , 2017 (more information to come) 

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 16, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
7. Conferences - No School for Students - October 18-20, 2017 
8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 6, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
9. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, November 13, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center 
IO. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 20, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center 
11. Thanksgiving Holiday - No School for Students and Staff - November 23-24, 2017 

~po-o-fg 
Secretary, Linda Poole 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Millard Public Schools 
 

September 18, 2017 
 
 

12



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Sep 18, 2017

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 444600  08/31/2017 011651  AMERICAN EXPRESS                   $1,824.39

444601  08/31/2017 135863  RUDOLPH A VLCEK III                $120.00

444602  09/07/2017 102451  INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE        $1,488.00

444603  09/07/2017 136955  NEBRASKA INTERNATL LANGUAGES ASSN  $90.00

444605  09/07/2017 140448  W2007 MVP DENVER LLC               $485.39

444614  09/18/2017 019111  BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT          $36,354.48

444615  09/18/2017 099220  DICK BLICK CO                      $44.77

444616  09/18/2017 133589  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.               $252.00

444617  09/18/2017 047802  MID-PLAINS HOSPITALITY GROUP INC   $329.75

444618  09/18/2017 026057  CONTROL MASTERS INC                $58,385.00

444620  09/18/2017 106893  WICHITA WATER CONDITIONING INC     $30.04

444621  09/18/2017 133009  ROBERTA E DEREMER                  $54.98

444622  09/18/2017 132532  DAYNA C DERICHS                    $275.00

444623  09/18/2017 036652  EBSCO                              $250.02

444624  09/18/2017 130245  MICHAEL S EDMUNDSON                $370.84

444625  09/18/2017 037525  EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3        $35.00

444627  09/18/2017 140841  KELLY A GALLEGOS                   $21.34

444628  09/18/2017 141939  KATIE J GARCIA                     $87.96

444631  09/18/2017 132152  GOVCONNECTION INC                  $81.84

444632  09/18/2017 141335  PAUL J GRANT                       $30.50

444633  09/18/2017 141925  WILLIAM B GRIFFIN                  $27.11

444634  09/18/2017 132489  CHARLES E HAYES III                $24.15

444635  09/18/2017 099759  HOLIDAY INN OF KEARNEY             $109.95

444637  09/18/2017 141940  RACHEL A JOHNSON                   $150.00

444638  09/18/2017 140457  KATHLEEN A JOHNSON                 $20.37

444640  09/18/2017 138056  COLLEEN M KILLEEN                  $27.32

444642  09/18/2017 063349  MCGRAW-HILL COMPANIES              $0.00

444643  09/18/2017 140110  MCGRAW-HILL EDUCATION INC          $87.85

Sep 13, 2017 1

13



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Sep 18, 2017

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 444644  09/18/2017 102560  MEDCO SUPPLY COMPANY               $327.21

444645  09/18/2017 106393  WALTER B MERTZ                     $160.32

444647  09/18/2017 099928  NATIONAL SPEECH & DEBATE ASSN/NFL  $129.00

444648  09/18/2017 068334  NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC            $345.30

444649  09/18/2017 068415  NEBRASKA COUNCIL SCHOOL ADMINSTR   $0.00

444650  09/18/2017 141492  NEBRASKA FCCLA ASSOCIATION         $20.00

444651  09/18/2017 141492  NEBRASKA FCCLA ASSOCIATION         $10.00

444653  09/18/2017 141941  LAUREN C NEHE                      $100.00

444654  09/18/2017 070810  OMAHA PUBLIC SCHOOLS               $150.00

444656  09/18/2017 138288  PAPIO TRANSPORT SCHOOL SERVICE INC $8,060.00

444658  09/18/2017 131835  PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP            $12,221.77

444659  09/18/2017 137779  JARDINE QUALITY IRRIGATION INC     $218.11

444660  09/18/2017 139827  MATTHEW J SCOTT                    $13.18

444661  09/18/2017 131887  SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC.              $345.00

444662  09/18/2017 141942  BOBBI J SINGER                     $107.57

444663  09/18/2017 136137  JULIA C SINIARD                    $150.00

444664  09/18/2017 140079  KELLEY B STABER                    $143.04

444666  09/18/2017 133969  TENNANT SALES & SERVICE COMPANY    $4,938.14

444667  09/18/2017 131446  TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES         $0.00

444668  09/18/2017 131446  TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES         $79.50

444670  09/18/2017 090242  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE              $144.00

444672  09/18/2017 140110  MCGRAW-HILL EDUCATION INC          $290.75

444673  09/18/2017 068415  NEBRASKA COUNCIL SCHOOL ADMINSTR   $1,160.00

444674  09/18/2017 131446  TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES         $76.67

01 - Total $130,247.61

02 25932   09/18/2017 141943  ASHLEIGH RENEE BOBO                $65.25

25933   09/18/2017 106893  WICHITA WATER CONDITIONING INC     $4.66

25934   09/18/2017 141507  JAMIE MITCHELL CZARNEK             $18.13

Sep 13, 2017 2

14



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Sep 18, 2017

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

02 25935   09/18/2017 141921  JARED M ENGEL                      $54.38

25936   09/18/2017 141508  HAKEEM K FERGUSON                  $36.25

25937   09/18/2017 141516  KAREEM K FERGUSON                  $21.75

25938   09/18/2017 130966  CHRISTINE K GOODMAN                $47.07

25939   09/18/2017 010670  GOODWIN TUCKER GROUP               $302.36

25940   09/18/2017 140909  ALISON ANN GRUHN                   $65.25

25941   09/18/2017 141938  HUNTER STORM HOUSTON               $10.88

25942   09/18/2017 141197  DANA LUCIA JOHNSON                 $87.00

25943   09/18/2017 136279  MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL CLEARING ACCT $1,059.63

25944   09/18/2017 140917  JENNIFER R PARKER                  $10.88

25945   09/18/2017 141506  CODY J RANDELS                     $87.00

25946   09/18/2017 141587  CAMERYN SETH ROSE                  $87.00

25947   09/18/2017 141198  TONY THOMPSON                      $87.00

25948   09/18/2017 131241  MARCIA L WILLIAMS                  $28.57

02 - Total $2,073.06

06 444613  09/18/2017 013226  LATIMER ASSOCIATES INC             $90.00

444669  09/18/2017 141772  TRED-MARK FINANCIAL INC            $38,910.56

06 - Total $39,000.56

07 444619  09/18/2017 132170  CORMACI CONSTRUCTION INC           $5,503.00

07 - Total $5,503.00

11 444619  09/18/2017 132170  CORMACI CONSTRUCTION INC           $1,988.00

444636  09/18/2017 107039  SHARON KIM H JOHANSEN              $16.36

444641  09/18/2017 140988  KELLY K LAWRENCE                   $30.24

444646  09/18/2017 132412  SANDRA R MILLER                    $20.85

444652  09/18/2017 068684  NEBRASKA SCIENTIFIC                $1,238.90

444657  09/18/2017 138266  DEBRA L POWELL                     $31.56

11 - Total $3,325.91

17 444626  09/18/2017 041100  FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC       $6.84

Sep 13, 2017 3

15



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Sep 18, 2017

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

17 444630  09/18/2017 044891  GOPHER                             $11,710.83

17 - Total $11,717.67

50 444604  09/07/2017 140950  STACY E PAYDO                      $1,500.00

444639  09/18/2017 138351  JOHN E KENNEDY                     $80.00

444655  09/18/2017 140426  DANIEL RAY SAPP                    $4,500.00

444671  09/18/2017 092323  VIRCO INC                          $6,668.09

50 - Total $12,748.09

99 444604  09/07/2017 140950  STACY E PAYDO                      ($60.00)

444655  09/18/2017 140426  DANIEL RAY SAPP                    ($180.00)

99 - Total ($240.00)

Overall - Total $204,375.90

Sep 13, 2017 4

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 11, 2017 

The members of the Board of Education met as a Committee of the Whole on Monday, September 11, 2017 at the 
Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street. 

Vice President, Dave Anderson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Mr. Anderson announced that the open 
meeting laws are posted and available for public inspection and it is now the proper time for public questions and 
comments. There were none. 

Board members present were Dave Anderson, Mike Kennedy, Patrick Rickets, Mike Pate, and Amanda McGill 
Johnson. Dave Anderson said that Linda Poole would be arriving a few minutes late to the meeting. Mrs. Poole 
arrived to the meeting at 6:05 p.m. 

2018 Summer Project Requests 

Dr. Sutfin said that we are bumping up our deadline for getting projects ready to go for the summer. 

Ed Rockwell shared the District Facilities current Summary of Statistics. He said our total number of facilities is 38 
and the average age of the facilities in 35 years. The total value of the facilities is at $504,621,934. This number 
comes from Harry Koch's annual adjustment of our property schedule and reflects the value of our facilities without 
contents and without land. Mr. Rockwell also shared facility values and capital spending numbers. 

Mr. Rockwell reported on the following list of2018 summer projects. 

Roofing projects this year consist of finishing Norris Elementary, starting a new phase of the Central Middle School 
Annex, and the last planned phases at the Millard North and Millard South High Schools. 

Exterior Renovations include replacing the dear soffit at Morton Elementary replacing the skylights at Rockwell 
Elementary. 

Doors-Frames-Hardware include replacing exterior doors district-wide and replacing the interior doors at Beadle 
Middle School. 

Mr. Rockwell reported that there is only one Flooring project on the summer projects list. Morton Elementary carpet 
has been in place since 1998 and is badly showing the wear. 

P.E. and Athletics has a list of projects that will be bid on. Mr. Rockwell shared that the manual/retractable goals are 
going to be replaced with motorized goals at Andersen and Kiewit Middle Schools. Beadle Middle School track 
replacement is the single largest project on the list this year. Three gym floors will be refinished. They include North 
Middle School and two floors at North High School. Mr. Rockwell said track resurfacing at Millard South High 
School has been held off for a couple of years and we need to get this job done. Gym bleacher railing upgrades will 
take place at Andersen and Kiewit Middle Schools and North High School. 

In the area of Electrical and Mechanical, the Montclair Elementary fire detection needs a complete system 
replacement. The West High School fire detection project needs replacement also but will be handled in two phases. 
The first phase has an estimated cost of$300,000. The Chiller at Montclair and the West High School pool air handler 
also will be replaced. 

Special Systems has only one project which is new intercom system replacement at Rohwer Elementary. 

Paving and Concrete projects include the hard surface play area replacement at Black Elk. At North High School, the 
Northeast lot is being reconfigured because of the street widening projects in the area. Also at North High School, we 



Committee of the Whole Minutes 
September 11 , 2017 
Page2 

will be working on Phase I of the southwest asphalt lot. Mr. Rockwell said at West High School it was necessary to 
defter Phase I of the First Fifty Feet improvement. We will be doing I and II of the III Phases. 

Mr. Rockwell shared that last year they went out early and the bids came in low on most projects. They plan to do 
the same again this year in hopes there will be money left after bids and awards. If this is the case, the money will go 
toward re-lighting the high school gyms that have done been done yet. 

The all-in budget target for 2018 is $5,800,000. Mr. Rockwell provided a list of reserve projects if bids and awards 
allow. 

Mr. Anderson said this is the time for public questions or comments on any topic. There were no requests. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:35 pm. 

2/~ 
Chairman 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Board Policy: Support Services – Food Service 3718 – Program – Beverages 
 
Meeting Date: September 18, 2017 
 
Department Support Services – Food Service 
 
Title and Brief  
Description: Approval of Policy 3718 – Support Services – Food Service – Program – 

Beverages 
              
 
Action Desired: Approve 
 
 
Background: Following District guidelines to review Policies and Rules every seven years.  

Changes made to the Policy to reflect updated reference to applicable law.  The 
first reading of the draft changes were at the September 5, 2017 Board of Education 
meeting.   

 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: Delete or revise 
 
Recommendations: Approval. 
 
 
Strategic Plan 
Reference: N/A 
 
Implications of 
Adoption/Rejection: N/A 
 
Timeline:  N/A 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 
   
 
 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 
 

94

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



Support Services – Food Service 
 
Program – Beverages  3718 
 
All beverages sold in the school buildings in the District shall comply with the beverage policy stated in the May 3, 
2006 Memorandum of Understanding agreed to by and among the Alliance for a Healthier Generation, the American 
Beverage Association, Cadbury Schweppes Americas Beverages, the Coca-Cola Company, and PepsiCo, Inc. 
 nutrition standards for all foods sold in school required by the Healthy, Hunger Free Kids Act. 
 
Related Policies & Rules: 3718.1 
 
Adopted: July 9, 2007  
Revised: September 18, 2017 Millard Public Schools 
 Omaha, NE 
 
 

95



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item: Board Rule: Support Services – Food Service 3718.1 – Program 

– Beverages 
 
Meeting Date: September 18, 2017 

 
Department Support Services – Food Service 

 
Title and Brief 
Description: Approval of Board Rule Support Services – Food Service 
 3718.1 – Program – Beverages. 

 
Action Desired: Approval 

 
Background: Following District guidelines to review Policies and Rules 

every seven years, this Rule has suggested amendments to 
conform to current regulations. 

 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: Delete or revise 

 
Recommendations: Approval. 

 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 

 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:     

96

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



Support Services – Food Service 
 
Program – Beverages  3718.1 
 
I. The following beverage offerings comply with the beverage policy stated in the May 3, 2007 Memorandum 

of Understanding agreed to by and among the Alliance for a Healthier Generation, the American Beverage 
Association, Cadbury Schweppes Americas Beverages, the Coca-Cola Company, and PepsiCo, Inc.  
nutrition standards for all foods sold in school required by the Healthy, Hunger Free Kids Act and may be 
sold in the District’s schools: 

 
A. Elementary Schools 
 

1. Water- Plain, with or without carbonation; any size 
 

2. ≤8 oz. servings of milk and 100% juice  
 
a. Fat free or low fat milkSkim, flavored skim, 1% unflavored and nutritionally equivalent (per 

USDA) milk alternatives 
 

Fat free or low fat nutritionally equivalent flavored milk with ≤150 cal/8oz. 
 

b. 100% fruit or vegetable juice, with or without carbonation no added sweeteners with ≤120 cal/8oz 
and ≥10% DV for ≥3 micronutrients 

b.c. 100% fruit or vegetable juice diluted with water, with or without carbonation and no added 
sweeteners 

 
B. Middle Schools 

 
1. Water- Plain, with or without carbonation; any size 

 
2. ≤102 oz. servings of milk and 100% juice 

 
a. Fat free or low fat milk Skim, flavored skim, 1% unflavored and nutritionally equivalent (per 

USDA) milk alternatives 
a.b.  

 
Fat free or low fat nutritionally equivalent flavored milk with ≤150 cal/8oz. 
 
b. 100% fruit or vegetable juice with or without carbonation  no added sweeteners with ≤120 

cal/8oz and ≥10% DV for ≥3 micronutrients 
c. 100% fruit or vegetable juice diluted with water, with or without carbonation and no added 

sweeteners 
 

 
C. High Schools 

 
1. Water- Plain, with or without carbonation; any size 

 
2. No calorie orand low calorie beverages with or without caffeine and/or carbonation; calorie free, 

flavored water ≤10 cal/8oz (e.g., diet sodas, unsweetened or diet teas, low calorie sports drinks, fitness 
waters, flavored waters, and seltzers) 
a. ≤ 12 fl oz. “lower calorie” maximum 40 cal/8 fl oz.  Maximum 60 cal/12 fl oz. 
a.b. ≤ 20 fl oz. “no calorie” less than 5 cal/8 fl oz…Maximum 10 cal/20 fl oz. 

 

97



2.3. ≤12 oz. servings of milk, light juice,milk and 100  juicejuice, and sports drinks 
 
a. Fat free or low fat milk Skim, flavored sim 1% unflavored and nutritionally equivalent (per 

USDA) milk alternatives 
 

b. Fat free or low fat nutritionally equivalent flavored milk with ≤150 cal/8oz. 
 

c. 100% fruit or vegetable juice with or without carbonation and no added sweeteners with ≤120 
cal/8oz and ≥10% DV for ≥3 micronutrients 

d. 100% fruit or vegetable juice diluted with water, with or without carbonation and no added 
sweeteners 
 
 

c. Light juices and sports drinks with ≤66 cal/8oz. 
≥50% of the beverages offered must be water and no or low calorie options (≤10 cal/8oz) 
 

II. The above requirements apply to beverages sold on school grounds during the regular day as defined by the 
USDA. and extended school day when events are primarily under the control of the school or third parties 
on behalf of the school. The extended school day shall include the time before or after the official school 
day that includes student activities such as clubs, yearbook, band and choir practice, student government, 
drama, and childcare/latchkey programs. 
 

III. The above requirements do not apply to school-related events where parents and other adults are a 
significant part of an audience. This exclusion applies to the selling of beverages immediately before, 
during, and immediately after such school-related events. 
 

Related Policies & Rules:  3718 
 
Adopted: July 9, 2007  
 
Revised: September 18, 2017 Millard Public Schools 
 Omaha, NE 
 

98



 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Board Policy 4115 - Human Resources – Access to Personnel 
Files 

  
Meeting Date: September 18, 2017 
 
Department Human Resources 
 
Title and Brief 
Description: Reaffirm Board Policy 4115 – Human Resources – Access to 

Personnel Files 
 
Action Desired: Reaffirm 
 
Background: Following District guidelines to review Policies/Rules every 

seven years, no changes are proposed to this Rule.  This Rule 
has been reviewed by the District’s legal counsel.   

 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: Leave unchanged, delete, or revise 
 
Recommendations: Reaffirm 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Kevin Chick, Mitch Mollring 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 
 
  
 

99

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



Human Resources 
 
Access to Personnel Files   4115 
 
Upon request, any employee shall have access to his/her personnel file, and shall have the right to attach a written 
response to any item in such file.  The employee may, in writing, authorize any other person to have access to such 
file, which authorization shall be honored by the District.  Such access and right to attach a written response shall not 
be granted with respect to any letters of recommendation solicited by the District which appear in the personnel file. 
 
No other person except school officials engaged in their professional duties shall be granted access to such file and 
the contents thereof shall not be divulged in any manner to any unauthorized person. 
 
The District shall adopt measures necessary to ensure that the confidentiality of said personnel files shall be 
maintained as required by applicable law. 
 
Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-539; 79-8,109 
 
 
Policy Adopted:  June 5, 1978 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  March 16, 1992; December 21, 1998 Omaha, NE 
Reaffirmed: February 21, 2005; November 21, 2011; September 18, 2017 
 
 

100



 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Board Rule 4115.1 - Human Resources –Access to Personnel 
Files 

  
Meeting Date: September 18, 2017 
 
Department Human Resources 
 
Title and Brief 
Description: Reaffirm Board Rule 4115.1 – Human Resources – Access to 

Personnel Files 
 
Action Desired: Reaffirm 
 
Background: Following District guidelines to review Policies/Rules every 

seven years, no changes are proposed to this Rule.  This Rule 
has been reviewed by the District’s legal counsel.   

 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: Leave unchanged, delete, or revise 
 
Recommendations: Reaffirm 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Kevin Chick, Mitch Mollring 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 
 
  
 

101

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



Human Resources 
 
Access to Personnel Files   4115.1 
 
Employees shall have access to their personnel file provided however, that a written request for access is made to the 
Human Resources Office.  An authorized representative of the employee shall also have access to the employee’s 
personnel file, provided, however, that the authorized representative shall have written authorization permitting 
him/her to have access to the personnel file and, provided further, that the District, its officers, and employees are 
relieved of any liability in the event that the authorized representative discloses the contents of the personnel file to 
any unauthorized source. 
 
Within five working days of the receipt of the request for access, the Human Resources Office shall advise the 
person making the request of the time and place where he/she can have access to the personnel file. 
 
During the regular work day and at a place selected by the Human Resources Office, the person making the request 
shall be permitted to examine all documents in the personnel file except those items which are prohibited by law 
from being disclosed.  A representative from the Human Resources Office shall be present during the examination. 
 
If a person elects to attach a written response to any item in such file, he/she shall present it to the representative of 
the Human Resources Office who shall thereupon attach it to the file in a manner which prevents defacing, 
obliteration or damage to the contents of the personnel file. 
 
Such access and right to attach a written response shall not be granted with respect to any letters of recommendation 
solicited by the District which appear in the personnel file. 
 
No person shall be allowed to remove, copy or reproduce any material in his/her personnel file except and only to the 
extent that he/she is permitted by order of a court of competent jurisdiction, or is permitted to by law. 
 
No other persons except school officials engaged in their professional duties shall be granted access to such file and 
the contents thereof shall not be divulged in any manner to any unauthorized person. 
 
Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-539, 79-8,109 
 
 
Rule Approved:  June 5, 1978 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  April 6, 1992; December 21, 1998; February 21, 2005; November 21, 2011 Omaha, NE 
Reaffirmed: September 18, 2017 
 

102



 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Board Rule 4215 - Human Resources –Summer School and 
Adult Education Teachers 

  
Meeting Date: September 18, 2017 
 
Department Human Resources 
 
Title and Brief 
Description: Reaffirm Board Rule 4215 – Human Resources – Summer 

School and Adult Education Teachers 
 
Action Desired: Reaffirm 
 
Background: Following District guidelines to review Policies/Rules every 

seven years, no changes are proposed to this Rule.  This Rule 
has been reviewed by the District’s legal counsel.   

 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: Leave unchanged, delete, or revise 
 
Recommendations: Reaffirm 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Kevin Chick, Mitch Mollring 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 
 
  
 

103

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



Human Resources 
 
Summer School and Adult Education Teachers   4215 
 
Teachers under contract with the District will be given first consideration for positions in summer school and adult 
education programs.  Teachers in these programs will receive remuneration for their services in addition to regular 
salaries. 
 
 
Policy Adopted: October 7, 1974 Millard Public Schools 
Reviewed: February 17, 1997 Omaha, NE 
Revised: June 2, 2003, September 7, 2010 
Reaffirmed: September 18, 2017 
 

104



 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 

 
 

MEETING DATE: 

DEPARTMENT: 

TITLE AND BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: 

 
 
ACTION DESIRED: 

BACKGROUND: 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 
 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: 

 
TIMELINE: 

 
RESPONSIBLE 
PERSONS: 

Approval of the Annual Cooperative Agreement for Dual Enrollment at 
the University of Nebraska at Omaha (UNO) and the Millard Public 
Schools, 2017-2018 
 
September 18, 2017   

Educational Services 

 
Annual Cooperative Agreement for Dual Enrollment at the University of 
Nebraska at Omaha (UNO) and the Millard Public Schools, 2017-2018 

 
Approval 

 
The Dual Enrollment Program with the University of Nebraska at 
Omaha and the Millard Public Schools has a long and successful 
history. This agreement has been requested by UNO to formalize 
the relationship and is based on current practices. 

 

It is recommended that the Annual Cooperative Agreement for Dual 
Enrollment at the University of Nebraska at Omaha (UNO) and the 
Millard Public Schools, 2017-2018 be approved and that the Associate 
Superintendent for Educational Services be authorized and directed to 
execute any and all documents related to this program. 

 
 
N/A 

 
2017-2018 School Year 

 
 
Dr. Heather Phipps, Dr. Tony Weers, Barb Waller 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 
SIGNATURE: 

105

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



106



c. Students shall submit a Dual Enrollment application each semester he/she wishes to

participate in the Dual Enrollment Program and receive credit.

d. Enrollment is handled exclusively through the UN O's Office of General Education and

Dual Enrollment at UNO.

e. Students are held to the same standards and deadlines as all other students taking courses

at UNO.

6. Withdrawing

a. Students are not allowed to withdraw beyond the withdrawal deadlines listed on the dual

enrollment website: http://dualenroll.unomaha.edu

b. Students are obligated to pay the $250 course fee even if they choose to withdraw from

the course.

c. Students are responsible to notify UN O's Office of General Education and Dual

Enrollment if they plan on withdrawing from a dual enrollment course, high school

course or are changing high schools.

d. Millard Public School staff members or parents/guardians cannot withdraw the student

from a dual enrollment course at UNO as they are not eligible to do so.

7. Financial Provisions/Fees

The fee charged by UNO for students enrolled in the UNO Dual Enrollment Program will be as

follows, or as further detailed in an amendment(s), attached hereto, and updated annually or as fee

changes:

a. Students will be charged $250 per UNO course. This charge is subject to change.

b. It is the student'.s responsibility to apply for any scholarships that are offered to cover the

cost of UNO Dual Enrollment.

c. Once the application is submitted, the student is obligated to pay the $250 fee. No part of

the fee is refundable.

t. Bills will be generated by UNO Cashiering/Student Accounts on the last working

day of each month and mailed to the students.

11. Late fees will be assessed in accordance with UNO policies.

111. Students may contact UNO's Cashiering/Student Accounts office to set up a

three-month payment plan each semester.

1v. Collection placement may also be placed in accordance with UNO policies. 

d. Third Party Billing Procedures

1. Millard Public Schools must contact UNO"s Office of General Education and

Dual Enrollment to set up third party billing each semester. A third party

agreement will be sent out to complete.

ii. Third party agreements are due to UNO's Office of General Education and Dual

Enrollment at UNO within 30 days after the start of the term.

111. Invoicing can take 30-45 days to process and return to Millard Public Schools for

payment.

8. Dual Enrollment High School Faculty Requirements

a. Millard Public School faculty must meet the minimum qualifications for faculty at UNO.

1. All requirements are set by UNO and its departments in accordance with

guidelines and direction articulated by the appropriate accrediting bodies.

107



108



109



• 'I' 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, UNO and Millard Public Schools have duly executed and delivered this 

Agreement as of the date first written above. 

THE BOARD OF REGENTS OF 

THE UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA 

Kelly Malone 

Asst. Director, General Education and Dual Enrollment 

University of Nebraska at Omaha 

Dr. Matt Tracy 

Director, General Education and Dual Enrollment 

University of Nebraska at Omaha 

Dr. BJ Reed 

Sr. Vice Chancellor for Academic & Student Affairs 

University of Nebraska at Omaha 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Dr. Heather Phipps 

Assoc. Superintendent Educational Services 

Millard Public Schools 

Dr. James Sutfin 

Superintendent 

Millard Public Schools 

110



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Learning Community Early Childhood/Buffett Institute Agreement 
 
Meeting Date: September 18, 2017 
 
Department: Educational Services 
 
Title and Brief  
Description: Learning Community Early Childhood/Buffett Institute Agreement 
 
Action Desired: _X_ Approval  
 
Background:   Cody and Sandoz Elementary will continue to serve as full 
implementation sites of the birth-third grade approach for the Superintendents' Early Childhood 
Plan. The full implementation option is an opportunity to both connect and strengthen our 
existing early childhood programs to provide seamless support for our students and families 
through the primary years. This program is designed to serve young children from birth through 
third grade who are living in high concentrations of poverty.   
 
Our goals for full implementation at Cody and Sandoz include aligning systems of education and 
care that begin early and continue through elementary school to provide strong foundations for 
academic success.  Specifically: 

• Close the “gap” (achievement, knowledge, language, access). 
• Develop a strong understanding of social emotional competence, oral language and 

vocabulary, and cognitive development from birth through the primary years. 
• Improve early childhood and elementary school teaching and learning through job 

embedded, focused and sustained professional development. 
• Participate in opportunities for instructional coaching, modeling, and reflective practice. 
• Improve early childhood and elementary school teaching and learning through aligned 

curriculum, instruction and assessment. 
• Enact improvement efforts that build upon the best practices of early childhood to 

strengthen our instructional programs in grades K-3 with a focus on literacy/numeracy, 
language and social emotional learning. 

• Develop systems to facilitate family participation and education. 
• Define a process for evaluating the impact on teaching, learning and achievement. 

 
Services at Cody and Sandoz will be delivered via: 

• Birth-age 3 home visiting staff, research-based curriculum, and school-based parent-child 
groups. 

• Family facilitators to support continued home visiting and to help build strong family-
school partnerships across preschool through third grade. 

• Professional development and coaching that involves learning, applying and documenting 
instructional approaches designed to close the achievement gap. 

111



• Stipends for staff who are not on contract during professional development sessions, or 
substitute teacher pay. 

  
 
Recommendations:   It is recommended that the Board approve the Learning Community 

Early Childhood/Buffett Institute Agreement and that the Associate 
Superintendent for Educational Services be authorized and directed to 
execute all documents related to this program. 

 
Strategic Plan  
Reference:   N/A 
 
 
Timeline:   Immediately 
 
 
Responsible Persons:  Heather Phipps, Andy DeFreece, Terry Houlton, and Jean Ubbelohde 
 
 
Superintendent’s Approval:   
  

 

112

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



4839-4841-4542.1  

LEARNING COMMUNITY OF DOUGLAS AND SARPY COUNTIES 

PARTICIPANT AGREEMENT 
 

This PARTICIPANT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of September 12, 2017 by 
and between the Learning Community of Douglas and Sarpy Counties, a Nebraska political 
subdivision (“Learning Community”) and Douglas County School District No. 17, aka Millard Public 
School District, a Nebraska political subdivision (“District”). 

WHEREAS, in an effort to improve learning and developmental outcomes for children, 
Learning Community and the Buffet Early Childhood Institute at the University of Nebraska (“Buffett 
Institute”) have entered into that certain Early Childhood Plan Agreement dated April 1, 2015 (the 
“Plan Agreement”) for purposes of implementing the Superintendent’s Early Childhood Plan (the 
“Plan”);  

WHEREAS, Buffett Institute has identified District as a participant to further implementation 
of the Plan;  

WHEREAS, District has submitted a proposal detailing its level and scope of participation in 
the Plan as contemplated in the Plan Agreement; 

WHEREAS, Buffett Institute and Learning Community have approved the District’s proposal; 
and 

WHEREAS, Learning Community and District desire to enter into this Agreement to effectuate 
the proposal. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements, promises and covenants set 
forth herein, Learning Community and District (each referred to herein individually as “Party” and 
collectively as “the Parties”) agree as follows: 

1. Statement of Work 

a. Pursuant and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, 
Learning Community hereby agrees to provide funding and District agrees to undertake and conduct 
the program more specifically set forth in the proposal and budget as submitted by District and 
approved by Buffett Institute and Learning Community (the “Program”) attached hereto as “Exhibit A” 
and “Exhibit B” (collectively, the “Exhibits”) (all references to the “Agreement” include the Agreement 
as supplemented by the Exhibits in the form submitted by District and as amended by the parties).  

b. Consistent with the Plan, the purpose of the Program is to further efforts to eliminate 
or reduce income-based social, cognitive, and achievement gaps among at-risk children living in the 
11 school districts of the Learning Community, especially with respect to young children at risk.     

2. Performance Period.  District will commence its activities under the Program and 
conclude such work on a timeframe consistent with the dates identified in the Program (the 
“Program Term”), which dates may be extended by mutual written agreement of the parties hereto.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither party to this Agreement shall hold the other party responsible 
for damages or delays in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, lockouts, accidents, or other 
events beyond the reasonable control of said party. 

113



4839-4841-4542.1 2 

3. Fiscal Agent.  District shall be the fiscal agent for the Program.  As fiscal agent, 
District shall be solely responsible for compliance with the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement related to the incurring of Program expenses, including the approval thereof, the payment 
of any and all bills and invoices related to the Program, and the submission of financial reports to 
Learning Community related to the Program. 

4. Elementary Levy Program. The Program shall be implemented as an elementary 
program of Learning Community and District.  Funding for the Program shall be provided by the 
Elementary Levy Funds Budget of Learning Community.  Parties acknowledge and agree that the 
Program funding provided under this Agreement may not be the exclusive source of funding for the 
Program.  The Learning Community’s Executive Director, Elementary Learning Centers (“ELC ED”) 
shall, on behalf of and for Learning Community, have general oversight of the Program with regard to 
compliance by District with the terms of this Agreement, but shall have no authority with regard to 
the implementation, day to day operations or staffing of the Program, which shall be the sole 
responsibility of District. 

5. Participants.  District shall determine how many students will enroll in the Program 
and select the students that will participate in the Program; provided, however, that the Program 
shall not have an official enrollment of less than fifty percent (50%) of the projected enrollment set 
forth in the Program.   

6. Program Funding.   

a. Learning Community shall provide District with funding for the services performed 
and costs incurred, whether by District or by a third party contracted by District, related to the 
Program in a total amount identified on Exhibit B (“Program Amount”) which Program Amount shall 
be funded in three (3) installments, as follows:  

50% of the Program Amount shall be remitted on or before October 2, 2017;  

30% of the Program Amount shall be remitted on or before May 1, 2018; and   

20% of the Program Amount, which represents the final installment payment, will be remitted 
as set forth herein after conclusion of the Program Term and submission of the final report 
pursuant to Section 7.b herein and approval of same by Learning Community.  The final 
report shall include an invoice for Program services provided during the Program Term, which 
invoice shall set forth an itemized listing of expenses actually incurred by District and shall 
be accompanied by documentation substantiating all itemized expenses set forth on such 
invoice.  Learning Community shall, after review and approval of the invoice submitted by 
District pursuant to this subsection, remit the final installment payment to District within 30 
days after receipt of the final report; provided, however, that the amount remitted in the final 
installment shall not result in the total amount paid to District exceeding either the lesser of 
the budget amounts reflected on Exhibit B or the total amount of Program expenses actually 
incurred by District.  If, at the conclusion of the Program Term, upon receipt and review of the 
final report, Learning Community has, after application of all remittances made pursuant to 
this Section 6.a, made payments to District which exceed the total amount of Program 
expenses actually incurred by District, District shall refund to Learning Community the 
amount by which the total remittances made by Learning Community exceed total expenses 
actually incurred. 

b. The amount(s) to be paid by Learning Community as provided under Section 6.a shall 
constitute the entire amount of funding by Learning Community for the Program.  Learning 

114



4839-4841-4542.1 3 

Community shall not be liable for any further costs, including, but not limited to, such items as 
overhead, social security, pension, employment compensation, taxes, or any other expenses, 
incurred by District in the performance of the services related to the Program.   

c. District expressly agrees and acknowledges that District shall be solely and 
exclusively responsible for the day to day operations of the Program and for any and all payments to 
any contracted service providers contracted by District for services related to the Program.  Learning 
Community shall not be responsible for any payment to any such contracted service providers for 
services related to the Program and District specifically acknowledges that Learning Community has 
no obligation for the day to day operations of the Program or for any payments of any kind or nature 
to any contracted service providers.   

d. Learning Community reserves the right to withhold or suspend any payment(s) to be 
made by Learning Community pursuant to this Agreement, or to require a total or partial refund of 
Learning Community funds, if, as determined by Learning Community in its sole discretion, such 
action is necessary: (i) because District has not complied with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement; (ii) to protect the purposes and objectives of the Program as represented in its Proposal; 
or (iii) to comply with the requirements of any law or regulation applicable to Learning Community, 
District, or the Program. 

e. District expressly agrees and acknowledges that the enactment of legislation by the 
Nebraska Legislature subsequent to the date of this Agreement which either eliminates or reduces 
the levy authority of Learning Community pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 77-3442(2)(i) may result in 
the termination of this Agreement by Learning Community in accordance with Section 10 herein.   

7. Reporting. 

a. Within 60 days of the termination of the Program or expiration of the Program Term, 
whichever occurs first, District shall collect and report to the Buffett Institute’s evaluation team 
comprised of the Buffett Institute, the University of Nebraska Lincoln, the Munroe-Meyer Institute for 
Genetics and Rehabilitation, University of Nebraska Medical Center, or such other qualified third-
party evaluator retained by Learning Community who is compliant with the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act, as amended (“FERPA”) (all members of the evaluation team collectively referred to 
as the “Evaluator”), specified demographic and Program evaluation data, as follows:  (i) that data 
specified in the Program; and (ii) data mutually agreed upon by District, Learning Community and 
Evaluator.  Learning Community acknowledges and agrees that any personally identifiable student 
information obtained by Evaluator from District pursuant to this Agreement is subject to FERPA, and 
in accordance with District’s position thereon, such personally identifiable information shall not be 
disclosed to Learning Community, and Learning Community will not be provided access to such 
personally identifiable information. 

b. Within 60 days of Program completion, District shall prepare and submit to Learning 
Community a written final Program report (“Report”).  The Report shall include a narrative description 
of Program’s activities and accomplishments, including progress made on student learning 
outcomes and evaluation data described in the Program, and a detailed accounting of all 
expenditures made from payments received pursuant to Section 6.a.  Said Report shall be submitted 
to the ELC ED.  At the request of the Learning Community, District shall make a live presentation of 
the Report to the Learning Community Coordinating Council, Achievement Subcouncil No. 4, and the 
Elementary Learning Centers Task Force.    

8. Obligations of District.  

115



4839-4841-4542.1 4 

a. District is responsible for administering and conducting the Program in accordance 
with the District’s Proposal and this Agreement and for maintaining documentation of all actions 
taken and expenditures incurred with regard to the Program.  District acknowledges that failure to 
comply with the requirements of this Agreement could result in suspension or termination of the 
Program Amount by Learning Community and could result in District being required to return 
Learning Community funds to Learning Community. 

b. The ELC ED, or other designated representative of the Learning Community, will be 
permitted to conduct pre-arranged site visit(s) to the Program during the Program Term in order to 
evaluate the Program, the provision of services, and the administration and implementation of the 
Program.  For purposes of this Section 8.b, such site visits shall be scheduled by the ELC ED, or other 
designated representative of the Learning Community, with District not less than 24 hours in 
advance. 

c. Absent express approval from Learning Community, funds provided by Learning 
Community pursuant to this Agreement shall be accounted for separately in the financial books and 
records of District.  District shall be responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate financial 
records for the Program, which records shall include a systematic accounting of the receipt and 
disbursement of Learning Community funds, and shall retain original substantiating documents 
related to specific expenditures of Learning Community funds and shall make these records 
available for review by Learning Community, or its designated representatives, upon request. District 
shall keep all financial records with respect to this Program for at least four (4) years following the 
year during which the Program Term ended.  Learning Community, or a designated representative 
thereof, reserves the right, upon prior written notice, to audit District's books and records relating to 
the expenditure of any funds provided by Learning Community related to the Program. 

d. District shall assure that all District employees providing services in conjunction with 
the Program shall have the appropriate credentialing or other licenses required by state law.  District 
shall require, via contract with any contracted provider of Program services, that such third party 
shall require that its employees have the appropriate credentialing or other licenses required by 
state law. 

e. District shall conduct, for its employees providing Program services who will, or may, 
directly interact with children a criminal background check, a national sex offender registry check, 
and a Nebraska Sex Offender Registry check, and District shall require, via contract with any 
contracted provider of Program services, that such third party conduct said checks on all officers, 
employees and volunteers of said contracted provider involved with the Program who will, or may, 
directly interact with children.  Neither District nor, if applicable, a contracted entity shall knowingly 
permit the involvement with the Program of any officer, employee or volunteer of said entity who 
does not pass all checks. 

f. If applicable, District shall assure that all entities with whom District contracts to 
provide services for the Program have a license to operate in Nebraska. 

g. District shall procure and maintain at all times during the Program Term, and, if 
applicable, shall require that all contracted service providers with whom District contracts for the 
Program procure and maintain at all times during the Program Term, the following minimum types 
and amounts of insurance: 

i. Commercial General Liability insurance providing coverage to District and 
naming the Learning Community as Additional Insured on a primary and non-contributing 
basis, including completed operations, with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per 

116



4839-4841-4542.1 5 

occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate, $2,000,000 product and completed operations 
aggregate, and $1,000,000 personal and advertising injury.  District shall waive its rights of 
recovery against the Learning Community and will obtain such waiver of subrogation from its 
insurer. Such waiver of subrogation shall be endorsed to the policy in favor of the Learning 
Community; 

ii. Sexual Abuse & Molestation coverage with a limit of not less than $500,000 
each occurrence and $1,000,000 in the annual aggregate; 

iii. Professional or Educator’s Legal Liability insurance with a limit of not less 
than $1,000,000 each claim; 

iv. Automobile Liability insurance with a combined single limit for bodily injury, 
death and property damage of not less than $1,000,000 per accident, which coverage shall 
apply to all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles used by District, its employees, agents, 
representatives, volunteers in conducting the Program;  

v. Workers’ Compensation Insurance covering District and its employees for all 
costs and statutory benefits and liabilities under the Nebraska Workers Compensation Act 
and any similar laws for its employees, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of not 
less than $100,000 each employee injury, $100,000 each employee disease, and 
$500,000 policy limit for all accident injury or disease. District shall waive its rights of 
recovery and obtain such waiver of subrogation from its insurer in favor of the Learning 
Community; and 

vi. Umbrella / Excess Liability Insurance with limits of not less than $1,000,000 
each occurrence which shall provide additional liability coverage in excess of the Commercial 
General Liability, Auto Liability and Employer’s Liability. 

Before District or any contracted service provider shall be permitted to begin work or provide 
services, District and all such contracted service providers shall provide Learning Community 
with evidence of such insurance issued on a standard ACORD Certificate of Insurance as will 
meet all insurance requirements stated in this Agreement.  It is the sole responsibility of 
District and any contracted service provider to provide Learning Community with written 
notice should any required insurance pursuant to this section be cancelled or non-renewed. 
Failure of District or a contracted service provider to provide and maintain all insurance 
required, or failure to provide written notice, shall not relieve District or such contracted 
service provider of its obligation under this Agreement. 

 
By requiring insurance under this Agreement, Learning Community does not represent that 
the coverage and limits required will necessarily be adequate to protect the District or its 
contracted service providers for all claims or amounts of loss.  Such coverage and limits shall 
not be deemed or construed to be any limitation of the District’s, or its contracted service 
provider’s, liabilities under any indemnification obligations provided to Learning Community 
under this Agreement. 

 
h. Learning Community may include information regarding the Program in any external 

communications of the Learning Community and the District may acknowledge that the Learning 
Community provided funding support for the Program in any of its external communications.  
Learning Community may include information regarding the Program, any photographs provided by 
the parties, and any general information about the parties and their activities in any external 
communications of Learning Community; provided, however, that the use of any photographs of any 

117



4839-4841-4542.1 6 

of the District’s students complies with the Family Education Records Protection Act (FERPA) and 
Learning Community shall not use any District logos or trademarks without the prior approval of 
District. 

9. Warranties & Representations.  District hereby warrants and represents to Learning 
Community that: 

a. The Program and use of Learning Community funds will comply with the terms of this 
Agreement, as well as all applicable laws, rules and regulations applicable to District and the 
Program.  

b. There is no fact known to District, its board members, officials, employees, 
representatives or agents which would materially affect the decision of Learning Community to enter 
into this Agreement which had not been disclosed to Learning Community. 

c. District is responsible for administering the Program in accordance with this 
Agreement and for maintaining documentation of all actions taken and expenditures incurred with 
regard to the Program.  District acknowledges that failure to comply with the requirements of this 
Agreement could result in suspension or termination of the Program Amount by Learning Community 
and could result in District being required to return Learning Community funds to Learning 
Community. 

10. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at 
any time upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to the other party; provided, however, that 
performance may be terminated with immediate effect by Learning Community upon delivery of 
written notice to District if Learning Community determines, in its sole discretion, that District is in 
breach of this Agreement. 

11. Notice.  Any notice required to be given by this Agreement shall be sufficient if 
communicated in writing and sent by hand delivery or by certified United States Mail, postage 
prepaid, or by facsimile transmission.  Notice shall be given as follows: 

 If to Learning Community: Chief Executive Officer 
     Learning Community of Douglas and Sarpy Counties 
     1612 North 24th Street  
     Omaha, Nebraska  68110 
     FAX:  (402) 964-2478 

           If to District:  Dr. James Sutfin, Superintendent 
Millard Public School District 
5606 South 147th Street 
Omaha, Nebraska 68137 

 
or to such other address as any party hereto may, from time to time, give notice of to the other party 
in the above manner. 

12. Independent Contractor. The parties hereto are independent contractors in their 
relationship to one another and are not, by virtue of this Agreement or otherwise, made agents, 
(except for the limited purposes of Section 13, below), employees, employers, or joint ventures of 
one another.  Neither party shall have any authority to bind the other party hereto. 

118



4839-4841-4542.1 7 

13. Indemnification.  For the limited purposes of this Section 13, the Parties 
acknowledge and agree that Learning Community shall be considered an agent of District.  To the 
extent permitted by law, specifically, Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-516, the District covenants and agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless Learning Community, its Council members, officers, consultants, 
agents, employees and representatives, and their successors and assigns, individually and 
collectively, (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all costs, expenses, 
liabilities, losses, damages, suits, actions, fines, penalties, demands or claims of any kind, including, 
but not limited to, attorney’s fees, in any way arising out of or based upon the negligent or willful acts 
or omissions of District, its employees or agents in administering the Program as specified in this 
Agreement, and District further agrees to pay all expenses in defending against any claims made 
against the Indemnified Parties to the extent permitted by law, specifically, Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-516; 
provided, however, that District shall not be liable for any injury, damage or loss occasioned by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties. 

14. Non-Discrimination.  The parties to this Agreement shall not, in the performance of 
this Agreement, discriminate or permit discrimination in violation of federal or state laws or local 
ordinances because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, age, 
marital status, citizenship status, or economic status. 

15. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted according to the law of the State 
of Nebraska.  

16. Citizenship Verification.  District agrees and acknowledges that it shall use a federal 
immigration verification system to determine the work eligibility status of new employees physically 
performing services within the State of Nebraska pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 4-108 to 4-114, as 
amended. 

17. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The parties hereto shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and ordinances applicable to the Program, including, but not limited to, 
FERPA and Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-712 to 84-712.09, as amended. 

18. Amendment.  This Agreement may only be amended or modified by written 
agreement of all parties hereto.  The parties hereto agree that amendments or modifications to the 
Program services, activities or budget which do not increase the total Program Amount set forth in 
this Agreement may be approved on behalf of Learning Community by Learning Community’s Chief 
Executive Officer or Executive Director. 

19. Severability.  Should any part hereof or any sections of this Agreement be rendered 
or declared illegal, invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
portions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

20. Waiver.  Any waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement 
shall not operate as or be construed as a waiver of any other provision or any subsequent breach. 

21. Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred by either party to 
this Agreement except by written agreement of the non-assigning party. 

22. Time is of the Essence.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that time is of the 
essence with respect to the final execution of this Agreement.  As such, in the event District fails to 
provide Learning Community with an executed copy of this Agreement within sixty (60) days of 
District’s receipt of the same, Learning Community may, in its discretion, cancel the Agreement. At 

119



4839-4841-4542.1 8 

the discretion of Learning Community, this may result in the funding identified in this Agreement 
being reallocated to other districts within the subcouncil.  

23. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, together with any exhibits or schedules hereto, 
which are incorporated herein by this reference, constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties as to the subject matter hereof, and replaces all prior written and oral statements and 
understandings.   

 

[Signature page follows] 

 
 

120



4839-4841-4542.1 9 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed in duplicate on the respective 

dates set forth below. 
 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17, 
aka MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT, a 
Nebraska political subdivision 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 

 
Its: ______________________________ 

 
Date: ____________________________ 

 

LEARNING COMMUNITY OF DOUGLAS AND 
SARPY COUNTIES, a Nebraska political 
subdivision 

 
 

By: ______________________________ 
 

 
Its: ______________CEO_____________ 
 

 
Date: _______September 12, 2017____ 

 

121



4839-4841-4542.1 10 

PARTICIPANT AGREEMENT 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Proposal

122



 

4839-4841-4542.1  

LEARNING COMMUNITY OF DOUGLAS AND SARPY COUNTIES 
Superintendents’ Early Childhood Plan Proposal 

 
Summary  
Electronic File Name: 2017-2018 Millard.LC – BECI – District Participant Agreement Attachments 
School District/Organization Name: Millard Public Schools  
Program Name: Superintendents Early Childhood Plan for Millard – Sandoz and Cody 

Elementary  
Program Category (choose only 
one) 

  Full Implementation Birth – Third Grade    
☐ Professional Development   

☐ Technical Assistance  
Amount Requested: $224,226.00 
Program Start Date: September 1, 2017 Program End Date: August 31, 2018  
Please complete the following fields, as applicable: Total Cost of Program: $257,726.00 
# of Weeks Per Year of Program: 36 # Program Hours Per Week: 30 
# of Students in Program: 525 F.T.E. Cost Per Child Per Program Hr: .45 
   By submission of this proposal, Buffett Institute acknowledges that the 

school district / organization has been made aware of its obligation to fully 
participate in an external evaluation and to otherwise share program 
information with the Buffett Institute evaluation team. 

If the anticipated participant is not a school district, Buffett Institute has or will 
provide all of the following: ☐ letter of support from cooperating school district, 
☐ most recent organization audit from the organization’s legal fiscal agent, and 
☐ copies of accreditation or credentials of program staff supporting 
organizations’ ability to deliver program. 
  Complete the budget summary included as Attachment A 

Executive Summary:  Describe how 
services will be delivered, population 
to be served and organizational 
experience and capacity in the space 
to the right. 

Cody and Sandoz Elementary will continue to serve as full implementation sites 
of the birth-third grade approach for the Superintendents’ Early Childhood Plan.  
The full implementation option is an opportunity to both connect and strengthen 
our existing early childhood programs to provide seamless support for our 
students and families through the primary years.  This program will be designed 
to serve young children from birth through third grade who are living in high 
concentrations of poverty.   
Our goals for full implementation at Cody and Sandoz include aligning systems 
of education and care that begin early and continue through elementary school 
to provide strong foundations for academic success.  Specifically:  

 Close the “gap” (achievement, knowledge, language, access).   
 Develop a strong understanding of social emotional competence, oral 

language and vocabulary, and cognitive development from birth through 
the primary years.   

 Improve early childhood and elementary school teaching and learning 
through job embedded, focused and sustained professional 
development.   

 Participate in opportunities for instructional coaching, modeling and 
reflective practice.   

 Improve early childhood and elementary school teaching and learning 
through aligned curriculum, instruction and assessment.   

 Enact improvement efforts that build upon the best practices of early 
childhood to strengthen our instructional programs in grades K-3 with a 

123



 

4839-4841-4542.1  

 
focus on literacy/numeracy, language and social emotional learning.   

 Develop systems to facilitate family participation and education.   
 Define a process for evaluating the impact on teaching, learning and 

achievement.   
Services at Cody and Sandoz are delivered via:  

 Birth-age 3 home visiting staff, research-based curriculum, and 
school-based parent-child groups.   

 Family facilitators to support continued home visiting and to help build 
strong family-school partnerships across preschool through third grade.   

 Professional development and coaching that involves learning, applying 
and documenting instructional approaches designed to close the 
achievement gap.   

 Stipends for staff who are not on contract during professional 
development sessions, or substitute teacher pay.   

 
Contact Information for School District / Organization 
Name and Title: Dr. Heather Phipps, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services  
School District / Organization: Millard Public Schools  
Email: ephipps@mpsomaha.org  
Phone: (402) 715-8306 
Street Address: 5606 S. 147th Street 
City, State and ZIP Code: Omaha, NE 68137 

 

124



 

4839-4841-4542.1  

PARTICIPANT AGREEMENT 
 

Exhibit “B” 
 

Program Budget  

125



 

4839-4841-4542.1  

 

PROGRAM BUDGET 

Program Revenue and Request Amount Comment 

Non-Learning Community Revenue (including in-
kind) $ 33,500.00 

Administrator salaries, classroom 
space at two elementary buildings, 
supplies   

Learning Community Request $ 224,226.00   

Total Program Revenue $ 257,726.00   
  
Program Expenses Amount Comment 

Salaries & Wages $ 148,366.00 4 FTE at 100% FT 

Insurance Benefits  $ 42,660.00 Benefits for home visitors and family 
facilitators  

Transportation Costs $  

Training $ 25,200.00 Stipends and sub pay  

Equipment $    

Supplies $ 6,000.00 Family services and activities  

Printing & Copying  $  

Telephone & Internet $  

Postage $  

Rent & Utilities $  

In-Kind $ 33,500.00 
Administrator salaries, classroom 
space at two elementary buildings, 
supplies   

Other (please specify) $ 2,000.00 Mileage for home visitors and family 
facilitators 

Total Program Expenses $ 257,726.00   
 
 

Total Cost of 
Program 

# of Weeks Per 
Year of Program 

# of Children 
in Program # Program Hours Per Week 

$257,726.00 36 525 F.T.E. 30 
 
Total Allocation from Learning Community for this Program = $224,226.00 

126



 
AGENDA SUMMARY  SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Poverty Plan for 2018-2019 School Year for State Aid 

 
MEETING DATE: September 18, 2017 

 
DEPARTMENT: Educational Services 

 
TITLE AND 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION:    Poverty Plan for 2018-2019 School Year for State Aid 

 
 

ACTION DESIRED:     X      Approve Plan 
 
 

BACKGROUND: For the certification of 2018-2019 State aid, every school district is required 
to designate a maximum Poverty Allowance. The designation may be zero dollars or it may be 
an estimated dollar amount greater than zero dollars. This designation must be filed with the 
Department of Education on or before October 15, 2017. If a school district elects to designate 
a maximum Poverty Allowance greater than zero dollars, the school district must also file a 
Poverty Plan, on or before October 15, 2017, utilizing the NDE Grants Management System. In 
addition, the 2018-2019 Poverty Plan must be reviewed and approved by Learning Community 
Subcouncil #4 and the Learning Community Coordinating Council (LCCC). 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:   Approve 2018-2019 Poverty Plan as submitted. 

 
 
STRATEGIC  PLAN REFERENCE: None 

 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate implementation 

 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Heather Phipps, Assoc. Supt. (Educational 
Services) 

 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S  APPROVAL:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

127

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



 

 
LC Poverty Plan - 1160 

 
Applicant:  03-028-0017-18 MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

 
Application: 2016-2017 LC LEP and Poverty Plans - 00 

Cycle:  Original Application 

Estimated Expenditures 
 
A school district declining to participate in the Poverty Allowance should enter 0 on 1160-800 
Total Estimated Poverty Expenditures. 

 
A school district that elects to participate in the Poverty Allowance should enter a maximum 
dollar amount on 1160-800 Total Poverty Expenditures. 

 
A Worksheet for estimating Poverty Expenditures is available by clicking here. 

 

Do not include Federal Funds when estimating these expenditures with the exception of 
SFSF monies identified for Poverty. 

 
 
A Poverty Plan must be submitted if the Total estimated Poverty Expenditures are greater than 
0. 

 
1160-800 Total Poverty Expenditures $2,980,000 

X .85 
1160-900 Estimated Poverty Allowance      $2,533,000 

 
The Poverty Allowance will be the lesser of the amount on 1160-900 Estimated Poverty 
Allowance or a calculated amount based on the provisions of Section 79-1007.06(2). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

128



 

 
Poverty 

Plan 
2018-2019 

 
Poverty Plan – Attendance and Mobility 

 

1. Describe the district attendance policies, procedures, or practices and attach district’s 
collaborative plan or process as addressed in Nebraska Revised Statute 79-209.  

 
Children who are of the mandatory attendance age (currently ages 6-18), or who are 
younger than mandatory attendance age and are enrolled in a Millard school, are required to 
attend school each day the school is open and in session, except when excused by the 
school principal, the student has graduated from high school, or attendance is otherwise 
excused by law.  District Rule determines when a student’s absence is excused or 
unexcused. 

 
Each day that a student is not in attendance, a phone call is made to the home to ensure the 
student is safe, and a reasonable excuse is given regarding their absence. This practice is 
done for all students Pre-K through 12. 

 
Elementary attendance is taken two times per day while each middle and high school takes 
attendance each period throughout the day. 

 
When a student does not attend school on a regular basis even when transportation is being 
provided) and the student has accumulated eight (8) absences in a school year or the hourly 
equivalent, the District may render all services to address barriers to attendance. Such 
services shall include, but not be limited to the following: 

a. Parent notification letters - Parents are sent a courtesy notification letters 
when their student reaches eight, ten, and fifteen absences. 

b. Meeting with the parent/guardian(s) - One or more meetings are arranged with 
the school principal and/or the school social worker. 

c. Educational counseling - This strategy is used to determine whether curriculum 
changes including, but not limited to, enrolling the student in an alternative 
education program that meets the specific educational and behavioral needs of 
the student, would help solve the truancy problem. 

d. Educational evaluation - This may include a behavioral and/or psychological 
evaluation to assist in determining the specific condition, if any, contributing to 
the truancy problem, and is supplemented by specific interventions by the 
school to help remedy any condition that may be diagnosed. 

e. Further Investigation - If warranted further information is obtained regarding 
the truancy problem by the school social worker. This helps to identify 
conditions which may be contributing to the truancy problem. If services for the 
student and the student’s family are determined to be needed, the school social 
worker becomes a liaison to appropriate community agencies for economic 
services, family or individual counseling, or other services. 

 
 
 
 

129



 

 Millard Collaborative Plan as addressed in Nebraska Revised Statute 79-209 
 
This collaborative plan has been developed as a result of a meeting/s held on the following 
dates: 
  

_________________ _________________ _________________ 
  
Meeting Attendees: 

________________________________ ________________________________ 
________________________________ ________________________________ 
________________________________ ________________________________ 

  
The attendees considered the following actions to reduce barriers to improve regular attendance: 
1.      Illness related to physical or behavioral health of the child: 
___ It was determined that the physical or behavioral health of the child is not a barrier to 
improve regular attendance. 
 
___ The child’s physical or behavioral health poses a barrier to regular attendance.  
The following actions will be taken in response: 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.      Educational counseling (e.g. curriculum changes): 
___ It was determined that educational counseling is not needed to reduce barriers to improve 
regular attendance. 
 
___ Educational counseling ___ has been ___ will be provided, consisting of the following: 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
3.      Educational evaluation: 
___ It was determined that an educational evaluation is not needed to reduce barriers to 
improve regular attendance. 
 
___ An educational evaluation ___ has been ___ will be conducted to assist in determining 
the specific condition, if any, contributing to the problem of excessive absenteeism. The 
evaluation will include: 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
  
4.      Referral to community agencies for economic services: 
___ It was determined that economic services are not needed to reduce barriers to improve 
regular attendance. 
 
___ The family ___ has been ___ will be given information about community agencies which 
may have economic services available to the family, which includes: 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5.      Family or individual counseling: 
___ It was determined that family or individual counseling is not needed to reduce barriers to 
improve regular attendance. 
 
___ The family ___ has been ___ will be given information about family or individual 

130



counseling that is available pertaining to: 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
6.      Assisting the family in working with other community services: 
 
___ It was determined that assistance in working with community services is not needed to 
reduce barriers to improve regular attendance. 
 
___ The family ___ has been ___ will be given assistance in working with community 
services pertaining to:  
________________________________________________________________________ 
  

  
Other actions to be taken (include names of who is responsible and anticipated 
completion date) 
  

  
  
  
  

  
Plan completed by: 
 
__________________________________  
Signature (title) 
__________________________________ 
Signature (title)  
______________________  
Date 
 

 
 

2. Describe the transportation options for students  qualifying for free or reduced lunch 
who live more than one mile from the attendance center.  

 
The district operates 35 schools including 25 elementary, 6 middle and 4 high schools. 
Policy and rule regarding “enrollment” of students allows students the opportunity to 
attend their neighborhood school or to stay in a school where they started if that school is 
not “closed” due to capacity standards. 
 
A.  Resident Students 

 
With regard to transportation services for poverty students who live outside a one-mile 
radius of their assigned school, the following services are available: (1) For elementary 
students, transportation is provided on regular bus routes; (2) For middle school students, 
transportation is provided via a private bus company at a rate subsidized by the district; 
however, for free/reduced price lunch students, the district pays for the full fare for such 
students; and (3) For high school students, transportation services are provided via a private 
bus company at an unsubsidized rate, however, for free/reduced price lunch students, the 
district pays the full fee to the bus company for such students. 

131



 
B.  Option Enrollment Students (including Open Enrollment Option Students) 

 
Notwithstanding the above, transportation services (i.e., via buses, vans, and even taxi cabs) 
provided prior to the 17-18 school year were provided to open enrollment students pursuant 
to the provisions of Neb. Rev. Stat. §79- 611 as amended by LB 585 as follows: “The school 
board of any school district that is a member of a learning community shall provide free 
transportation for a student who resides in such learning community and attends school in 
such school district if (i) the student is transferring pursuant to the open enrollment 
provisions of section 79-2110, qualifies for free or reduced-price lunches, lives more than 
one mile from the school to which he or she transfers, and is not otherwise disqualified under 
subdivision (2) (c) of this section, (iii) the student is attending a focus school or program and 
lives more than one mile from the school building housing the focus school or program, or 
(iv) the student is attending a magnet school or program and lives more than one mile from 
the magnet school or the school housing the magnet program.” 

 
“(2) (c) For any student who resides within a learning community and transfers to another 
school building pursuant to the open enrollment provisions of section 79-2110 and who had 
not been accepted for open enrollment into any school building within such district prior to 
the effective date of this act, the school board is exempt from the requirement of 
subdivision 
(2) (a) of this section if (i) the student is transferring to another school building within his or 
her home school district or (ii) the student is transferring to a school building in a school 
district that does not share a common border with his or her home school district.” 
 
Commencing with the 17-18 school year, LB 1067 (2016) will bring about a “phase-out” of 
transportation services related to open enrollment students (referred to as “open enrollment 
option students” in LB 1067).  The phase-out will occur as students move from one 
“building level” to the next.  When the phase-out occurs, the responsible for and cost of 
transportation services will revert back to the parents. 
 
Even though LB 1067 (2016) will shift the transportation responsibility back to the parents, 
the parents may qualify for reimbursement if their child qualifies for free (not reduced) 
price meals as provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. Section 79-241(2) as follows: 
 

§79-241. Transportation; fee authorized; reimbursement; when 

(1)  Except as provided in subsection (2) of this section, section 79-611 does not 
apply to the transportation of an option student. The parent or legal guardian of the 
option student shall be responsible for required transportation. A school district 
may, upon mutual agreement with the parent or legal guardian of an option 
student, provide transportation to the option student on the same basis as provided 
for resident students. The school district may charge the parents of each option 
student transported a fee sufficient to recover the additional costs of such 
transportation. 

(2)  Parents or guardians of option students who qualify for free lunches shall be 
eligible for transportation reimbursement as described in section 79-611, except 
that they shall be reimbursed at the rate of one hundred forty-two and one-half 
percent of the mandatorily established mileage rate provided in section 81-1176 
for each mile actually and necessarily traveled on each day of attendance by which 
the distance traveled one way from the residence of such student to the 
schoolhouse exceeds three miles.  

132



 
 
3. Describe the policies, procedures, or practices that allow students who move within the 

same school district or learning community to continue at original attendance area, 
including transportation options.  

 
Transportation for students who move within the District but elect to remain in their 
previous school is the same as that provided for “in-district transfer students” noted above. 
Students who move to a different school within the Learning Community receive the 
transportation services noted above for “open enrollment students” unless the student moves 
into the Millard Public Schools in which case the student receives the transportation services 
noted for his/her assigned school. 

 
 
Millard Public School Policy/Rule 
Student Services 
K-12 Transfer of Students within the District 5110.1 

 
I.  K-12 Within-District Transfers 

 
A. A parent of a Kindergarten through twelfth grade student who is currently 
enrolled in the District may submit a request to have his/her student attend a different 
school or special program during the current or next school year. Such requests shall be 
made in accordance with the following procedures. 

 
II.        Student Eligibility for Within-District Transfers 

A. Any K-12 student whose parents reside in the District attendance area. 
B.        Any K-12 student who is currently attending the District under Option 

Enrollment. 
C. Any K-12 student who has been accepted into a specific building under the 
Open Enrollment provision as long as the request is for the subsequent year in 
which enrollment was granted. 

 
III.       Limitations and Restrictions on Student Eligibility 

 
A. Students will not be allowed to transfer to another school during suspension or 
expulsion. A student’s disciplinary record will be considered and students with 
extensive disciplinary records will not be considered for transfer unless it is determined 
to be in the best interests of the student or the school. 

 
B. The within-district transfer policy will not apply to or alter a student’s 
mandatory reassignment. 

 
C. If the student is in a special education program, the approval recommendation 
of the Director of Special Education will be based upon the student’s individualized 
education program and educational needs; class size; related service needs; 
transportation arrangements as may be required by law; the allocation of specially 
trained staff and personnel; facility issues; and the allocation of equipment or materials 
necessary to provide an appropriate education program. 

 
D. If the student receives ELL services, the recommendation of the 
Superintendent or designee will be based upon the student’s educational needs and 
the allocation of specially trained staff and personnel. 

133



 

IV.      Conditions of Transfers 
 

A. Student Withdrawal from Special Program: Any student approved for a 
within-district transfer to attend a special program in the District who subsequently 
withdraws from participation in such program shall have his/her within-district transfer 
approval revoked. Such student shall be reassigned to the school he/she would have 
attended if the within- district transfer had not been approved. 

 
B. Students of parents who move from one school's attendance area to that of 
another within the District during the school year may continue attending the original 
school for the remainder of the current school year and start attendance at the assigned 
school with the commencement of the next school year. If the parents want their 
student to remain at the original open school and complete the grades there, they may 
apply for a within- district transfer. Parents may not request a within district transfer 
for their student to remain at the original school if it is identified as a closed school. 

 
C. Once a student is transferred to a particular school, the parents need not 
re-apply unless they want the student to transfer back to the student's home school or 
to another school at the same level (elementary school, middle school, or high 
school) in the District. 

 
D. Within-district transfers are only for the educational level (elementary school, 
middle school, or high school). As the student moves from elementary into middle 
school or from middle school into high school, another within-district transfer must be 
filed. If not, the student will attend their assigned school. 

 
E. The Superintendent or designee may reassign a student should it be 
determined that circumstances justify such reassignment. 

 
F. Once a transfer is approved, every effort will be made to make the transfer 
permanent; however, the District reserves the right to reassign transferred students back 
to their home school. 

 
G. Unless special safety, health, or program issues are involved, no student 
will be granted more than one transfer per school year. 

 
V.       Transportation 

 
A. Transportation for students who transfer within the District must be provided 
by the student's parents or legal guardian unless as otherwise required by law. 

 
VI.     Within-District Transfer Applications 

 
A. A Within-District Transfer Request Form should be completed and returned 
to the Office of Student Services. 

 
B. Students who desire to attend a special program may be required to 
complete a Within-District Transfer Form in the event that a program waitlist is 
necessary. 

 
C. Only one Within-District Transfer Request Form may be completed at any given 
time for an individual student. 

134



 
VII.     Determination of Schools Open to Within-District Transfers 

 
A. The Superintendent or designee will recommend which schools, programs, 
grades or classes are to be considered open to within-district transfers. 

 
B. The Superintendent or designee will base recommendations on available space, 
curriculum, class size, personnel and staffing requirements, facility issues, the 
allocation of equipment and materials, and anticipated growth for the school, program, 
grade, or class. 

 
C. The Board will approve annually any schools, programs, grades or classes that 
are to be open to within-district transfers. 

 
VIII.    K-12 Within-District Transfer Requests for the Subsequent School Year 

 
A. Application Timeline 

 
1. Applications Open: Parents may submit applications for within-district 
transfers to the Office of Student Services any time after September 1 of the 
year proceeding the school year in which the transfer would take effect if 
approved. 

 
2. Applications Deadline: Applications for within-district transfers must be 
delivered by U.S. mail postmarked on or before February 15 of the preceding 
school year or by personal delivery, received no later than 5:00 p.m. on 
February 15 of the preceding school year. Applications must be completed by 
the parent, legal guardian or emancipated minor student. 

 
3. The application period for within-district transfers will re-open after the 
open enrollment application process is completed. Within-district transfer 
applications will be accepted on a first come-first serve basis. 

 
B.        Approval Process 

 
1. Applications for within-district transfers will be approved for a 
specific building or program based upon the order outlined in Section VIII 
(C) below. 

 

 
 

2. If requests for within-district transfers exceed capacity, a random drawing 
in the order outlined in Section VIII (C) below will determine which applications 
are approved. 

 
C.        Order of Approval 

 
1. School Attendance Area Students 

a. Special Programs by Grade 
2. Other District Resident Students 

a. Millard Resident Siblings 
b. Special Programs by Grade 
c. Regular Program by Grade 

135



3. Non-Resident Open Enrollment Students 
a. Special Programs by Grade 
b. Regular Program by Grade 

4. Non-Resident Option Enrollment Students 
a. Special Programs by Grade 
b. Regular Program by Grade 

5. All other Non-Resident Students 
a. Special Programs by Grade 
b. Regular Program by Grade 

 
D. Notification to Parents: The District shall notify the parents of the approval or 
denial of their student’s request for within-district transfer on or before March 1 of the 
preceding school year. 

 
E. Acceptance by Parents: After receiving notification of approval of a 
within-district transfer, the parent shall accept such transfer in writing by completing the 
District’s enrollment process for the student on or before noon on March 10 (or noon 
the following Monday if March 10 is on a weekend) of the preceding school year. 

 
IX.       K-12 Within-District Transfers for the Current School Year 

 
A. Parents may submit applications for within-district transfers for the current 
school year to the Office of Student Services after the first day of school and prior to 
January 15 of the current year. 

 
B. The Superintendent or designee will determine whether the transfer request 
will be granted or denied after considering the following factors: 

1. The reasons for the within-district transfer request. 
2.         The time of year the transfer request is made. 
3. Personnel and staffing requirements, building or program capacity, 
curriculum, and facility issues affecting the building to which the student wishes 
to transfer. 
4. The student’s educational program including, but not limited to, course 
credits and graduation requirements. 

 
C. The District shall notify the parents of the approval or denial of their student’s 
request for within-district transfer. 

 
X.        Extenuating Circumstances. 

 
A. The Superintendent may in his/her discretion allow students to transfer to 
closed schools when extenuating circumstances warrant. 

 
B. The Superintendent may in his/her discretion determine that transfer order of 
approval for certain schools be prioritized for relieving overcrowding. 

 
XI. Special programs shall mean the District’s Core Program, Montessori Program, 
and International Baccalaureate Programmes. 

 
Student Services 
Enrollment of Students: Learning Community Open Enrollment 5100.8 

 

136



 
 
I.            General Statement 

A. For school years prior to the 2017-2018 school year, Nebraska law 
provides kindergarten through twelfth grade students residing within any member 
school district of the Learning Community of Douglas and Sarpy Counties with 
the opportunity for open enrollment in school buildings in the Learning 
Community, subject to specific limitations necessary to bring about 
socioeconomic diverse enrollments in school buildings in the Learning 
Community.  Pursuant to LB 1067 (2016), however, and for school years 
beginning with the 2017-2018 school year and thereafter, such open enrollment is 
discontinued and a transition is made back to option enrollment.  Sections I (B) 
through XIV and XVI of this Rule govern open enrollment and open enrollment 
students for school years prior to the 2017-2018 school year.  Section XV of this 
Rule and District Rule 5100.3 and LB 1067 (2016) govern the transition back to 
and option enrollment for the 2017-2018 school year and subsequent school years. 
Notwithstanding anything in this Rule seemingly to the contrary, no term or 
provision of this Rule shall be construed, interpreted, or applied in any manner 
which continues open enrollment beyond the 2016-2017 school year. 
B. Open enrollment shall be administered under the direction of the District’s 
Superintendent, and the Superintendent shall serve as the designee of the District’s 
Board of Education for any matters involving open enrollment to be acted upon by the 
Board, except as otherwise required by law or hereinafter provided.  

II.            Application Process 

A. For a student to attend the District as a Learning Community open enrollment             
student for school years prior to the 2017-2018 school year, the student, parent or legal               
guardian shall submit an application to the District from the time the application is made               
available by the Learning Community and 5:00 p.m. on March 15 of each year prior to                
2017 for open enrollment for the next school year. All such applications must either be               
postmarked by March 15 of each year prior to 2017 or personally delivered to the               
District’s Superintendent’s Office, 5606 South 147th Street, Omaha, NE 68137, by 5:00            
p.m. on March 15 of each year prior to 2017. 

B. Application forms shall be those prescribed by the Learning Community          
Coordinating Council and may be obtained from the Learning Community, 1612 North            
24th Street, Omaha, NE 68110, (402) 964-2405, www.learningcommunityds.org, or from          
the District’s Superintendent’s Office, 5606 South 147th Street, Omaha, NE 68137,           
(402) 715-8300. A separate open enrollment application is required for each student. Up             
to three, open enrollment, school buildings in the District may be listed on the open               
enrollment application, and shall be listed in the order of preference. 

C. Applications shall be accepted for the immediately following school year only for            
school years prior to the 2017-2018 school year. Applications will be dated upon receipt              
and processed in the order received. 

D. If all school buildings identified on an open enrollment application are at             
maximum capacity but the District has buildings offering the same grades which have             
remaining capacity, the District shall contact the student, parent or legal guardian and             
identify those school buildings within the District which have capacity, which the            
applicant may substitute for one or more school buildings identified on the submitted             

137



open enrollment application. 
  

E. The District shall act on or before April 1 of each year prior to 2017 to accept or                  
reject each application based on the capacity of the school building, the eligibility of the               
applicant for the school building or program, the number of such applicants that will be               
accepted for a given school building, and whether or not the applicant contributes to the               
socioeconomic diversity of the school building or program to which he or she has applied               
and for which he or she is eligible. The District shall notify the student, parent or legal                 
guardian in writing of the acceptance or rejection of the application on or before April 5 of                 
each year prior to 2017. If the application is denied, the reasons for the denial shall be                 
stated. Copies of all open enrollment applications shall also be provided to the resident              
school district and the Learning Community on or before April 5 of each year prior to                
2017. 

F. The student, parent or legal guardian must notify the District on or before April 25               
of each year prior to 2017 of their acceptance of such open enrollment placement. Such               
acceptance must be on a form provided by the District and must be postmarked by April                
25 of each year prior to 2017 or personally delivered to the District’s Superintendent’s               
Office, 5606 South 147th Street, Omaha, NE 68137, (402) 715-8300, by 5:00 p.m. on              
April 25 of each year prior to 2017. If such notice of acceptance is not received by April                  
25 of each year prior to 2017, the District shall make two documented attempts to contact                
the student, parent, or legal guardian in order to determine the status of the application. If                
the District does not receive a notice of acceptance of such open enrollment placement or               
is unable to make contact with the student, parent, or legal guardian by May 1 of each year                  
prior to 2017, the open enrollment slot shall be determined vacant and forfeited, and if               
applicable, shall be filled from the District’s wait list. 

G. Students, parents or legal guardians who have accepted an open enrollment placement             
must complete the District’s defined enrollment processes by May 15 of each year prior to               
2017. Failure to complete the District’s defined enrollment processes by May 15 of each              
year prior to 2017 shall result in the forfeiture of the open enrollment slot by the applicant,                 
and, if applicable, shall be filled from the District’s wait list. 
  
 H. Pursuant to LB 1067 (2016) and for school years beginning with the 2017-2018             
school year and thereafter, open enrollment is discontinued and a transition is made back              
to option enrollment. No applications for open enrollment for the 2017-2018 school year             
and for any subsequent school years will therefore be accepted or acted upon by the               
District. 

III.         Acceptance or Rejection of Applications 

A. The District shall accept or reject applications for open enrollment for school years             
prior to the 2017-2018 school year based on the capacity of the school building, the               
eligibility of the applicant for the school building or program, the number of such              
applicants that will be accepted for a given school building, and whether or not the               
applicant contributes to the socioeconomic diversity of the school building or program to             
which he or she has applied and for which he or she is eligible. 

B. The selection process for open enrollment applications shall be conducted on a            
“building by grade” basis, and according to the following selection priorities. 

1. The District shall give first priority for open enrollment to siblings of students              
who will be enrolled as continuing students in the requested school building or             

138



program for the first school year for which enrollment is sought in such school              
building.  

2. Second priority for open enrollment shall be given to students who contribute             
to the socioeconomic diversity of the enrollment of the building they have applied             
to attend, up to the remaining capacity of such school building.  

3. Third priority for open enrollment shall be given to students who do not              
contribute to the socioeconomic diversity of enrollment of the building they applied            
to attend, up to the remaining capacity of such school building. 

4. In the event there are fewer spaces available than the number of applications              
in a given priority category, the selection shall be determined on a random basis. 

5. If the open enrollment applications received for a school building exceed the             
remaining capacity of a school building, the District shall establish a wait list order              
for all excess applications by random selection and in the order of selection priority              
as hereinbefore provided, and open enrollment slots which become available shall           
be filled from the wait list in order. All wait lists will become null and void prior to                  
the first day of school. 

6. The District may, in its discretion, accept open enrollment applications in           
excess of the maximum capacity of a school building, in the order of selection              
priority as hereinbefore provided. 

  
IV.        Continuing Students 

A. Any student who attended a particular school building in the prior school year and              
who is seeking education in the grades offered in such school building shall be allowed to                
continue attending such school building as a continuing open enrollment student through            
the 2016-2017 school year. Pursuant to LB 1067 (2016), however, and for school years              
beginning with the 2017-2018 school year and thereafter, open enrollment is discontinued            
and a transition is made back to option enrollment. Section XV of this Rule and District                
Rule 5100.3 and LB 1067 (2016) govern the transition back to and option enrollment for               
the 2017-2018 school year and subsequent school years. Notwithstanding anything in this            
Rule seemingly to the contrary, no term or provision of this Rule shall be construed,               
interpreted, or applied in any manner which continues open enrollment beyond the            
2016-2017 school year. 

B. In December of 2016, the District shall mail notice to a parent or guardian of a                
student who is currently attending a District school building or program, except a magnet              
school, focus school, or focus program, outside of the attendance area where the student              
resides and who will complete the grades offered at such school building prior to the               
following school year, a notice stating the District school building that the student has              
been assigned to attend the following year. If the student resides within the District, the               
assigned school shall be the school in the attendance area where the student resides. 

    V.      Duties to Students 
  
Open enrollment students, once accepted, shall be treated as resident students by the District              
in all matters except transportation and within-District transfer, and except as provided in             
District Rule 5100.3 and LB 1067 (2016). 
  

139



VI.        Credits and Graduation 

The District will accept credits toward graduation that were awarded by another accredited             
school district. The District will award a diploma to an open enrollment student if the               
student meets the graduation requirements of the District. 

 VII.      Students  Ineligible for Open Enrollment 

Students who have been disqualified from the school building pursuant to the District’s             
Standards for Student Conduct, shall not be eligible for open enrollment pursuant to this Rule.               
Students may also not apply to attend a school building in the Learning Community for any                
grades that are offered by another school building for which the student had previously applied               
and been accepted pursuant to open enrollment, absent a hardship exception approved by the              
District. 

VIII.       New Residence 

Prior to the beginning of the 2017-2018 school year, a parent of a student who moves to a new                   
residence in the Learning Community after April 1 may apply directly to the District’s              
Superintendent within ninety days after moving for the student to attend a school building              
outside of the attendance area where the student resides. The District’s Superintendent shall             
accept or reject such application within fifteen days after receiving the application, based on the               
number of applications and the qualifications required for all other students. 

IX.         School Building Change for Emergency or Hardship Reasons 

A. A parent of a student who wishes to change school buildings for emergency or               
hardship reasons may apply directly to the District’s Superintendent at any time for the              
student to attend a school building outside of the attendance area where the student              
resides. Such application shall state the emergency or hardship and shall be kept             
confidential by the District. The District’s Superintendent shall accept or reject such            
application within fifteen days after receiving the application. Applications shall only be            
accepted if an emergency or hardship was presented which justified an exemption from             
the procedures of this Rule based on the judgment of the District’s Superintendent, and              
such acceptance shall not exceed the number of applications that will be accepted for the               
school year for such building. 

B. For purposes of this Rule, hardship exceptions and emergency or hardship reasons             
shall be determined on an individual basis by the Board of Education. 

X.         Information on and Verification of Qualifications for Free or Reduced-Price Lunch 
  

A. A parent may provide information on the application for open enrollment            
regarding the applicant’s potential qualification for free or reduced-price lunches. Any           
such information provided shall be subject to verification and shall only be used for the               
purposes of open enrollment. A parent is not required to provide such information.             
Determinations about an applicant’s qualification for free or reduced-price lunches for           
purposes of open enrollment shall be based on any verified information provided on the              
application. If no such information is provided the student shall be presumed not to              
qualify for free or reduced-price lunches for the purposes of open enrollment. 

B. Each year the District shall randomly select at least three percent of the open               
enrollment applications accepted, for verification of free and reduced-price lunch or           

140



non-free and reduced-price lunch status. The District may, in its discretion, verify the             
free and reduced-price lunch status of all such applications. 

XI.        Transportation or Allowance 

A. The parents or legal guardians of students participating in the open enrollment            
program shall be responsible for required transportation except as herein provided. 

B. For school years prior to the 2017-2018 school year, the District shall provide free              
transportation or pay an allowance for transportation in lieu of free transportation for a              
student who resides in the Learning Community and attends school in the District pursuant              
to open enrollment, if the student qualified for free or reduced-price lunches and lives              
more than one mile from the school to which he or she transfers, or the student is a student                   
who contributes to the socioeconomic diversity of enrollment at the school building he or              
she attends and lives more than one mile from the school to which he or she transfers, or                  
the student is attending a focus school or program approved by the Learning Community              
and lives more than one mile from the school to which he or she transfers, or the student is                   
attending a focus school or program approved by the Learning Community and lives more              
than one mile from the school building housing such focus school or program approved by               
the Learning Community, or the student is attending a magnet school or program             
approved by the Learning Community and lives more than one mile from the magnet              
school or the school housing the magnet program approved by the Learning Community. 

C. The transportation allowance which may be paid to the parent, custodial parent, or              
guardian of students qualifying for free transportation pursuant to the above Section            
XI(B), shall be in accordance with the requirements of Neb. Rev. Stat.§§ 79-611(3) and              
(4) as amended. 
  
D. Transportation or reimbursement for open enrollment option students and for option            
students for the 2017-2018 school year and the school years thereafter, shall be governed              
by subsection XV(F) of this Rule and Section VII of District Rule 5100.3 

  
XII.       Maximum Capacity of School Buildings 

A. On or before March 1 of each year prior to 2017, the District shall have completed                
and submitted an Enrollment Capacity Data Worksheet for each school building in the             
District to the Learning Community Coordinating Council, reporting the maximum          
capacity and total projected enrollment, including intradistrict transfers, if any, before           
open enrollment for each school building for the following year. 

B. In establishing a maximum capacity for each school building, the District shall            
follow the specific criteria, procedures, definitions and instructions set forth in the            
Diversity Plan of the Learning Community and the Learning Community’s Enrollment           
Capacity Data Sheets, and, in addition, shall take into consideration any unique            
circumstances having an impact on enrollment capacity. Such unique circumstances          
having an impact on enrollment capacity shall include, but shall not be limited to, planned               
expansion and increases of enrollment, projected future enrollments, growth issues          
pertaining to instructional staff, class size and unassigned instructional space, housing           
construction projections, and planned accommodations for future enrollment growth. 

XIII.     Promotional Efforts and Information 

A. The District will collaborate with the Learning Community and with the other            

141



member school districts of the Learning Community, in promotional efforts to           
encourage open enrollment participation. 

B. On or before February 15 of each year prior to 2017, the District shall make               
available to the general public certain information, in compliance with the applicable            
requirements of the Learning Community’s Diversity Plan, for each school building           
operated by the District, by sending such required information to the Learning            
Community for dissemination to the general public. 

XIV.      Open Enrollment Report 

On or before September 1 of each year prior to 2017, the District shall provide to the Learning                  
Community Coordinating Council a complete and accurate report of all open enrollment            
applications received, including the number of students who applied at each grade level at each               
building, the number of students accepted at each grade level at each building, the number of such                 
students that contributed to the socioeconomic diversity that applied and were accepted and were              
accepted, the number of applicants denied and the rationales for denial, and other such information               
as requested by the Learning Community Coordinating Council. 
  
XV. Discontinuance of Open Enrollment and Transition Back to Option Enrollment 
  

A. Pursuant to LB 1067 (2016) and for school years beginning with the 2017-2018             
school year and thereafter, open enrollment is discontinued and a transition is made back              
to option enrollment. This Section and District Rule 5100.3 and LB 1067 (2016) govern              
the transition back to and option enrollment for the 2017-2018 school year and subsequent              
school years. Notwithstanding anything in this Rule seemingly to the contrary, no term or              
provision of this Rule shall be construed, interpreted, or applied in any manner which              
continues open enrollment beyond the 2016-2017 school year. 
  
B. Each student attending a District school building as an open enrollment student for             
any part of the 2016-2017 school year shall be automatically approved as an open              
enrollment option student beginning with the 2017-2018 school year and allowed to            
continue attending such school building as an open enrollment option student without            
submitting an additional application. 

  
1. Such approval as an open enrollment option student and such continued           
attendance at such District school building does not permit the student to attend             
another school building in the District at the same grade level unless an option              
enrollment application meeting the requirements prescribed in Neb. Rev. Stat. §           
79-237 and District Rule 5100.3 is approved by the District. 
  
2. In December of 2016, the District shall mail to the parent or guardian of a               
student attending a District school building as an open enrollment student who will             
complete in the 2016-2017 school year the grades offered in such school building, a              
notice stating the District school building that the student has been assigned to             
attend the following school year. If the student resides in the District, the assigned              
school shall be the school in the attendance area where the student resides. 
  
3. In December of 2017 and each year thereafter, the District shall mail to the              
parent or guardian of a student attending a District school building as an open              
enrollment option student who will complete in the 2017-2018 school year or the             
school years thereafter the grades offered in such school building, a notice stating             

142



the District school building that the student has been assigned to attend the             
following school year. If the student resides in the District, the assigned school             
shall be the school in the attendance area where the student resides. 

  
C. Except as provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2110(3) for students attending a focus              
school, focus program, or magnet school, open enrollment option students are not            
permitted to attend another school building within the District at the same grade level              
unless an option enrollment application is approved by the District as provided in District              
Rule 5100.3.  
  
D. Upon approval of an option enrollment application, a student previously enrolled as            
an open enrollment student in the District shall be treated as an option student of the                
District without regard to his or her former status as an open enrollment student.  
  
E. Except as otherwise provided in District Rule 5100.3(III)(F) and Neb. Rev. Stat. §§             
79-234, 79-235, 79-237, 79-238 and 79-2110(3), open enrollment option students shall be            
treated as option students of the District. 
  
F. For open enrollment option students who received free transportation for the           
2016-2017 school year pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 76-611(2), the District shall continue              
to provide free transportation for the duration of the student’s status as an open enrollment               
option student or for the duration of the student’s enrollment in a pathway pursuant to               
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2110(3) unless the student relocates to a resident school district that               
would have prevented the student from qualifying for free transportation for the            
2016-2017 school year pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-611. 

  
1. A student’s duration as an open enrollment option student and such free            
transportation thus end when the student has completed the grades offered in the             
school building attended for the 2016-2017 school year, or the student is expelled             
and disqualified pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-266.01, or the student discontinues             
enrollment in the District, or the student’s application for option enrollment is            
accepted by the District, or the student relocates to a resident district that prevents              
the student from qualifying for free transportation. 

  
XVI.      Definitions 

A. “Open enrollment option student” shall mean a student who resides in another            
school district in the Learning Community, attended a school building in the District             
as an open enrollment student, and who is allowed to continue to attend such District               
school building as an open enrollment option student without submitting an           
additional application for option enrollment until the student completes the grades           
offered in such school building or unless the student has been expelled and is              
disqualified pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-266.01. 

B. “Parent” shall mean, in the case of parents who are divorcing or divorced, the              
custodial parent. 

C. “Resident school district” shall mean the public school district in which a            
student resides and which is a member school district of the Learning Community of              
Douglas and Sarpy Counties. 

D. “Sibling” shall mean all children residing in the same household on a            

143



permanent basis who have the same mother or father or who are stepbrother or              
stepsister to each other. 

E. “Student who contributes to the socioeconomic diversity of enrollment” means          
a student who does not qualify for free or reduced-price lunches when, based upon              
the certification pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-2110, the school building the student             
will attend has more students qualifying for free or reduced-price lunches than the             
average percentage of such students in all school buildings in the Learning            
Community, or a student who qualifies for free or reduced-price lunches when, based             
upon the certification pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-2110, the school building the             
student will attend has fewer students qualifying for free or reduced-price lunches            
than the average percentage of such students in all school buildings in the Learning              
Community.  

 
 
Millard School District Policy/Rule 
Student Services 

 
Enrollment of Students 
Nonresident Students:   Enrollment Option Program 5100.3 

 
I.                    General Statement.  

A. Starting with the 2017-2018 school year, Nebraska law enables any kindergarten            
through twelfth grade Nebraska student who resides in the Learning Community to attend             
a school in a Learning Community public school district in which the student does not               
reside pursuant to the Nebraska option enrollment laws and subject to limitations and             
standards authorized by law and adopted by the public school district. The option is only               
available once to each student prior to graduation. Provided however, that an option does              
not count toward such limitation if such option meets, or met at the time of the option, one                  
of the following criteria:  

  
1.       The student relocates to a different resident school district; or 
2.       The option school district merges with another district; or 
3.       The option school district is a Class I district; or 
4. The student will have completed either the grades offered in the school             
building originally attended in the option school district or the grades immediately            
preceding the lowest grade offered in the school building for which a new option is               
sought; or 
5. The option would allow the student to continue current enrollment in a school              
district; or 
6. The option would allow the student to enroll in a school district in which the                
student was previously enrolled as a student; or 
7.       The student is an open enrollment option student. 

  
B. Option enrollment shall be administered under the direction of the District’s           
Superintendent and the Superintendent shall serve as the designee of the District’s Board             
of Education for any matters involving option enrollment to be acted upon by the Board,               
except as otherwise required by law or hereinafter provided. 

  
II. Standards for Acceptance, Rejection, Transportation, and Capacity. 
  

A. Acceptance, Rejection, Transportation and Capacity. The Board shall adopt a          

144



resolution setting forth its specific standards for acceptance and rejection of applications            
as an option school district, for providing transportation for option students, and for             
acceptance or rejection of a request for release of a resident or option student submitting               
an application to an option school district after March 15 as provided in subsection III(A)               
of this Rule. The Board's adoption of a resolution does not preclude the Board from               
adopting a subsequent resolution with specific standards partially or wholly different from            
its previous resolution(s). The standards may include the capacity of a program, class,             
grade level, or school building, or the availability of appropriate special education            
programs and, in addition shall take into consideration any unique circumstances having            
an impact on enrollment capacity. Such unique circumstances having an impact on            
enrollment capacity shall include, but shall not be limited to, planned expansion and             
increases of enrollment, projected future enrollments, growth issues pertaining to          
instructional staff, class size and unassigned instructional space, housing construction          
projections, and planned accommodations for future enrollment growth. To facilitate          
option enrollment in the Learning Community, the District shall annually establish and            
report a maximum capacity for each District school building pursuant to procedures,            
criteria and deadlines established by the Learning Community Coordinating Council, and           
provide a copy of the standards for acceptance and rejection of applications and             
transportation policies for option students to the Learning Community Coordinating          
Council. Standards shall not include previous academic achievement, athletic or other           
extracurricular ability, disabilities, proficiency in the English language, or previous          
disciplinary proceedings except as provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-266.01. Standards for            
acceptance or rejection of a request for release shall not include that a request occurred               
after the deadline set forth in subsection III(A) of this Rule. The District may by               
resolution declare a program, class, grade level, or school building unavailable to option             
students due to a lack of capacity 
  
B. Priorities for Option Enrollment. Priority for acceptance of applications received           
shall be as follows: 

  
1.       For applications received on or before the March 15th deadline: 

  
a. First priority for option enrollment shall be for siblings of option students              
enrolled in the District.  
b. Second priority shall be for enrollment of students who have previously             
been enrolled in the District as an open enrollment student.  
c. Third priority shall be for enrollment of students who reside in the Learning               
Community and who contribute to the socioeconomic diversity of enrollment          
at the school building to which the student will be assigned.  
d. Fourth priority shall be for enrollment of other students who reside in the               
Learning Community.  
e. The District shall not be required to accept a student meeting the priority               
criteria if the program, class, grade level, or school building is at capacity,             
except as provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-240 and subsection III(D)(7) of this              
Rule. 

  
2. In the event there are fewer spaces available than the number of applications               
in a given priority category, the selection shall be determined on a random basis.              
All wait lists will become null and void prior to the first day of school. 
  
3. For applications received after the March 15th deadline and for which space             
is available in the program, class, grade level, or school building, selection shall be              
based upon the date and time of submittal of the application to the District with the                

145



earliest date and time of submittal receiving priority. 
  
III. Application and Cancellation Process. 
  

A. Application. Commencing with applications for attendance which begins with the          
2017-2018 school year, to attend an option school district, the student's parents or legal              
guardian shall submit an application to the board of education of the option school district               
between September 1, 2016 and September 1 for all subsequent years and March 15, 2017               
and March 15 for all subsequent years for enrollment during the following and subsequent              
school years. If the District is the option school district, the application shall be delivered               
to the office of the Superintendent or Superintendent's designee. Applications submitted           
after March 15, 2017 and March 15 for all subsequent years shall contain a release               
approval from the resident school district on the application form prescribed and furnished             
by the Department of Education. The option school district may not accept or approve              
any applications submitted after such date without such a release approval. The option             
school district shall provide the resident school district with the name of the applicant on               
or before April 1, 2017 and April 1 for all subsequent years or, in the case of an                  
application submitted after March 15 as provided in Section III(A)(9) of this Rule, within              
forty-five days after submission. 

  
1. The student’s parents or legal guardian shall use the application and           
cancellation forms furnished by the Department of Education.  

2. A separate application is required for each student. 

3. Applications shall be accepted for the immediately following school year          
only. 

4. Siblings of option students shall make their own independent application for           
attendance as an option student. 

5. A particular school within a school district may be requested, but the school             
assignment of the option student shall be determined by the option school district             
except as provided in subsection III(F)(1) of this Rule for open enrollment option             
students and Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2110(3) for students attending a focus school,             
focus program, or magnet school. 

6. A parent or guardian may provide information on the application regarding           
the applicant’s potential qualification for free or reduced-price lunches. Any such           
information provided shall be subject to verification and shall only be used for the              
purposes of Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-238(4). Nothing in this subsection requires a             
parent or guardian to provide such information. Determinations about an          
applicant’s qualification for free or reduced-price lunches for purposes of Neb. Rev.            
Stat. § 79-238(4) shall be based on any verified information provided on the             
application. If no such information is provided, the student shall be presumed not             
to qualify for free or reduced-price lunches for the purposes of Neb. Rev. Stat. §               
79-238(4). Each year the District shall randomly select at least three percent of the              
option enrollment applications accepted, for verification of free or reduced-price          
lunch status. The District may, in its discretion, audit to verify the free and              
reduced-price lunch status of all such applications.  
  
7. Applications for students who do not actually attend the option school           
district may be withdrawn in good standing upon mutual agreement by both the             

146



resident and option school districts. 
  
8. False or substantially misleading information submitted by a parent or          
guardian on an application to an option school district may be cause for the option               
school district to reject an application or to reject a previously accepted application             
if the rejection occurs prior to the student’s attendance as an option student. 
  
 9. Students who relocate to a different resident school district after February 1,            
2017 and February 1 for all subsequent years or, whose option school district             
merges with another district effective after February 1, 2017 and February 1 of all              
subsequent years may submit an application to an option school district for            
attendance during the immediately following and subsequent years. Such         
application does not require the release approval of the resident district and the             
option school district shall accept or reject such application within forty-five days. 

  
B. Cancellation. No option student shall attend an option school district for less than             
one (1) school year unless the student relocates to a different resident school district,              
completes requirements for graduation prior to the end of the student's senior year,             
transfers to a private or parochial school, or upon mutual agreement of the resident and               
option school district to cancel the enrollment option and return to the resident school              
district. Except as provided in the preceding sentence or, for open enrollment option             
students as provided in subsection III(F) of this Rule, the option student shall attend the               
option school district until graduation unless the student relocates in a different resident             
school district, transfers to a private or parochial school, or chooses to return to the               
resident school district. In case of cancellation, the student's parents or legal guardian             
shall provide written notification to the school boards of the option and resident school              
districts on forms prescribed and furnished by the Department of Education in advance of              
such cancellation.   
  
C. Waiver of Deadlines. Upon agreement of the school boards of the resident and             
option school districts, the deadlines for application and approval or rejection may be             
waived. 
  
D. Acceptance by District. 

  
 1. The District shall accept or reject applications based on the capacity of the             
school building, the eligibility of the applicant for the school building program, the             
number of such applicants that will be accepted for a given school building, and in               
the order of selection priority as hereinbefore provided. 
  
2. The selection process shall be conducted on a “building by grade” basis. In             
the event the applications to a building exceed the capacity of such building, the              
selection shall be in the order of selection priority as hereinbefore provided. 
  
3. If all school buildings identified on an application are at maximum capacity            
but the District has buildings offering the same grades which have remaining            
capacity, the District may communicate with the student, parent or legal guardian            
and identify those school buildings within the District which have capacity, which            
the applicant may substitute for one or more school buildings identified on the             
submitted application. 
  
4. If the applications received for a school building exceed the remaining           
capacity of a school building, the District shall establish a wait list for all excess               

147



applications in the order of selection priority as hereinbefore provided, and option            
enrollment slots which become available shall be filled from the wait list in order.              
All wait lists will become null and void prior to the first day of school. 
  
5. The District may, in its discretion, accept option enrollment applications in           
excess of the maximum capacity of a school building, in the order of selection              
priority as hereinbefore provided. 
  
6. The District shall notify, in writing, the parent or legal guardian of the             
student and the resident school district whether the application is accepted or            
rejected on or before April 1 or, in the case of an application submitted after March                
15 as provided in Section III(A)(9) of this Rule, within forty-five days after             
submission. 
  
7. The following students shall be automatically accepted and the deadlines          
prescribed in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-234 shall be waived: 

  
a. Students who relocate in a different school district but want to continue             
attending the original resident school district and who have been enrolled in            
the original resident school district for the immediately preceding two (2)           
years. 

  
b. Option students who relocate in a different school district but want to             
continue attending the option school district. 

  
c. An option student who subsequently chooses to attend a private or            
parochial school and who is not an open enrollment option student shall be             
automatically accepted to return to either the resident or option school           
district upon the completion of the grade levels offered at the private or             
parochial school. If such student chooses to return to the option school            
district, the student’s parents or legal guardian shall submit another          
application to the option school district’s board of education which shall be            
automatically accepted, and the application deadlines shall be waived. 

  
 E. Completion of Enrollment Processes. 

  
  
1. The parents or legal guardians of a student who has been accepted by the              
District for an option enrollment placement, must complete the District’s defined           
enrollment processes by May 15. Failure to complete the District’s defined           
enrollment processes by May 15 shall result in the forfeiture of the option             
enrollment slot by the applicant, and, if applicable, shall be filled from the District’s              
wait list.  
  

F.  Open Enrollment Option Students.  
  
1. Each student attending a school building of the District as an open            
enrollment student pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2110 for any part of the              
2016-2017 school year shall be automatically approved as an open enrollment           
option student beginning with the 2017-2018 school year and allowed to continue            
attending such school building as an open enrollment option student without           
submitting an additional application.  
  

148



2. Except as provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2110(3) for students attending a             
focus school, focus program, or magnet school, such approval as an open            
enrollment option student pursuant to this subsection does not permit the student to             
attend another school building within the District at the same grade level unless an              
application meeting the requirements prescribed in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-237 and            
this Rule is approved by the District. 
  
3. Upon approval of an application meeting the requirements prescribed in          
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-237, a student previously enrolled as an open enrollment             
student in the District shall be treated as an option student of the District without               
regard to his or her former status as an open enrollment student.  
  
4. In December of 2016 and each year thereafter, the District shall mail to the              
parent or guardian of a student who is currently attending a District school building              
or program, except a magnet school, focus school, or focus program, as either an              
open enrollment option student or an option student, and who will complete the             
grades offered at such school building prior to the following school year, a notice              
stating the District school building that the student has been assigned to attend the              
following school year. If the student resides in the District, the assigned school shall              
be the school in the attendance area where the student resides.  
  
5. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection and Neb. Rev. Stat. §§            
79-234, 79-235, 79-237, 79-238 and 79-2110(3), open enrollment option students          
shall be treated as option students of the District. 

  
IV. Notification of Rejection of Application or Request for Release and Right to Appeal. If an               
application or request for release is rejected by the District in its capacity as an option or resident                  
school district, the District shall provide written notification sent by certified mail to the parent or                
guardian stating the reasons for the rejection and the process for appealing such rejection to the                
State Board of Education. The parent or legal guardian may appeal the rejection to the State Board                 
of Education within thirty (30) days after the date the notification of the rejection was received by                 
the parent or legal guardian. 
  
V. Treatment of Option Students. For purposes of all duties, entitlements, and rights            
established by law, including special education as provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-1127, except as                
provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-241 and, for open enrollment option students, except as provided                
in subsection III(F) of this Rule, option students shall be treated as resident students of the option                 
school district. 
  
VI. Accepting Credits. If the District is the option school district, it will accept credits toward               
graduation that were awarded by the resident school district. Further, the District shall award              
diplomas to option students if the student meets the District's graduation requirements.  

  
VII. Transportation or Reimbursement. This Section constitutes the District’s specific standards          
for providing transportation for open enrollment option student and for option students for the              
2017-2018 school year and the school years thereafter. 

  
A. Except as otherwise provided by law, Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-611 and District Rule              
3811.1 do not apply to the transportation of option students. 
  
B. The parent or legal guardian of the option student shall be responsible for             
transportation except as herein provided. 
  

149



C. Option students who qualify for free lunches shall be eligible for transportation             
reimbursement as described in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-611 from the District, except that they               
shall be reimbursed at the rate of one hundred forty-two and one-half percent of the               
mandatorily established mileage rate provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 81-1176 for each mile              
actually and necessarily traveled on each day of attendance by which the distance traveled              
one way from the residence of such student to the schoolhouse exceeds three miles. 
  
D. For open enrollment option students who received free transportation for the           
2016-2017 school year pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-611(2), the District shall continue              
to provide free transportation for the duration of the student’s status as an open enrollment               
option student or for the duration of the student’s enrollment in a pathway pursuant to               
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2110(3) unless the student relocates to a resident school district that               
would have prevented the student from qualifying for free transportation for the            
2016-2017 school year pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-611(2). A student’s duration as              
an open enrollment option student and such free transportation thus end when a student              
has completed the grades offered in the open enrollment school building attended during             
the 2016-2017 school year, or the student is expelled and disqualified pursuant to Neb.              
Rev. Stat. § 79-266.01, or the student discontinues enrollment in the District, or the              
student’s application for option enrollment is accepted by the District, or the student             
relocates to a resident school district that prevents the student from qualifying for free              
transportation. 
  
E. For option students verified as having a disability as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §               
79-118.01, the transportation services set forth in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-1129 shall be              
provided by the resident school district. 

  
VIII. Definitions.  

  
A. "Department of Education" shall mean the Nebraska State Department of          
Education. 
  
B. "Enrollment Option Program" shall mean the program established in Neb. Rev.           
Stat. § 79-234. 
  
C. “Learning Community” shall mean the Learning Community of Douglas and Sarpy           
Counties. 
  
D. “Open enrollment option student” shall mean a student who resides in a school             
district in the Learning Community, who attended a school building in another school             
district in the Learning Community as an open enrollment student, and who is allowed to               
continue to attend such school building as an open enrollment option student without             
submitting an additional application for option enrollment until the student completes the            
grades offered in such school building or unless the student has been expelled and is               
disqualified pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-266.01. 
  
E. "Option school district" shall mean the public school district that a student chooses             
to attend other than the student's resident school district. 
  
F. "Option student" shall mean a student that has chosen to attend an option school              
district, including an open enrollment option student or a student who resides in the              
Learning Community and began attendance as an option student in an option school             
district in such Learning Community prior to the 2009-2010 school year, but for school              
years prior to the 2017-2018 school year does not include a student who resides in the                

150



Learning Community and who attends another school district in the Learning Community            
as an open enrollment student. 
  
G. "Parents" shall mean, in the case of parents who are divorcing or divorced, the              
custodial parent. 
  
H. "Resident school district" shall mean the public school district in which a student             
resides or the school district in which the student is admitted as a resident of the school                 
district pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-215. 
  
I. "Siblings" shall mean all children residing in the same household on a permanent             
basis who have the same mother or father or who are stepbrother or stepsister to each                
other. 
  
J. “Student who contributes to the socioeconomic diversity of enrollment” shall mean           
a student who does not qualify for free or reduced-price lunches when based upon the               
certification pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2120, the school building the student will be               
assigned to attend either has more students qualifying for free or reduced-price lunches             
than the average percentage of such students in all school buildings in the Learning              
Community or provides free meals to all students pursuant to the community eligibility             
provision, or a student who qualifies for free or reduced-price lunches based on             
information collected voluntarily from parents and guardians pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat §             
79-237 when, based upon the certification pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2120, the              
school building the student will be assigned to attend has fewer students qualifying for              
free or reduced-price lunches than the average percentage of such students in all school              
buildings in the Learning Community and does not provide free meals to all students              
pursuant to the community eligibility provision. 

 
Transportation Option Summary 
When students move outside the attendance area of their current school, they may continue to 
attend their current school via an open enrollment application as provided for in state statutes. 
Under such circumstances transportation services are provided (or continued) under the 
provisions of Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-611 noted hereinabove. 

 
4. Describe any additional services, supports, or resources available for students 

who miss instruction due to absence or mobility.  
 

A. Teacher provides work missed due to absence per policies 5200.1 (E) and 6235.1 
(3) 
Make-up Work for Excused and Unexcused Absences 

a. Schoolwork missed due to an excused or unexcused absence, must 
be completed to the satisfaction of each teacher whose class was 
missed. 

b. Students will have a minimum of one (1) school day for each day of 
absence, to make up missed schoolwork. Students who do not make up their 
work within the prescribed time limits will not receive credit for the work 
missed. 

c. Make-up work may be provided prior to a planned absence if the lessons and 
assignments have already been planned for and prepared by the teacher in the 
context of having created the weekly lesson plans. Make-up work provided to 
a student in advance of their absence does not guarantee that no additional 
work may need to be completed upon their return to school. Students who do 
not request missed work in advance will be provided all assigned work when 

151



the student returns from an absence. 
d. Providing early or late semester exams is at the discretion of the 

building principal or the principal’s designee. 
 

During prolonged absence due to illness, the parent may call the school 
office to make arrangements for picking up the missed work. 

 
When the school administration has given approval for a student to 
participate in school sponsored programs, such as High Ability Learners 
(HAL) Seminars, music programs, dramatics, or athletics, the student should 
not be penalized for not being present to take tests and participate in the daily 
work. The student shall be given an opportunity to make up any work 
missed. 

 
B. The Millard Public Schools Response to Instruction + Intervention (RtI+I) Model is a 

systematic, data-driven approach to instruction that utilizes all resources within a 
school and the district in a collaborative manner to create a single, well-integrated 
system of instruction and interventions informed by student data. The model focuses 
on the individual student and provides a vehicle to strengthen performance for 
struggling students before educational problems increase in intensity and special 
education seems the only viable option. Analyzing how students respond to 
instruction and implementing the model, promotes collaboration and shared 
responsibility for the learning of all students across all personnel and programs 
located in any given school. Throughout the process decisions are based on a child’s 
response to scientific, research-based instruction and intervention. The Millard 
Public Schools RtI+I is a 3-Tier Model that provides a process for delivering 
comprehensive, quality instruction to all students, from preschool through high 
school. The model is designed to provide research-based instruction and targeted 
intervention that leads to successful academic achievement. The model consists of 
three tiers of instruction: Tier I, Tier II, and Tier III. 

 
C. Summer School and Night School are available for students who need 

additional access. 
 
Poverty Plan – Parental Involvement 

 

5. Describe parent/family engagement opportunities at the school-building level that are 
tailored for parents in poverty and from diverse backgrounds.  

 
All parents are encouraged to serve on school improvement teams. The opportunity 
includes developing school improvement plans and evaluating the success of the plans. 
Parents are also given input on major school decisions such as scheduling, activities and 
school calendars. 

 
Administrators of Title I Schoolwide and Targeted Assistance buildings conduct annual 
parent involvement meetings to update the building Title I Parent Involvement Policy 
and Parent-Teacher-Student Compacts. 

 
 
6. Describe parent/family engagement opportunities at the school-district level that are 

tailored for parents in poverty and from diverse backgrounds.  
 

152



The Millard District seeks parental involvement through District policy 10,000. This policy 
and rule calls teams of teachers, parents, administrators and staff to lead each school 
improvement team and deal with many issues including those that impact students in 
poverty. 

 
Through the 2013 District Strategic Plan - Action plan 2.5, the District is also actively 
working on examining demographic trends and developing strategies to address the unique 
needs of each student including students of poverty. Parental input and involvement in 
parent/teacher conferences and other school programs is annually examined to determine 
how to best involve parents. 

 
 
7. Describe methods used to secure input and participation by parents of poverty 

and other diverse backgrounds.   
 

The Millard Board of Education recognizes that strategic planning, site-based planning, and 
school improvement decision-making provide the opportunity for school personnel, parents, 
community members, and students to collaborate in the development and success of the 
school district. This involvement will promote increased school achievement for all students 
and specifically for students in poverty and will also improve the educational process. 

 
The District uses a Strategic Planning Team consisting of administrators, parents, teachers, 
staff members and students to write and update the District Strategic Plan on an ongoing 
basis. 

 
The strategic planning team: 

 
●Reviews the existing plan and initiate changes. 

 
●Rewrites the plan to address critical issues. 

 
●Recommends an implementation schedule for action plans. 

 
●Determines which plans are operational. 

 
This team addresses issues for students in poverty. 

 
8. Describe any additional services, supports, or resources to promote 

parent/family engagement of parents in poverty and other diverse 
backgrounds.  

 
There is a concerted effort to recruit parent volunteers on all site planning committees. The 
Millard Public Schools has an exceptional record of parental involvement in setting the 
direction for our school system and at each school site. Thousands of parents have been 
involved over the 27 years that the Millard has used our current strategic planning model. 

 
Additionally the superintendent meets with building PTOs/PTAs and facilitates a Parent 
Advisory Committee. In 2015-2016, the superintendent hosted the first Advisory 
Committee of Service Organizations. The goal of the advisory committee is 1) to build 
relationships and learn about the local service organizations serving MPS and 2) to 
communicate the services that MPS students/families need.  The committee will continue in 
2017-18 and 2018-19 and include more service organizations in the Omaha community that 

153



support MPS families. 
 
Poverty Plan – Instructional Services 

 

9. Describe the policies, procedures, or practices to reduce or maintain small class sizes 
in the elementary grades and to implement special supports at the secondary level to 
ensure academic success.  

 
The District makes every attempt to keep K-1 classrooms in our higher poverty schools at 20 
or fewer.  Intermediate classrooms (3-5) are capped at 28.  Policy 4005.1 states that 
paraprofessionals may be assigned to assist a K-2 classroom that is at or above 25 per 
classroom and/or an intermediate classroom that is at or above 28 per classroom. 
 
The District offers several programs to support academic success at the secondary level. 
Some of these programs include: food pantry pick up available at secondary sites, clothing 
exchange coordinated by social workers at secondary level, Avenue Scholars, College 
Possible, Math and Literacy intervention programs, Access College Early scholarships for 
students receiving free or reduced lunch, and many dual enrollment and AP course 
opportunities.  

 
In addition to the programs listed above, at Millard South High School, our school with the 
highest level of free and reduced lunch students, we have implemented additional supports 
for students to access ACT Test Prep.  We have contracted with the On to College-John 
Baylor Test Prep company to provide face-to-face and online test preparation.  In addition, 
the Early College program is located at Millard South.  Students earn their Associate’s 
Degree while also earning high school credit.  Students who qualify for free and reduced 
lunch participate at no cost. 

 
 
10. Describe the policies, procedures or practices for designating uninterrupted teaching 

time on a weekly basis.  
 

MPS ensures that teaching time is free of interruption. MPS goes above and beyond the 
minimal requirements of Rule 10 for 1032 hours for Grades 1-8 and 1080 hours for Grades 
9-12.   In 2017-18, MPS has 179 student days in its calendar and makes up a maximum of 4 
snow days as needed.  

 
Principals at all levels are provided assistance in scheduling and have, over time developed 
schedules that minimize disruptions to the educational environment for activities such as 
band and strings lessons, world language instruction, local and state assessments and similar 
activities. 

 
11. Describe the policies, procedures, or practices the district implements to limit 

school day interruptions.  
 

The calendar is developed considering input from our Board of Education parameters and a 
large committee of parents and staff who meet periodically with the idea of providing the 
best academic calendar possible. 

 
 
12. If the school district is a member of a learning community, describe the services 

provided by the achievement subcouncil as part of the elementary learning center and 
district coordination with the center.  

154



 
Elementary Learning Centers do not currently exist for Subdistrict #4 of which the Millard 
Public Schools is a part. We will coordinate with the Elementary Centers when/if they 
become available. The District participates in the Elementary Learning Center Summer 
Program through Learning Community allocations and subcouncil.  Should this program be 
revised or amended due to the passing of LB 1067 (2016), this may change in the 
2017-2018 school year. 

 
 

13. If the school district is a member of a learning community, describe the 
coordination activities between the school district, individual attendance centers 
and the elementary learning centers.  

 
In addition, the District will apply for funding for “pilot programs” to address the 
achievement needs of students of poverty as funding becomes available through the 
Learning Community’s Elementary Learning Center Task Force, the Learning Community 
Coordinating Council, and via the Superintendents’ Early Childhood Education Plan. Two 
of the District’s schools, Cody and Sandoz, are “Full Implementation” schools and are 
working with the Buffett Early Childhood Institute on early childhood issues Birth to Grade 
3. 

 
Poverty Plan – Specialized Services 
14. Describe the early childhood programs available in the district.  

 
We offer a continuum of services and resources for families and young children in Millard 
Public Schools: 

 
Drop In and Play: Parents and caregivers of young children (birth to age 5) are invited to 
bring their youngsters and join together to play, sing, read and create.  Participation is free. 

 
Circle of Friends/Storytime: This is a monthly storytime for preschoolers and their parents or 
caregivers. Story time lasts approximately 30 minutes. Simple stories, songs and rhymes are 
provided along with activities to use at home.  Preschool age-appropriate books are also 
available for checkout. Sessions are held at over a dozen MPS elementary schools. 

 
Partners With Providers:  This home visitation program is offered by Millard Public Schools 
to providers in the neighborhoods of Bryan, Cody, Holling, Norris, Sandoz, Neihardt, Disney, 
Rockwell, Morton and Hitchcock. A certified teacher visits the homes of providers on a monthly 
basis and shares preschool reading activities. This program is free, and licensed providers can 
receive in-service hours by participating. 

 
MPS Family Resource Center:  The Family Resource Center provides a lending library of 
educational toys, puzzles, children’s books and parenting resources for families who live in the 
Millard Public School District. Activities and learning opportunities are also available for 
families and young children. 
 
Home-Visitation Program - Select schools have home visitors who provide regular 
individualized home visits using a structured home visiting model and curriculum.  Home 
visitors also participate in parent-child group meetings, transition to school events, and other 
school based activities. Home visitors collaborate and communicate with a variety of 
community partners to promote the mutual access of children and families to community 
services that are responsive to their needs. Our home visitors are grant funded through the 

155



Learning Community as part of the Superintendent’s Early Childhood Plan. Their work is 
facilitated in collaboration with the Buffett Early Childhood Institute. We also have a home 
visitor funded through a Sixpence grant. 
 
Family Facilitator - Select schools have family facilitators who provide outreach to families of 
enrolled PK through Grade 3 children. Family Facilitators collaborate with home visitors and 
school staff to facilitate parent-child groups, book bag exchange and family partnership 
activities that increase families’ confidence, skills, and opportunities to advocate for their 
children’s education. They support transitions for children and families across all levels and 
collaborate with community partners that will assist in linking families to support services and 
resources. Our family facilitators are grant funded through the Learning Community as part of 
the Superintendent’s Early Childhood Plan and their work is facilitated in collaboration with 
the Buffett Early Childhood Institute.  
  
Preschool Programs: The Millard Public Schools provide Half-day and Full day preschool 
options for young children. 

 
3 Year Olds: (3 years old on or before July 31) 

● Early Childhood Special Education Half-Day and Itinerant Services for children with 
verified disabilities 

● Title I and ELL eligible Half-Day program with limited availability at Cody, 
Cottonwood, Hitchcock, Rockwell, Sandoz and Wheeler Elementary Schools. 

● Early Childhood Special Education Itinerant Services for children with verified 
disabilities 

● Montessori Preschool Program at Norris and Montclair Elementary Schools. The 
Montessori program is an option that provides an environment consistent with Dr. Maria 
Montessori’s philosophy in which children learn through spontaneous and prescribed 
activities based on developmental needs as they become self-directed.  (parent pay) 

 
 
4 Year Olds: (4 years old on or before July 31) 

● Half-Day and Full Day options for children that combine Title I/ELL, Early Childhood 
Special Education, and Parent Pay programs with limited availability at Bryan, Cody, 
Cottonwood, Hitchcock, Holling Heights, Neihardt, Norris, Rockwell, Sandoz, Wheeler 
Elementary Schools. 

● Early Childhood Special Education Itinerant Services for children with verified 
disabilities 

● Montessori Preschool Program Half-Day and Full Day options at Norris and Montclair 
Elementary Schools (parent pay) 

 
15. Describe how children in poverty are provided access to early childhood programs.  

 
The parents of children who are not already receiving special education services complete 
an application and screening process to enroll in our preschool programs. A standardized 
developmental screening test is administered to each child. Results are shared with families 
at the conclusion of the assessment. The results are also used to prioritize the need for Title 
I-funded preschool openings. 

 
 
16. Describe how children in poverty are provided access to social workers or licensed 

mental health practitioners.  
 

The Millard Public School District employs ten social workers.  Our social workers serve 

156



all 35 of our schools.  The social workers are placed directly in the schools of need and 
serve multiple buildings.  The social worker serves as the point of contact for numerous 
community agencies.  Our social workers make home visits and also help families with 
basic needs, attendance concerns, and mental health support.  When an issue arises where 
any social worker may provide expertise, they do so in an expeditious manner.  Teachers, 
administrators and parents request assistance from these valued staff members. They are 
critical liaisons for a variety of services which include medical, mental health, counseling, 
community charities, legal assistance and other relevant government agencies. 

 
 
17. Describe summer school programs for students in poverty.  

 
The plan is to provide summer school opportunities for students to take remedial classes in 
reading, writing and mathematics as well as enrichment and for-credit electives. Qualified 
students will have fees and tuition waived. Transportation for qualified students will be 
provided. 

 
 
18. Describe extended-school-day programs for students in poverty.  

 
Extended school day programs exist at specific schools and are funded by grants from the 
MPS Foundation and other sources. These programs focus on homework assistance, 
academic improvement in reading and math, and increasing the 40 Developmental Assets in 
students. 

 
19. Describe extended-school-year programs for students in poverty.  

 
Summer school attendance is provided at no cost for students of poverty.  The District also 
uses resources from the Elementary Learning Center of the Learning Community to provide 
academic and social programs for students of poverty, grades K-2. 

 
 
20. Describe other specialized services, supports, or resources for children in poverty.  

 
As set forth in the District Strategic Plan, we will develop and implement plans utilizing 
instructional best practices, formative and summative assessments, and student data 
designed to ensure that all students are college and career ready.  This includes examining 
demographic trends and developing strategies to address the unique needs of each student. 
Activities which support this objective include the following: 

 
The Food Bank of the Heartland weekend BackPack Program will be available through nine 
elementary schools and one middle school with the highest percentages of students in 
poverty.   In addition, we have added a monthly community food pantry distribution 
program. 

 
The Ronald McDonald Care Mobile provides free dental exams and other services in a 
mobile unit and is available to schools whose Free and Reduced Price Lunch rate is at or 
above 50%. The Care Mobile has visited our summer Elementary Learning Center 
programs as well as three elementary sites during the school year.  Going forward, we 
intend to continue coordinating with One World Community Health Center to provide this 
service to children in need of dental care. 

 
We have researched and redesigned a model to develop a comprehensive system of learning 

157



supports to ensure all students have an equal opportunity to succeed at school (Center for 
Mental Health in Schools at UCLA, 2007).  Collaborative conversations have occurred at 
the building level to begin a resource-mapping process, which will culminate in a 
district-wide comprehensive plan. 

 

As a result of the Superintendents’ Early Childhood Plan, we are partnering with the Buffett 
Early Childhood Institute to provide intensive, continuous, evidence-based services for 
young children with a focus on home visiting for birth to 3-year-olds, intensive preschool 
for 3- and 4-year-olds, and aligned preschool and early elementary curricula from 
Kindergarten through Grade 3. 

 
In addition, Millard Public Schools has been awarded a Sixpence grant to start a home-based               
Family Engagement program designed to provide high quality early childhood experiences           
to children from birth to age three. 
 
We have also provided additional professional development and instructional support at 
three of our Title Schools (Cody, Sandoz, and Holling Heights) for reading intervention. 

 
 
Poverty Plan – Professional Development 

 

21. Describe the district policies, procedures, or practices for mentoring new or newly 
assigned teachers. 

 
The purpose of the MPS Induction Program is to maximize staff potential and impact student achievement 
by cultivating relationships that foster personal growth and effectiveness in the District. 
 
I. All first-year and newly employed certificated or licensed staff members (in their first three  
years of employment) will participate in the MPS Induction Program. 
 
II.          Definitions: 
 

A.  Staff members participating in the MPS Induction Program are newly employed certificated or 
licensed staff members. 

 
B.  A mentor will be defined as a certificated or licensed staff member who has been employed by 
the District for a minimum of three (3) years, who is not the first-year or newly employed 
staff member’s supervisor, or an administrator in the District, who is regularly employed 
by the District for the instruction of students, who has received mentor training, who has 
demonstrated the competencies necessary for successful teaching, and who assists a 
first-year or newly employed staff member toward mastery of teaching competencies. A 
mentor is assigned a mentee by his/her building principal, supervisor, or Leadership & 
Learning Department designee and is paid a stipend for providing mentoring services to a 
first-year or newly employed staff member. Participation is voluntary  for the mentor. 
 
C.  A buddy will be defined as  a certificated  or licensed  staff member  who  has  not completed 
the mentor training, but has been identified by his/her building principal or supervisor as 
demonstrating the competencies necessary for successful teaching and is deemed 
appropriate to assist a first- year or newly employed staff member toward successful 
assimilation into the District and building culture. A buddy is assigned a newly employed 
staff member by his/her building principal, supervisor, or Leadership & Learning 
Department designee. A buddy is not eligible for a stipend. 
 

158



D.  A mentee will be defined as a first-year or newly employed certificated staff member who has 
been assigned a mentor. 
 
E.  A curriculum contact will be defined as a certificated or licensed staff member who has been 
identified as demonstrating the competencies necessary for successful teaching and is 
deemed appropriate to assist a first-year or newly employed staff member toward master 
of teaching competencies. A curriculum contact is assigned a PreK-12, first-year or newly 
employed staff member specialist only when that first-year or newly employed staff 
member specialist is the only specialist in his/her position in the building. A curriculum 
contact is assigned  by  the Leadership & Learning Department designee. A curriculum 
contact is paid a stipend when they are a trained  district  mentor. 
 
F.  A Peer Coaching partner will be defined as a certificated or licensed staff member who has 
been identified by his/her building principal or supervisor as demonstrating the 
competencies necessary for successful teaching and is deemed appropriate to participate in 
Peer Coaching as a partner to a certificated or licensed staff member who is in his/her 
second year of employment with the District. 

 
III.         The MPS Induction Program will include but not be limited to the following. 
 

A. Year One: Assignment of a mentor, buddy, or curriculum contact as appropriate for each  
first-year or newly employed staff member. This assignment, along with supervision from the 
building principal, is intended to ensure support for each first-year or newly employed 
staff member, assistance toward the mastery of teaching competencies, and successful 
assimilation into the District and building culture. A mentor handbook outlining 
procedures, roles and responsibilities is provided to all mentors, mentees and 
administrators. 
 
B. Year Two: Assignment of a Peer Coaching partner will be made for each certificated or 
licensed staff member in his/her second year of employment with the District. This 
assignment, along with supervision from the building principal, is intended to ensure that 
this certificated or licensed staff member gains increased understanding of the Indicators 
of Effective Teaching and Learning. 
 
C. Year Three: Staff members in their third year of employment will participate in Extended  
Professional Experiences for certificated or licensed staff. 
 
D. Information about the MPS Induction Program will be communicated on the Leadership & 
Learning website. 

 
22. Describe staff development that provides teachers and administrators with the 
knowledge and skills required to address the educational needs of students  in poverty and 
students  from diverse backgrounds.  

 
 

2008-2019 Culturally Responsive Teaching Training in Millard Public Schools 
 

In 2007, Millard Public Schools (MPS) formed a professional relationship with University of             
Nebraska at Omaha professors, Dr. Nancy Edick, Dr. Sarah Edwards and Dr. Laura Schulte. The               
goal of this relationship was to provide culturally responsive teaching training to all certificated              
staff in MPS. Drs. Edick & Edwards are well known in the education field for their research and                  
expertise on culturally responsive teaching. Recently retired, Dr. Laura Schulte was one of             
UNO’s experts in the areas of research and statistical analysis. The cultural responsive teaching              

159



training was scheduled for a multi-year implementation that would take MPS staff from an              
awareness phase to an internalization phase. By investing in this professional development, MPS             
fulfilled many goals including but not limited to the state requirements for the poverty plan and                
supporting the District strategic plan and mission. 

 
All 1800 certificated staff participated in the multi-year training. The training had two phases.              
Due to the size of MPS staff included, the staff development was planned to be implemented by                 
grade levels of elementary, middle and high school. Phase one included a four hour awareness               
workshop and one hour focus group. Phase two included a year of on-line learning that can be                 
repeated each year with updated materials/activities. The charts below reflect the staff involved             
in each phase by year. 

 
 

Phase 1 
 

Summer 2008 2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 
 

Building & 
District 

Administrators 

Elementary Staff 
PK-12 

Psychologists 
PK-12 SpEd Itinerant Staff 

Middle School Staff 
New Elementary 
Staff 

New PK-12 Psychologists 
New PK-12 SpEd Itinerant 
Staff 

New Administrators 

High School Staff 
New Middle School Staff 

New Elementary Staff 
New PK-12 

Psychologists 
New PK-12 SpEd Itinerant 
Staff New Administrators 

 

Phase 2 
 

2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2013 – Reaching Each Student 
Elementary Staff 

PK-12 
Psychologists 

PK-12 SpEd Itinerant Staff 
Elementary Administrators 

Middle School 
Staff Elementary 

Staff 
PK-12 Psychologists 

PK-12 SpEd 
Itinerant Staff 

Elementary & Middle 
School 

Administrators 

In 2011-2013 veteran staff participated in culturally responsive staff 
development also called Reaching Each Student. This staff 

development was differentiated to each building needs and directed 
by their building leadership. An ANGEL Community Group called 

Reaching Each Student was populated with a wealth of resources for 
buildings to utilize. 

In 2011-2012- new staff participated in an introductory class called 
Reaching Each Student. The new staff met face to face and via 

ANGEL during the second semester of their first year. The primary 
goals of this class were to 1) consider cultural lenses of teachers 

and students (age, gender, race, poverty); 2) identify current 
Culturally Responsive Teaching practices in alignment with the 
Millard Instructional Model; and 3) consider possible changes to 

Culturally Responsive Teaching practices. 

In 2012-2013 new staff did not participate in this same class. We 
moved this required training to 2nd year staff responsibilities so these 

new hires will participate in 2013-2014. 
 

2013-2014 
 

In 2013-2014 Culturally Responsive Teaching became a 2nd year staff member 
commitment. All 2nd year staff members were invited to a class during Fall 
Workshop taught by UNO Professor, Dr. Sarah Edwards. The primary goals of 
this class are to 1) consider cultural lenses of teachers and students (e.g. age, 
gender, race, poverty); 2) identify current Culturally Responsive Teaching 
practices in alignment with the Millard Instructional Model; and 3) consider 

160



possible changes to Culturally Responsive Teaching practices. Any 2nd year staff 
members who did not attend this session were asked to complete an Introduction 
to Culturally Responsive Teaching via ANGEL , our on-line learning 
management system. 

 

 
 
All 1800 salaried staff members continued their differentiated experiences based on 
their Building Staff Development Plans.  Principals were asked to create a plan that 
meets the needs of their staff and students.  These staff development plans were 
entitled Reaching Each Student.  Parameters for these staff development plans are 
listed below. 

 
1.  Differentiate your  plan by building. 

  2.  Collaboratively create & communicate plan with stakeholders by 
pre-assessing  building needs (e.g. review school data, survey staff, survey 
community) 
  3.  Establish S.M.A.R.T. goal/plan to improve culture of building and close the gap 
in student achievement. The S.M.A.R.T. goal will help buildings measure  their 
success. 
 4.  Office of Staff Development will provide several resources  in the ANGEL 
community group  Reaching Each Student. Administrators or  designee may  enroll by 
PIN using section ID:  RES_2011 
 5.  These  resources  can be copied and/or developed in your  building ANGEL 
community groups  and/or used  in face-to face sessions 

 
2014-2015 2015-2016; 2016-2017, 2017-18, 2018-19 
As the result of a new Strategic Plan, Millard Public Schools reviewed our Culturally 
Responsive Teaching staff development during the 2014-2015 school year. The strategic plan 
states that we will develop and implement plans utilizing instructional best practices, formative 
and summative assessments, and student data designed to ensure that all students are college and 
career ready. 
Specifically we will examine demographic trends and develop strategies to address the unique 
needs of each student.  There are several action steps involved in this strategy: 

● Identify, evaluate, and provide access to existing and potential social services,           
including those in the community, to meet the changing needs of our students. e.g.              
Backpack meal program, health needs, transportation, adult education 

● Implement strategic academic and social interventions based on data analysis. 
e.g. summer programming, extended school day 

● Develop and implement a system to allocate resources that includes measures of 
student performance and demographic data. 

● Provide on-going staff development on strategies that positively impact 
student achievement in all demographic subgroups. 

 
Culturally Responsive Teaching is a 3rd year staff member commitment. All 3rd year staff 
members are invited to a session during Year 3 Induction Programming: Extended Professional 
Experiences taught by Millard Public Schools staff members. The primary goals of this session 
is the same as those outlined above for the 2013-2014 school year. Any 3rd year staff member 
who does not attend this session is asked to complete an Introduction to Culturally Responsive 
Teaching using our online resources. 

 
Salaried staff members also continue their differentiated experiences based on their Building 

161



Staff Development Plans.  Administrators and Building Staff Development Facilitators meet 
each summer to review the Strategic Plan and to learn about District demographics. Principals 
are asked to create a plan that meets the needs of their staff and students. These staff 
development plans are entitled Culturally Responsive Teaching. Parameters for these staff 
development plans are the same as those outlined above for the 2013-2014 school year. Moving 
forward, we will maintain a similar plan.  Additionally as a review of current practices, we 
reviewed a brief from Hanover Research titled Strategies for Building Cultural Competency 
and incorporated such strategies into the comprehensive plan. 

 
23. Describe other specialized services, supports, or resources for teachers and 

administrators to address the educational needs of students  in poverty and students 
from diverse backgrounds.  

 
Millard Public Schools uses a point allocation system that takes into account students of 
poverty at the elementary and middle school level. Using a 'weighting' factor based upon 
the number of poverty students enrolled provides additional staffing points to the 
building.  Decisions on staffing are made to best support student needs. 

 
Grade level and subject/content materials are reviewed for multicultural, ethnic, and socio- 
economic balance. Building staff development and grant-based programs provide additional 
support. 

 
Supporting classroom teachers and specialists in delivering language and vocabulary 
instruction continues to be a focus. Classroom teachers and specialists have participated in 
ongoing professional development in language and vocabulary and the topic will be 
addressed regularly in curriculum meetings with principals. 

 
In addition, the first phase in the implementation of a systematic approach to language 
intervention was introduced in 2013-14. The first phase focused on Tier I language support 
in the general education classroom. The plan for 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-2018 is to 
continue to support building data teams in choosing and implementing language 
interventions at all tiers of the RtI+I Model. 

 
 
Poverty Plan – Evaluation 
24. Describe how the district determines the effectiveness of the elements of the poverty 

plan and aligns the plan to district continuous improvement plan(s).  
 

Purpose: 
In accordance with Millard School Board policy, the Millard Strategic Plan, and pursuant to 
state statute, the Poverty Plan submitted by the Millard Public Schools shall undergo a 
program evaluation. The purpose of the evaluation will be to provide a detailed description 
of the systems and attributes of the plan and to provide critical data that is intended to be 
used to determine program effectiveness and to modify, improve or discontinue ineffective 
practices. 

 
Methodology: 
The researcher will gather data which will be inclusive of, but not limited to, state testing 
data and district curriculum benchmark results. Data collected will provide a comparison of 
achievement between all Millard Public School students and Millard Public School students 
of poverty. Information that addresses areas of concern for students of poverty will be 
highlighted. 

162



          Data Analysis and Reporting:
The analysis will utilize descriptive statistics that indicate frequencies and means. Over 
time a trend line will be developed for each of the variables. A brief narrative description 
will accompany each of the variables. Within the timelines required, a written report of 
progress will be made to the Superintendent, the Board of Education and those parties 
designated by statute.

Poverty Plan – Other 
25. Provide any other information or plans the school district wants to address or

explain that are not previously included.

Millard Public Schools is experiencing a change in socioeconomic status which is reflected in 
the following table. 

Years MPS Percentage 

2009-2010 14.03% 

2010-2011 16.12% 

2011-2012 18.17% 

2012-2013 18.12% 

2013-2014 18.70% 

204-2015 17.99% 

2015-2016 18.11% 

2016-2017 20.91%* 
*As submitted by MPS

163



Appendix A 

Evaluation to Determine the Effectiveness of the Poverty Plan Elements 

Submitted as the Poverty Plan Evaluation Report to the Board of Education on 
January 23, 2017

164



AGENDA SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan for 2018-2019 School Year 

for State Aid 
 
MEETING DATE: September 18, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT: Educational Services 
 
TITLE AND 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: LEP Plan for 2018-2019 School Year for State Aid 
 
ACTION DESIRED: __X__ Approve Plan 
 
BACKGROUND: For the certification of 2018-2019 State aid, every school district is required 
to designate a maximum Limited English Proficiency Allowance. The designation may be zero 
dollars or it may be an estimated dollar amount greater than zero dollars. This designation must be 
filed with the Department of Education on or before October 15, 2017. If a school district elects to 
designate a maximum Limited English Proficiency Allowance greater than zero dollars, the 
school district must also file a Limited English Proficiency Plan, on or before October 15, 2017, 
utilizing the NDE Grants Management System.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approve LEP Plan as submitted. 
 
STRATEGIC  PLAN REFERENCE:    None 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate implementation 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Heather Phipps, Assoc. Supt. (Educational Services) Kara 

Hutton, Coordinator of Special Programs 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S  APPROVAL: ______________________ 
(Signature) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

165

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



LC Limited English Proficiency Plan - 1150 
  

Applicant:  03-028-0017-18 MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
  

Application: 2017-2018 LC LEP and Poverty Plans - 00  

Cycle:  Original Application 

Estimated Expenditures 
  

A school district declining to participate in the Limited English Proficiency Allowance should enter 0 
on 1150-800 Total Estimated Limited English Proficiency Expenditures. 

  
A school district that elects to participate in the Limited English Proficiency Allowance should enter 
a maximum dollar amount on 1150-800 Total Estimated Limited English Proficiency Expenditures. 

  
A Worksheet for estimating Limited English Proficiency Expenditures is available by clicking here. 

  
Do not include Federal Funds when estimating these expenditures with the exception of SFSF 
monies identified for LEP. 

  
A Limited English Proficiency Plan must be submitted if the Total estimated Limited English 
Proficiency Expenditures are greater than 0. 

  
1150-800 Total Limited English Proficiency Expenditures $1,265,000 

X .85 
1150-900 Estimated Limited English Proficiency Allowance $1,075,250 

  
The Limited English Proficiency Allowance will be the lesser of the amount on 1150-900 Estimated 
Limited English Proficiency Allowance or a calculated amount based on the provisions of Section 
79-1007.08(2). 

 
 
  

166



Limited English Proficiency Plan 
2018-2019 

 
Identification of Students with Limited English Proficiency  

1. Explain the district policies or procedures to identify LEP students. Is the district 
using the three home language survey questions as outlined in Rule 15, section 003? 

The Millard Public School District identifies students who are limited English proficient 
through the following process: 
 

A. All Millard families now register online.  
B. The three home language questions are a standard part of the online enrollment 

process.  
C. If a student answers any of the questions with a language other than English, a 

standardized English language proficiency assessment is administered. Bilingual 
liaisons are assigned to each family and the results of the assessment are shared 
with the parent and student. 

D. If a student has been identified as LEP in his or her previous Nebraska school 
district and has not met the requirements to exit the ELL program, 
documentation is obtained of the previous LEP determination within 30 school 
days of the student’s enrollment. 

E. Identification and enrollment of LEP/ELL students occurs year-round.   
 
Although the wording is slightly different, Millard Public Schools uses the three home 
language survey questions as outlined in Rule 15, section 003. 

i. What language did the student first learn to speak? 

ii. What language does your child most frequently speak at home? 

iii. What language is spoken most often by the student? 

 
2. What language proficiency assessments  are used to identify LEP students? 

 
A. The LAS Links Language Assessment System is administered for the appropriate 

age/grade level. 
B. In 2017-2018 the ELPA21 Screener will be field tested and may become a tool 

used to identify LEP students in the district. 
 

3. Describe the specific criteria the district uses in determining which students qualify 
as LEP.  

 
The tester will complete the following tasks: 
 

A. The LAS Links Language Assessment System is administered for the appropriate 
age/grade level.  The instrument assesses English proficiency in listening, 
speaking, reading, and writing and yields a composite score and level that 
indicates whether a student is proficient in English.  

167



B. If the student’s performance on the assessment indicates the student is not 
proficient in English, the student is identified as LEP. 

 
C. The parent or guardian is informed of the student’s LEP status. 

 
D. Documentation of assessment results will be maintained. 

 
E. A separate LEP/ELL file will be maintained for each LEP/ELL student. 

 

Instructional Approaches 

 
4. Describe the district instructional approaches for LEP children to acquire English 

(for both social language and academic purposes).  

There are many program models for students who are acquiring English as an additional 
language.  Because we serve a population that represents great diversity in language and 
culture, the ELL program in Millard is a content-based English Language Development 
(ELD) program in which students are grouped by language ability level. Group 
assignments are flexible and temporary, changing according to the learners’ needs. 
 Students spend the majority of the school day mainstreamed in the general education 
program, receiving relevant, meaningful support services from Nebraska certified, highly 
trained ELL teachers in ELL classes. 

The MPS K-12 English Language Development curriculum has been written by Millard 
teachers and is aligned to the Nebraska English Language Proficiency Standards (January, 
2014).  These standards draw on current theory, research, sound classroom practice, and 
educational standards from an array of national organizations and states.  There is an 
emphasis on the critical language, knowledge about language, and skills using language 
that are found in college-and-career-ready standards and that are necessary for English 
language learners to be successful in schools.  

 
Lessons in the ELL classroom are centered on language functions (what students do with 
language to accomplish content-specific tasks) and language forms (vocabulary, grammar, 
and discourse specific to particular content areas or disciplines) which are needed by 
English learners as they develop competence in the practices associated with English 
language arts and literacy, mathematics, and science.  ELL teachers place an emphasis on 
building background and developing vocabulary to support students in the core content 
program.  Instructional strategies based on research and practical experiences are used to 
maximize student involvement in classroom activities.  

There is an explicit recognition that language acquisition takes place across the content 
areas and therefore collaboration among educators is required to enhance and excel the 
learning experiences of English language learners.  Content area teachers and ELL 
teachers work together to understand and leverage the language and literacy practices used 
across content areas and to cultivate a deeper knowledge of the disciplinary language that 

168



English learners require to be competitive among their native English speaking peers 
(Understanding Language Initiative, 2012).  

Additionally, general classroom teachers have been trained in the theoretical principles of 
second language acquisition and receive on-going professional development in best 
practices for teaching limited English proficient (LEP) students. 

 
5. How are the instructional models and approaches recognized as best practice by 

experts in the field?  

The program model and instructional approaches are informed by meta-analysis done by 
McREL and written in the publication titled Classroom Instruction that Works for English 
Language Learners (Hill, 2006) and the publication titled Improving Education for 
English Learners: Research-Based Approaches (California Department of Education, 
2010) which features known experts in the field such as William Saunders, Claude 
Goldenberg, Marguerite Ann Snow, Anne Katz, Diane August, Timothy Shanahan, Jana 
Echevarria, Deborah Short, Kathryn Lindholm-Leary, and Fred Genesee. 

The Sheltered Instruction Observation Protocol (SIOP) Model was developed during a 
seven-year research project (1996-2003) for the Center of Research on Education, 
Diversity & Excellence, funded by the Institute for Education Sciences, U.S. Department 
of Education.  Continuing implementation of The SIOP Model through professional 
development for teachers supports ELLs in mainstream content area classrooms.  The 
SIOP Model serves as an instructional framework under which other effective 
instructional approaches reside such as cooperative learning, sheltered instruction 
strategies, and differentiated instruction (Echevarria, Vogt & Short, 2008).  

There is an explicit recognition that language acquisition takes place across the content 
areas and therefore collaboration among educators is required to enhance and excel the 
learning experiences of English language learners.  Content area teachers and ELL 
teachers work together to understand and leverage the language and literacy practices used 
across content areas and to cultivate a deeper knowledge of the disciplinary language that 
English learners require to be competitive among their native English speaking peers 
(Understanding Language Initiative, 2012).  

Like their peers, LEP/ELL students are monitored throughout the school year using 
AimsWeb progress monitoring to determine if interventions are assisting them in attaining 
literacy and math skills. Speaking and listening skills are monitored two times a year using 
Reading A-Z Speaking and Listening Scoring Rubrics for grades K-5.  If additional 
academic interventions are needed, staff members identify those needs through data 
review team meetings.  Staff members will work closely with the building data review 
team and district support staff to provide appropriate research-based interventions and 
resources, as needed.  

Selected Millard Public Schools staff members were trained in the MPS RtI+I Problem 
Solving Model, which assists them in better identifying the needs of each student.  We 
will continue to provide professional development for teachers and paraprofessionals of 
LEP/ELL students. 

 

169



Assessment  of Students’  Progress Toward Mastering the English Language 

6. Describe the specific criteria and plan the district has established to determine when 
the LEP student has mastered English.  

As per the requirements of NDE Rule 15, a Kindergarten through 2nd grade student is 
exited from the program upon receiving a composite score of proficient on the annual 
English language proficiency assessment (ELPA 21) AND with a teacher’s 
recommendation.  A 3rd through 12th grade student is exited from the program upon 
receiving a composite score of proficient on the annual English language proficiency 
assessment. 

For students with verified disabilities, a school district team of assessment and educational 
personnel may determine that the educational needs of a student with verified disabilities 
are not affected by his/her proficiency in the English language. The team may recommend 
that the student exit the ELL Program.  The team includes the ELL teacher, a member of 
the IEP team, a language arts and/or reading teacher, and school administrator.  Thorough 
documentation is completed affirming the child’s educational needs are not affected by his 
or her proficiency in English. 

Students who have met the exit requirements will be redesignated as English fluent and 
will be monitored for four academic years.   If a student who has exited has academic 
difficulty, an ELL teacher will work with the teacher. The team will determine if the 
student needs intervention and may begin the MPS RtI + I Problem Solving process. 

7. What objective language measures does the district use to assess listening, speaking, 
reading, and writing? 

A. English Language Proficiency Assessment for the 21st Century (ELPA21) 
B. MPS Formative Assessment of English Language Proficiency Standards 
C. AIMSWeb literacy benchmark testing (K-8) 
D. Reading A-Z Speaking and Listening Scoring Rubrics (K-5 

Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 

8. What objective measures does the district use to assess student progress toward 
meeting content standards?  

Millard Education Program – Use of Assessment  Data                                                        6315.1 

The assessment system shall take its overall direction from the District strategic plan and 
from state and federal requirements. The assessment system shall be aligned with the 
written curriculum and shall measure student progress within the primary, intermediate, 
middle and high school grade levels and their level of College and Career Readiness. The 
system shall provide opportunities for support and appropriate interventions to occur if the 
student does not demonstrate proficiency. 

The assessment system will include Essential Learner Outcome assessments of College 
and Career Readiness designed to measure the Millard Education Plan outcomes as well as 
assessments designed to comply with state and federal legislation. 

170



As curriculum revisions occur, the assessment system shall reflect those changes and 
modifications to assessments and shall be approved by the Millard Board of Education. 
The curriculum content areas, grade levels when administered, and the types of 
assessments shall be as follows:  

Level: Elementary Outcome When 
Administered 

Type of Assessment 

Reading Comprehension and Vocabulary 3rd, 4th, and 5th Grade NE Dept. of Education 
Writing 3rd and 5th Grade ELO Assessments* 
Writing 4th Grade NE Dept. of Education 
Mathematics 3rd, 4th, and 5th Grade NE Dept. of Education 
Science 5th Grade NE Dept. of Education 

 
 

Level: Middle School Grades (6-8) Outcome When 
Administered 

Type of Assessment 

Reading Comprehension and Vocabulary 6th, 7th, and 8th Grade NE Dept. of Education 
Writing 6th and 7th Grade ELO Assessments* 
Mathematics 6th, 7th, and 8th Grade NE Dept. of Education 
Science 8th Grade NE Dept. of Education 
Writing 8th Grade NE Dept. of Education 

 

Level: High School Grades (9-12, 
graduation cohort 2016 & beyond) 
Outcome 

When Administered Type of Assessment 

English 11th Grade ACT® Assessment 
Writing 10th Grade ELO Assessment* 
Mathematics 11th Grade ACT® Assessment  
Reading 11th Grade ACT® Assessment  
Science 11th Grade ACT® Assessment  
Writing 11th Grade ACT® Assessment 

*The Essential Learner Outcome Assessments are district-developed.   

 
ELL students also participate in District reading and math formative and summative 
assessments through AIMSweb and NWEA MAP.  These assessments are aligned with the 
Language Arts/Reading and Mathematics curriculum. 

9. What subjective measures does the district include?  

In order to monitor student growth and adjust instruction, teachers may use subjective 
measures such as the student’s performance in the general education classroom, 
educational background of the student, teacher observation and input from parents. In 
accordance with NDE Rule 15, subjective measures such as these will only be considered 
for exiting when working with students in K-2.  

 
Evaluation to Determine the Effectiveness of the LEP Plan 

10. Describe the approach that will be used to evaluate the effectiveness of the program.  

171



In Millard Public Schools, this is accomplished through The Instructional Approaches, 
Curriculum, and Assessment  Review Procedures for the ELL  Program .  

According to these review procedures, a committee of teacher representatives from K-12 
ELL, a principal from an ELL program site, and the ELL Coordinator meet annually to 
carry out a program review.  The committee is charged with reviewing ELL practices, 
procedures and documents to ensure compliance to district and state policy and rule and 
adoption of best practices.  Participants synthesize research and data to identify program 
strengths and weaknesses.  A thorough review of ELL identification procedures, 
instructional approaches, staffing, proficiency standards and indicators, and assessment 
procedures is also conducted.  

Based on the work of this team, the strengths and weaknesses of the program and any 
recommendations are compiled in an annual report.  The LEP Program Evaluation is 
submitted to the Educational Services Division and then sent on to the Superintendent and 
the Board of Education.  This annual report is saved and is available for public access. The 
report is free of any personally identifiable information, is available to the public, and is 
retained in an electronic format indefinitely.  

11. List the types of data (both formative and summative) that will be collected as a part 
of the evaluation.   

The committee analyzes student program data and procedures, including: 

● Identification of ELL students 
● Implementation of the ELL Program, including instructional approaches 
● Program staffing 
● Assessment, including accommodations for ELL students on district and state 

assessments 
● Program exit requirements 
● Student performance on the English Language Proficiency Assessment (ELPA), 

state content assessments, and other relevant assessments and data 
● The process for monitoring students who have been re-designated English fluent 

for less than four years, including a comparison of academic performance to 
non-ELL students 

 
Data analysis utilizes descriptive statistics, including frequencies and means.  Trends in 
data are observed over time.  

 
12. Attach your LEP Program Review (as described in Rule 15) and describe how the 

data from annual review will be used as part of an ongoing evaluation and program 
improvement process that aligns to district continuous improvement plan(s). 

The LEP Program Evaluation provides information that will help the district and the ELL 
team in planning, implementing, and evaluating the ELL instructional programs.  An 
annual program goal is developed based on the data analysis and the alignment to and 
support of district goals developed in the district strategic planning process.  

Based on review and analysis of student and program data, goals for improving student 
learning are established.  The goals are stated as clear, concise, measurable goals for 

172



student achievement.   Some goals may indirectly impact student achievement, such as 
suggested improvements for processes and procedures and recommendations for 
curriculum review.  

Modifications to the program are recommended based on the results of data analysis and 
review of the program implementation practices.  The modifications are designed to assist 
students in overcoming language barriers that may prevent them from participating 
meaningfully in the core curriculum program.  

The evaluation process is repeated annually, with data collection occurring in the fall, 
review of data with program recommendations in the winter, and implementation of 
changes in the spring.  Findings and recommendations are reported in the English 
Language Learner Program Year-End Report, which is included with the Educational 
Services Year-End Report and submitted to the Superintendent and Board of Education. 
 The report is free of any personally identifiable information, is available to the public, and 
is retained in an electronic format indefinitely.  The report for the 2016-2017 school year 
is included as an addendum to the LEP Plan (Appendix A). 

 
Other (Optional): 

13a.    Include information that may not be included in previous sections 

The district has experienced a moderate growth in LEP student population during the past 
five years. Input from refugee relocation agencies have indicated that Millard Public 
School could experience a continued growth in LEP students who are refugees.   

13b.   Are there unexpected events or unforeseen obstacles that have occurred during 
the implementation of any previous plans that have affected this plan? 

No unexpected events or unforeseen obstacles occurred during the past school year.  

13c.   Have there been any significant changes in the LEP population since the 
previous plan?  

The number of secondary ELL students in Millard has grown from 54 in 2015 to 87 in 
2017. In addition, with the growth in refugee students, the district has seen an increase in 
students with limited or no formal education.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

173



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 

LEP Program Review 

Submitted as part of the Educational Services Report July 2017 

  

174



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
AGENDA ITEM: ACT Results – Graduating Class 2017 
 
MEETING DATE: September 18, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT: Assessment, Research, and Evaluation 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF  
DESCRIPTION: ACT Results 
 
ACTION DESIRED:    X     Information 
 
 
BACKGROUND: Graduating Class of 2017 (12th grade) 
 The District ACT composite average is 22.7, again higher than the state 

average of 21.4.  Trend lines show Millard maintaining strong ACT results that 
consistently out-perform the state and nation.  Beginning with the 2013 
Graduating Class, all students whose scores are college reportable, both 
standard and extended time tests, are included in this report.  This year, 95% of 
students nationally took the ACT with standard time; 97% of students in 
Millard took the ACT in standard time. As in the past, this report is the ACT 
performance of our ACT-tested graduates.  For students taking the ACT 
multiple times, this report includes the most recent ACT score. “Core or More” 
refers to students who are planning to take or have taken four or more years of 
English AND three or more years of mathematics, social studies, and natural 
science. 

 
 MPS District Average Composite Score 

 Graduating Class of… 
 (12th Grade)* 

Year Avg. # 
2014-15 22.0 1,717 
2015-16 22.1 1,734 
2016-17 22.7 1,745 

*MOST RECENT test score 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: None 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE:  None 
 
RESPONSIBLE  
PERSONS:  Dr. Darin Kelberlau and Sharon Freeman 
 
SUPERINTENDENT 
APPROVAL:   _____________________________ 
 
BOARD ACTION:  

175

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



Average ACT Scores by Level of Academic Preparation

District
2007-08 797 409 63 32 23.9 20.7 24.4 21.2 24.5 21.9 24.0 21.4 24.3 21.4
2008-09 941 350 73 27 24.3 20.7 24.3 20.9 24.6 21.9 23.9 21.2 24.4 21.3
2009-10 938 339 73 26 24.3 20.6 24.2 20.5 24.6 22.0 24.2 20.9 24.5 21.1
2010-11 927 360 72 28 24.0 20.5 24.3 20.4 24.5 21.8 24.2 21.2 24.4 21.1
2011-12 932 351 72 27 24.0 20.4 24.4 20.7 24.4 21.4 24.1 21.3 24.4 21.1
2012-13 1009 292 77 22 23.8 20.6 23.7 20.4 24.2 21.6 24.0 21.1 24.0 21.1
2013-14 1023 303 77 23 23.8 20.0 23.7 20.2 24.2 21.2 23.9 21.1 24.0 20.8

2014-15 1199 470 70 27 22.8 18.1 22.6 19.1 23.6 19.6 23.3 19.9 23.2 19.3
2015-16 1215 472 70 27 22.8 18.6 22.3 19.5 23.6 20.2 23.3 20.3 23.2 19.8
2016-17 1242 451 71 26 23.6 20.2 22.6 19.8 24.1 21.3 23.6 21.3 23.6 20.8

State
2007-08 11,934 3,944 72 24 22.6 19.5 22.6 19.7 23.2 20.6 22.5 20.1 22.8 20.1
2008-09 12,701 3,346 78 21 22.7 19.1 22.5 19.4 23.2 20.1 22.6 19.9 22.9 19.8
2009-10 12,870 3,053 80 19 22.7 18.9 22.3 19.1 23.1 20.1 22.7 19.8 22.8 19.6
2010-11 13,168 3,120 80 19 22.5 18.9 22.3 19.1 22.9 20.0 22.5 19.8 22.7 19.6
2011-12 13,515 2,896 82 17 22.4 18.9 22.3 19.2 22.8 19.9 22.4 19.7 22.6 19.5
2012-13 13,851 3,372 78 19 22.1 17.9 21.9 18.6 22.6 19.2 22.3 19.1 22.3 18.8
2013-14 13,909 3,283 78 18 22.3 18.3 21.8 18.6 22.8 19.4 22.4 19.3 22.5 19.0

2014-15 13,943 3,489 76 19 22.2 17.9 21.9 18.5 22.9 19.2 22.4 19.2 22.5 18.8
2015-16 13,865 3,480 75 19 22.2 17.9 21.7 18.4 22.9 19.3 22.5 19.1 22.5 18.8
2016-17 14,384 3,501 76 18 21.9 18.1 21.7 18.7 22.8 19.6 22.3 19.5 22.3 19.1

National
2007-08 873,743 431,748 61 30 21.6 18.8 21.9 19.3 22.3 19.9 21.6 19.4 22.0 19.5
2008-09 1,039,502 391,458 70 26 21.7 18.3 21.9 18.9 22.3 19.4 21.7 19.2 22.0 19.1
2009-10 1,118,639 397,685 71 25 21.6 18.1 21.9 18.9 22.2 19.2 21.7 19.0 22.0 18.9
2010-11 1,202,164 366,518 74 23 21.5 18.3 21.8 19.0 22.0 19.3 21.6 19.0 21.9 19.0
2011-12 1,259,744 355,849 76 21 21.3 18.3 21.8 19.1 22.0 19.4 21.6 19.1 21.8 19.1
2012-13 1,322,739 396,592 74 22 21.2 17.8 21.7 18.9 22.0 19.0 21.5 18.8 21.7 18.7
2013-14 1,347,997 405,073 73 22 21.4 17.9 21.7 18.9 22.2 19.2 21.6 18.9 21.8 18.9

2014-15 1,389,338 424,562 72 22 21.4 18.0 21.7 18.9 22.3 19.3 21.8 19.0 21.9 18.9
2015-16 1,441,538 483,335 69 23 21.3 17.8 21.5 18.7 22.3 19.2 21.7 18.8 21.9 18.7
2016-17 1,376,479 464,989 68 23 21.6 17.9 21.7 18.8 22.6 19.3 21.9 19.1 22.1 18.9

Average ACT Scores for All Graduates

Number Mathematics Composite
District
2007-08 1,265 22.8 23.3 23.6 23.1 23.3
2008-09 1,293 23.3 23.4 23.9 23.2 23.6
2009-10 1,280 23.3 23.2 23.9 23.3 23.6
2010-11 1,294 23.0 23.2 23.7 23.3 23.4
2011-12 1,292 23.0 23.4 23.6 23.3 23.4
2012-13 1,309 23.1 22.9 23.6 23.3 23.3
2013-14 1,332 22.9 22.8 23.5 23.3 23.3

2014-15 1,717 21.4 21.5 22.3 22.2 22.0
2015-16 1,734 21.5 21.4 22.5 22.3 22.1
2016-17 1,745 22.5 21.8 23.2 22.9 22.7

State
2007-08 16,573 21.8 21.8 22.5 21.9 22.1
2008-09 16,286 21.9 21.8 22.5 22.0 22.1
2009-10 16,172 21.8 21.6 22.4 22.0 22.1
2010-11 16,461 21.8 21.7 22.3 22.0 22.1
2011-12 16,581 21.8 21.7 22.3 21.9 22.0
2012-13 17,745 21.1 21.1 21.8 21.5 21.5
2013-14 17,768 21.3 21.1 22.0 21.7 21.7

2014-15 18,347 21.1 21.0 21.9 21.6 21.5
2015-16 18,598 20.9 20.8 21.8 21.5 21.4
2016-17 18,993 20.9 20.9 21.9 21.5 21.4

National
2007-08 1,421,941 20.6 21.0 21.4 20.8 21.1
2008-09 1,480,469 20.6 21.0 21.4 20.9 21.1
2009-10 1,568,835
2010-11 1,623,112
2011-12 1,666,017
2012-13 1,799,243
2013-14 1,845,787

2014-15 1,924,436
2015-16 2,090,342
2016-17 2,030,038 21.0

Science

20.3 20.7 21.4 21.0
20.1 20.6 21.3 20.8 20.8
20.4 20.8 21.4 20.9 21.0
20.3 21.020.821.320.9

20.5 21.0 21.3 21.0
20.6 21.1 21.3

20.9
20.9 21.1

21.120.921.320.5 21.1

  Composite
Core  /  Less

Science
Core  /  Less

Reading
Core  /  Less

   Number
   Core  /  Less

English Reading

Mathematics
Core  /  Less

English
Core  /  Less

     Percent
Core  /  Less

20.2 20.9 21.1 20.7 20.9

176



2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Percent 74.2% 75.9% 77.8% 77.4% 76.0% 76.3% 97.9% 96.6% 97.3%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Percent of Millard Seniors Taking the ACT 

1,745 Seniors from the class of 2017 took the ACT

177



English Math Reading Science Comp STEM
Millard 22.5 21.8 23.2 22.9 22.7 22.6
Nebraska 20.9 20.9 21.9 21.5 21.4 21.5
National 20.3 20.7 21.4 21.0 21.0 21.1

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

Comparison of ACT Average Scores 

Scores range from 1-36

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Millard 23.6 23.4 23.4 23.3 23.3 22.0 22.1 22.7
Nebraska 22.1 22.1 22.0 21.5 21.7 21.5 21.4 21.4
National 21.0 21.1 21.1 20.9 21.0 21.0 20.8 21.0

19.0
19.5
20.0
20.5
21.0
21.5
22.0
22.5
23.0
23.5
24.0

ACT Composite Scores Over 8 Years 
Millard, Nebraska, and National

41%
38% 39% 39% 38%

31% 31%
36%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

Percent of Millard Students 
Scoring in Top Quartile Nationally

178



English Math Reading Science Composite STEM
Core or More 23.6 22.6 24.1 23.6 23.6 23.4
Less than Core 20.2 19.8 21.3 21.3 20.8 20.8
Total Group 22.5 21.8 23.2 22.9 22.7 22.6

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Millard Public Schools Results
2016-17

English Math Reading Science Composite STEM
Core or More 21.9 21.7 22.8 22.3 22.3 22.3
Less than Core 18.1 18.7 19.6 19.5 19.1 19.3
Total Group 20.9 20.9 21.9 21.5 21.4 21.5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Nebraska Statewide Results
2016-17

*Core	or	More	-- students	taking	four	or	more	years	of	English	AND	three	or	more	years	of	
mathematics,	social	studies,	and	natural	science.

179



27

61

41

47

37

21

28

67

42

50

41

21

36

76

48

59

51

27

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

All Four English (18) Math (22) Reading (22) Science (23) STEM (26)

Percent of Students Meeting ACT College Readiness Benchmark Scores
2016-17

National Nebraska  Millard

ACT College Readiness Benchmark score is the minimum score needed on an ACT subject-
area test to indicate a 50% chance of obtaining a B or higher, or about a 75% chance of 

obtaining a C or higher in the corresponding credit-bearing college course.

180



Average ACT Scores by Race/Ethnicity by Building

 
NHS SHS WHS NHS SHS WHS NHS SHS WHS NHS SHS WHS NHS SHS WHS NHS SHS WHS NHS SHS WHS NHS SHS WHS

All Students 24.2 22.1 23.8 24.3 22.1 23.6 24.7 21.4 23.7 24.3 21.7 23.3 24.8 21.0 23.3 22.9 19.8 22.9 23.3 20.1 22.7 23.7 21.4 22.9

African	American/	

Black
21.0 15.5 21.0 21.6 18.3 17.3 21.0 18.3 20.3 21.6 18.1 20.4 22.1 19.1 15.7 19.8 18.1 17.8 18.8 15.7 17.3 20.1 17.2 -

American	Indian/	

Alaska	Native
28.0 23.3 20.0 20.0 20.0 23.0 22.0 16.5 25.0 22.0 21.5 23.5 30.0 18.0 17.0 27.0 17.4 18.0 20.1 17.0 - - - -

Caucasian	

American/	White
24.2 22.1 23.8 24.2 22.4 23.7 24.6 21.9 23.8 24.3 22.2 23.3 24.4 21.2 23.5 22.9 20.3 23.1 23.5 20.6 23.1 23.8 22.1 23.3

Hispanic/	Latino 23.9 22.4 24.8 22.6 20.0 21.7 22.6 19.7 20.7 22.8 19.6 21.5 23.3 17.9 20.2 20.4 18.1 20.6 20.3 17.3 21.6 21.2 18.4 20.6

Asian 27.6 21.5 27.7 27.9 22.8 26.2 28.1 19.3 23.4 28.4 23.4 25.8 28.9 20.8 23.2 27.0 18.6 23.8 28.0 22.4 25.6 29.2 21.2 22.7

Native	Hawaiian/	
Pacific	Islander

- - - - - - 17.5 - - 26.0 - - - 23.0 - - - 30.0 19.0 15.5 24.0 - - -

Two	or	More	

Races
18.3 22.8 25.8 23.0 20.1 22.8 26.5 21.0 24.8 23.2 20.8 23.7 24.7 24.3 23.0 24.8 19.1 22.9 21.7 19.3 20.9 21.5 23.1 21.6

Prefer	Not	to	

Respond/	No	

Response
24.9 21.8 21.3 24.9 24.7 22.4 25.2 19.9 25.3 24.9 20.0 23.0 27.2 22.7 25.7 21.4 18.0 20.9 22.2 18.7 20.3 22.8 19.3 21.5

-	Masked	if	count	is	10	or	less'

20172016201520142013201220112010

181



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Student Services Year End Report 2016-17 
 
Meeting Date: September 18, 2017 
 
Department Student Services 
 
Title and Brief  
Description: Student Services Year End Report for 2016-17.  The Student Services Year End 

Report is designed to provide an overview of the various services and functions 
provided within Student Services. 

              
 
Action Desired: Information Only 
 
 
Background: The report summarizes activities that take place within Student Services such as 

within district transfers, open & option enrollment, foreign exchange students, 
student discipline, health services, counseling services and crisis response services. 

 
 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: N/A 
 
 
Strategic Plan 
Reference: N/A 
 
Implications of 
Adoption/Rejection:  
 
Timeline:  N/A 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Bill Jelkin, Director of Student Services, 
 Kevin Chick, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  
 
 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 
 

182

KKSullivan
James Sutfin



STUDENT SERVICES 
YEAR END REPORT 

2016/17

Submitted by: 
Mr. Bill Jelkin 

Student Services 
Director 

183



� ���������	�
��
�����������������	������������������������������ ��!���" #$% �""&'���("�� �" #)&**�+���������"�������&�,�-+&'����� .//*" 0)&**�+��1/2��� .//*��������" 03�+�"�/4������56/�+��$�+/**2��� 78/+�&,��$% .��,��$�+/**2��� 79:���$�+/**����������" ;9:�&/��$�+/**����������" <3&�.&��=&"�+& ��>+��"4�+" ?��������@	@A�@��$'���"�(B�$*�2����+B C$'���"�(B��� /���+B #D=+�,�����E&/*�� ��$'������22�+B #0$'���"��""/ &�����F&�.�=+�,"������* /./ #09���/4�� .//*�=&" &:*&��+B�!�"/*��&/�" #7!�:����944�� �" #G92(��"2���$�� ��&/��-+/,+�2 #C�* /./*�H+���.�>�"�&�,�=�'& ��I�&*&J��&/� #C=&" &:*&��+B�1��+&�," #C�������K����K���L@	��:� &�*�1��*�.�6�+��!�*������""&,�2���" #M��������1��*�.�� +���" #M1��*�.�!�*�����6/��� �" #M	�����@�N��	@���O��P�P@����Q�@P=&"�+& ��6/��"�*&�,�6/��� �" 0D�/ &�*�3/+R�+"�6/��� �" 0D6+&"&"�>��2 0#6+&"&"�S���+'���&/��4/+��������"���T!&"R 0#6.&*���(�"������U�,*� � 0#� .//*56/22��&�B�S���+'���&/��-+/,+�2�V�6S-W�>��2�� �&'&�&�" 006/��� �&/�"�!�4�+�*" 00�	��@�X�������N��	X�����N�����1/�*&���6�**" 07� .//*�!�"/�+ ��944& �+" 0;	K����K@A���A��� 0<

184



���������	
��������	��������	�������	��������	��	������� 	�!	���	����	��"���	��#	��$���#	����������	��������#	��	���	%&'()'*	+��#���	+�������	,���	��#	-�"���.	���	���"�������	+���������	!��	����	����	���	����#	/�$� .	012340125 012540126 012640127
��8�9�	
�����:	;���98�9��4�9<==��9�>����$$	?����#����	-���� @(A @(A @(AB�������C�	�!	DB+	+��#����	?����#��C	B������	+����$� EA EA @AB�������C�	�!	DB+	+��#����	F�	����"�	GH���I	+����$ %A %A %A>"��	J	>"����	B��C���	K����	��#	L�����������#	���	M������� N@% *%( *'%L�!�	���	M�������	 'ON '(P '@&Q�����	M�������	�����!���R?""����# @E( 'S&%@ 'S'NOQ��#�	�!	+����)T����	 'A 'A 'AU����C�	������C�	+��#����	����$$�# '& '( @
��8�9�	V�:��W=�9�����$	M�������	M����"$���	������ (SOE' (SP*N ES%('M��C)?$����$	-�$���#	������ %'O 'NE 'P@����$	>��	�!	+����$	+��"������� 'S%%& 'S(&E 'SPO*M����"$�����	H�����C�	T��#����# P * (
��8�9�	X��=�Y	
�����:H��$��	-�$���#	T������� %*%S%NO %**S@EE %@*S*O*H��$��	+������	?#���������# N%S'&& N%S%*E NPS'*PZ<�9:�=�9[	�98	
��8�9�:	;�\]�:̂����$	T�����$��C	T������� N(S@&E N'S%'@ N(S%((_��/��	�!	T�����	����	-��"����� * O OT�����	F������������	̀�	?$$	+����$	B�������$ '@@ '(% %%O+��"����#	T��$#	?/���	��#	_�C$���	-�"���� 'PO '%N 'P*+����$	T��������	F�����������	B��C���	-�!����$� '%% '&% (@T���������	B��C���	-�!����$� _)? 'N' '*N
������	a	���[�9��	b�9�[���9�H��$���	?������� O% OO O%
�Y<=�:Y�W	]�W<�_��/��	�!	+���$�����"�	?���"��# 'S&'E 'S'P( 'S'*Nc�$��	�!	?���"��#	+���$�����"�	 d'*S@P@SEO' d'ESP*ESE&% d%PS(&%SEE%

185



��������������	�
���	���	�����������
�������������������������	�
�������
����� ������� ������� ������ !�"#$%%&'� ()* (+* (+*,�������
�����-�"#$%%&' (-* (-* (-*.��/���	�0��
�����1+�"#$%%&' (-* (2* (2*������	��3���
�����4%567%8 22* 2!* 29*:%;8<�=>;&?�@5%<5AB (+* (!* (!*CBD;>'BA8�@5%<5AB --* 2E* 2-*F�����
���3��	�� (-* (-* (-*.G
����3�������
�	��������H�/�������.G
����3��0�����������������	���I����0��������0�������	����J�F	0���������F�����
����	��F�����
� K������������ ��	��F	0� L��G
�����F	0� .G
�����F	0� ,���
	��F	0� K���������1EM)NM+ MOE)! !!O)2( (O2+1 1!O212 1EO2+M 991EM+NM- MOM+! )EOE-+ M!O(E9 1-OM+- 11O+-E -)1EM-NM2 MOM9+ !(O+-2 M!O929 1+O-9( 1MO(-9 9-��J�F	0����������0�P�3��.��/���	�0 K������������ ��	��F	0� L��G
�����F	0� .G
�����F	0� ,���
	��F	0� K���������1EM)NM+ M9+ )O9)+ MOM)! !O2E1 !OM)- M21EM+NM- 1M9 -OE-) MO2(- )O1-9 !O+)9 91EM-NM2 11+ -O12- MO21- )O++E !O-M! +,����� K������������ ��	��F	0� L��G
�����F	0� .G
�����F	0� ,���
	��F	0� K���������1EM)NM+ 1E2 -O11! MOE-9 +OM++ )O)91 M21EM+NM- 1)( 9O119 1OM)9 -OE2( +O!)9 M)1EM-NM2 1)) 2O(-9 1O)1E +O+)9 )O221 M)���� K������������ ��	��F	0� L��G
�����F	0� .G
�����F	0� ,���
	��F	0� K���������1EM)NM+ -+M 11O)MM 2O+)M M)O92E M!OM1! +)1EM+NM- -9- 1+O22! (O(-) M+O9E( M!O--) )11EM-NM2 2M- 1+O!1! (O2!1 M+O+(M M!O+9! -2QRR�STUVWX�WYZTU[Y�\]̂�_̀a\�b̀c�de�af]dd_�Tg�WYh�ihjZ�RkXWhlmnjiX�joXhVW�jZh�ZTUVlhl�VUpohZX�qjRqURjWhl�oi�WYh�VUpohZ�Tg�kVXWZUqWkTVjR�pkVUWhX�pkXXhlm

186



����������	
��������������������
�����
��������������������� !�"#�$�%�&� ��!��!'��#�(�) *+�#,��#*#���-.��� (�/!,**��0.%# .!#�1234�%#'(�"#��*�'��#.*"�)* ���!,�5�� 6� 789:;789< = 789<;789> = 789>;789? =12@ @�A 46�BC BDB 463�C EAE �6B3CF234 3G�3B @6E3C 3G4AF @6@BC 3G3DE @63AC�*#��% 3GA@4 A6H@C 3GEAH E6FEC 3GDAB A6@DC�*#���-.��� (�I�%.(�"#�/#'(�"#�J*�'��#.*" 4�GH3B 4�G44H 4�G3H�K�L���������������M!!* (."$�#*�-.��� (�J'��.!�/!,**��J*�.!5�FFAH��"(��!!*+��"5."$�I'��%�FFAH63��"(�FFAH64G��N�+�#�%!,**��%#'(�"#%�+�5� �O'�%#�� *$ �+%��"(�%� P.!�%�) *+�#,��-.��� (�/!,**��."�#,�. ��##�"(�"!��� ��6������B��� !�"#�$�%�&� ��!��!'��#�(�) *+�#,��-.��� (�I�%.(�"#�1234�%#'(�"#��*�'��#.*"�)* ���!,�5�� 6��������:���	
������K�L���������������789�;789: = 789:;789< = 789>;789? =12@ 4ED 3643C 4A� 3644C 4E@ 363DCF234 4A4 364HC 4AF 364�C 4D4 364FC�*#��% @F3 46B3C @FF 46BBC @FE 46B@C�*#���-.��� (�I�%.(�"#�/#'(�"#�J*�'��#.*" 4�GH3B 4�G44H 4�G3H�

187



���������	
�
���������
����������������������������������� !"�#�#$�����%��%��$�����%�&���$��%�������%��%'���������($)�����������*�+�,���-���������	
�
� ./012./0- ./0-2./03 ./032./04� 5 6! 78 8!8 !" !56 98 :;���������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ";: !"" !57�������������������������������������������������$��%��(�#$�����% ";<=!7 ";<""= ";<!=;>���?@��ABC�@���������
D�����E$���5!==*7�F���G��H��������%����I�%���H�$#����%�%��J:K�H����'%��L���%'����$��%���#���&�����%�����������($)�����������*+�,���3M>���?@��ABC�@��	
N��
��,O�	BC���P�Q����P����R�N
�O����S�?@?	BC����T

���� >����� U���� R�N
�O����S�?@?��������V�����W�'� ; ������%�<�X��%�<���%I��Y����������$�� ; Z��%��<�[��I�%&��������\��� " ! V��G�&<��]���&<�V�������%��+�,���4M+�
���>���?@��ABC�@��	
N��
��̂��
��_��� Ǹ�,������	
N��
�"=!7a!5 !="=!5a!8 !8"=!8a!9 :

188



���������		�
���
�������������������������������������������������������������� ! "!!��#�����$���%��&�������������������������'�������������(�'���������)���$�#�'���������������������������������#�����#����������������*��������+���'���$���������#���,����-��%��)�-�������������,���.������������$�.��������-$�������������#��������#�����#���������#���,�����$%��/.�����������#��������������#��,�����������#�������,����-��0����������1����������'������������������##�����#�%��&������������������������������..�#��.�����'��������,�����'����������*��������+���'���$%2�������� !3"!4��#�����$���0�����.���������5��������#�����������#���������&��������&������6������������'�����7�8������6��������$0�8������6��������$0�8������6��������$0�9�#�'�#��6��������$0�:�������6��������$0�;������5������)#����0�8'������5������)#����0�5�������:����<����)#����%=>?@A�B�C�DEAFCDGH�=I>FJKAIJ�DGH�HL�>FLHMAI�NA>IFOFP�QLRRGFOHS�TUMLL@�VOJHIOUHVOJHIOUH W X Y Z [ \ ] ^ B _ X̀ XX XY =LH>@ a;����,'� ! ! ! ! ! b cd(+�:��� ! ! b ! � ! bde����� ! ! � c f ! ! � ! � ! c � �f !cd&g) !3 !� 3 b h 3 f f c 4 c � f h f�dg��i*�j���� f � c ! � b c ! � � �b !cd8������ f � c � � c ! f � c �3 fd)�%�)���$ c ! ! � ! h fd:������� b ! ! ! ! � ! !� 3d������ cb !f !� !f !f !! !! !b 3 �f !! ! !c !k a !hd 4d 3d 4d 4d 3d 3d hd cd !cd 3d bd 4d� !b"� !3 c! f !� !! ! !f 4 h k �� k !b !! !3c� !fi� !b �h h 4 ! b k k !! 3 !b !b ! !� !fb=>?@A�_�C�DEAFCDGH�HI>FJKAIJ�HL�>FLHMAI�NA>IFOFP�QLRRGFOHS�TUMLL@�VOJHIOUH�X[lX\ X\lX] X]lX̂��������������������� !fb !3c !k =>?@A�X̀�C�DEAF�mFIL@@RAFH�=I>FJKAIJ�OFHL�nO@@>Io�pG?@OU�TUMLL@JVOJHIOUH Wq X Y Z [ \ ] ^ B _ X̀ XX XY =LH>@ a;����,'� ! ! ! c  d;��������� c ! ! � � ! ! !d(+�:��� c ! � ! 4 !d6�r���� 4 4 3 f f 3 f 3 b !! h f b 44 !!de����� ! ! � c � � f f c b c f fc 3d5������ h b f ! ! ! 3 � 4 ! c3 bd&g) !c � !k �f �b �! �3 �4 �b 3c c� �4 !� fb! 3cdg���*�j���� 4 ! ! � � � � c f c � �k fd8������ 3 f � c ! f f c c f ! ! c3 bd)�'���)���$ � ! c ! 4 !d:������� 3 ! ! ! c ! !c �d������!hc ch c3 ck cc c� f4 b ck kh bf f� �! 4!�d �3d bd bd bd fd fd 4d 4d bd hd 3d 3d cd� !bi� !3�! b! bb f4 f! �4 ck ck c� h! f3 cf �f 4�3� !fi� !b� h cf cf c! �� c �4 !3 !3 4b f! �4 �! bk�

189



�����������	
��������������������������������������������������������������� ��� ��! ���!��"������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#$%&'( )*+ ,+- ,.+�����������������	
���/����������������0�������1�������2����������������������3���� ������ ��� ��! ���!��"4'5657%&89 .:+;* .:<=< .:<);>?@@'5 <)+ A<< ),.B?CD� ,;+ ,<+ =)*������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#$%&'( +:+-< +:)A= +:,=;	
�����/���������������E$&8@�FG'5�).;;H<�I8$J?@5(�%D5�&K?'?%9�L$8�(%G@57%�'?J?7C�$G%(?@5�%D5�>?''&8@�MGK'?N�OND$$'�%D5�$II$8%G7?%9�%$�$I%?$7�578$''�?7%$�%D5�P?(%8?N%H��#D5�FG'5�$G%'?75(�%D5�I8$N5@G85(�L$8�&II'?N&%?$7�&7@�&NN5I%&7N5H�������Q���	
���������������������������������������R������ ������ ��� ��! ���!��"S8'?7C%$7 .S(D'&7@TU8557V$$@ . A +E'&?8 .W5@&8�E'GLL( .X856$7% . . .X$8%�W&'D$G7 . +M'&%%(6$G%D . +#5Y&6&D .Z&D$$ .[G%&7 + .#$%&'( ) .; *

190



���������	�
��������������
�������������������������������� ������� ������� ������ !"#$%&"'(� )*"+,%-,..$ ) )/$%&%,0$1+&(# 2 ) 3���������������������������������������������4"&(.% 5 6 27�������������������8"(90�:+.$�5));<)�49(#%=$9�"=�>&+0$#&�?,&@,#�&@$�A,%&9,B&�"+&.,#$%�&@$�C9"B$%%$%�(#0�C9"B$0+9$%�B+99$#&�%&+0$#&%�D+%&�=".."?�&"�9$E+$%&�&9(#%=$9�&"�(#"&@$9�%B@"".�?,&@,#�&@$�A,%&9,B&<���������	�7��������������������F�G����������H����I���������� ������F�G����� H����I�� ����� J����������� K����������F�G������H����I��L,'@�>B@"". 663 )M2 ); 3N MOPQ,00.$�>B@"". 36O 6MO 62 6R O5PS.$D$#&(9T�>B@"". M;5 532 6R )25 MRPU..�>B@"".% )V65R NOR R; 6); MNPP�"=�:$E+$%&% MNP 5P )MP������� ������F�G����� H����I�� ����� J����������� K����������F�G������H����I��L,'@�>B@"". 65N )OO R R5 M3PQ,00.$�>B@"". 2)6 3;N ); N3 M5PS.$D$#&(9T�>B@"". RO6 536 )2 )3R MOPU..�>B@"".% )V353 )V;6N 3; 6N2 MRPP�"=�:$E+$%&% MRP 6P 66P������ ������F�G����� H����I�� ����� J����������� K����������F�G������H����I��L,'@�>B@"". 3;N 656 )) 2R O6PQ,00.$�>B@"". 3MO 3)5 )R 2M O3PS.$D�>B@"". O;; 5OM 6; )N3 M3PU..�>B@"".% )V2OM )V)52 2M 6OR MOPP�"=�:$E+$%&% WXY 3P )NP

191



�����������	�
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!�����������������������������������������!��������������!�������!����"���!������#��������������������������������"������������������"������$%���������#�������� "��������"����������������������"������$�������"����������������������"�����������������#!� ����#��������������"����� �����������������������������"�����"������������������"�����"���$��&����"��������������������'������(��� "���������������������������������������������)**+���������������#�������������������������� ����������$������'�����(����������������������������#��#���������"�������  ����������������������������������������������� �������#��� �,-.-/$��%����� �������������������������������-.-!���������������������#�����������������������#����������������������'�����,�/(����������������������������#��� $�������"������������ �������������������"������������0�����1����"�$����%��������$�234562�	745�78�	764392���-�������������-�������:�������,;����<=**$>/���������� ������������������������"�����#��������������?�������-�������������$����������������������� �����������������������������""�������#����@��������%�������������������#���$�����-�������������-�������:�����������"����������������������������1��#���������������������������������������������������#$�&������������������A�����������1��������������"��������������������������-�������:�������:������$
192



��������	�
����������������
�������������������� 
���� ��� ��� � ! � � �"# �� � �$! �$� !%� 
& " '�" '%� '$  ($) ($" )
% )$" "
� "
 
 "$� "$' ��) *+ � ,'
 ,% �$�� - ./012345�6114758 9 - -: ; 9 < -9 = -- - ; ; 9 >? @ -9?9 A2B/82CB - = -? 9 ; -: 9 9> = - 9: 9 -:9@ .71/2CBDE/FG2CB 9 - > > -9 -< < 9> - @ - @H @ = =@ @ -9 9 9= ? -> < 9HH> I/JK481�L�MKGK5�- - - < -- 9 > > -: > ? - 9 < -- H ? @ H -@ > ? -->? I/JK481�L�MKGK5�9 - 9 9 @ - 9 @ - @ > - 9 - 9<< I/JK481�L�MKGK5�@ - -H ./012345�NCO7J0 9 - - @ - - - - > -?--.F11P�.JF�QROK381 - - - - - @ 9 - --->EKS745�T4J411UKC8 9 - @ - @ 9 -9-?T4J411UKC8 � ? - - - - < @ - H ; 9 @ - 9 9 < ? 9 ?;-<V75502CB - - @ - @ > - > 9 9 - ? @ ? 9 ; - ><9=.7R523�NCWK3KC30 @ - - - - - @ --@@M4J3KC0�XI/KY8Z @ 9 @ 9 9 - - @ 9 > ? 9 9 - @ -: @ - 9 - ? ?H>:NC17RFJW2C482FC -99= ? 9: ? ? >99<;< 9 >9 H @ 9 @=H= > - -; ;--@9;->-@ <:->-[21J7\82GK�VK/4G2FJ ?-9>9:9=?--=-::>-<;;=>:9>9?99@<-->H@@99< < >@9<-?9>>H-]:>?<>EKS745�̂FC8438 - -;<_K\K48KW�QYYKC1K1 - - > - ; 9 - -;;;T4JU�8F�EK5Y - - 9H9V75502CB�L�I285K�̀N - -=-T4J411P�a�I285K�NN - -=9T4J411P�a�I285K�̀N 9 - - - ?=@T4J411P�L�I285K�Nb - -=>cF8�YF55Fd2CB�NC18P - @ H -> @ - @ - @>=?A4257JK�8F�̂FU\50 ; -- @ 9 @ 9 < - - > 99 - ; ->@; - -99=<_7C�6d40 9 - 9 - 9 -- - -@ @@9:-<D-;�IF8451;?=9>@;@--;@:-?9-@9-@--=HH<H:<-H@?<9-=@@??@<H?-<=@-??=<HH@9];9=9:-?D-<�IF8451>>999<>H9=-@--:;H>-H:>?<<?9@?@;;--<:>:=- ? @;-:99>>H?>-]@?H9:->D-?�IF84519-9@9>?<9;9<--<?;=:=>@=99999;<H;;-<-;H=@@=?<;<<-@-;;-]><-

193



���������	��
�����������������������������
�� ������ ������� ������� ���������� ��� !"#$�%  #&$' () (* �+,+ -!.�'!/. (� 0, �1+0 �& �!/.23�45!/. �6) �7, +))* 8�9:#' �;�<:5:$�� 61 (� ��*, 8�9:#' �;�<:5:$�+ 00 0� +(( 8�9:#' �;�<:5:$�0 � * �6 =4>?�8�9:#' �) ��� !"#$�@/A&9� ++ +7 �,�1 B'�:9�C:#D4/ + +�� �4  E��94�!?E�B?A:"' �� �1 ���* 3:F&#$�G#9#  >:/' ) �+ �+�, G#9#  >:/' 0, 01 ,6�( =&$$�!/. 06 *6 *(+, 84?#""4�H��4  E�BI � �+7 �&?$!"�@/J:":/"� �� * ��00 <#9":/��K8�:I'L +7 0* ,)*1 @/ &?49J!/#'!4/ +�+ �77 (1�*� M! 9&D'!5:�=:�#5!49 ,,0 *)* �N1*,,) �4  : !4/�4I�O:J!"#'!4/ �(* 3:F&#$�P4/'#"' 0 �6( Q:D:#':J�BII:/ : ( 7 �666 G#9>�'4�3:$I ( +)� =&$$�!/.�;�8!'$:�@@ �)+ =&$$�!/.�;�8!'$:�R@ � �)0 =&$$�!/.�;�8!'$:�@S7� G#9#  >:/'�;�8!'$:�@@ + �7+ G#9#  >:/'�;�8!'$:�R@ 0 ,70 G#9#  >:/'�;�8!'$:�@S �7* T4'�I4$$4U!/.�@/ '9&"'!4/ +6 �( 0*7, -#!$&9:�'4�P4>D$� 6+ 6, �++7( Q&/�%U#� �� �1 007) V :2�4  E�M#/.:94& �C:#D4/ �84'#$ �N*(� �N0,) +N6+7

194



���������	�
��������
��������������������	������ ����� ��
 ��
 ��
 ��
 �
 !�
  "
 
"
 #"
 ""
 $�� 
%� &�' �����( )*+,-./0�1,,/203 ( (( ( 4 5 6 ( 474 8-9*3-:9 4 ;7 6 (; ; (7 45 < = (>46 )2,*-:9?@*AB-:9 4C ;4 (>5 7= 45 >5 4( (5 >(>> D*EF/3,�G�HFBF0�( (C 4 (5 (( ; (( 4 (7 ( 77; D*EF/3,�G�HFBF0�4 ; 4C ( 5 (4 7 > ( ( ( <C< D*EF/3,�G�HFBF0�6 4 4 4 ( ( 55 )*+,-./0�I:J2E+ 6 ( < > 4 (<= K2:, ( ((C L3*FE�MF/NA:, 6 ( >(( )A,,O�)EA�LPJF.3, ( > ( 6 ( (C(6 @FQ2/0�1,,/203�133O ( ((> @FQ2/0�R/E/,,SF:3 = 6 7 = (< 6 4 ; 4 ( ;7(; R/E/,,SF:3 >; >; 5C 4C 46 4C (4 45 ; ( 47=(< T200+-:9 4 6 4> > 6C < (( ( > 5;(7 UE29,�G�)A,,O 4 6 (C 6( < ( ( ;>(5 UE29,�G�V,F?V:W�I:X02 ( > 5 > 4 ( 4C(= UE29,�G�U-,3O�LX ( ( > ( 74C U-,3EO�10.A*A0 4 ( 6 ( 74( 10.A*A0�)A,,O 4 ( = ( > ( (544 10.A*A0�V,F?V:W�I:X 7 < 4 ( ( (74; DAP/..A�Y�)A,,O�LX ( < (7 ( 4 474< DAP/..A�G�V,F�AX ( > 64 > >(66 H/E.F:+�ZD*FX3[ > 4 44 6 < 6 > 44 > ( 7(6> 1E,A:?8/0,F�8-EF�10/ES ( ( ( ( >>C I:,2PAEW-:/3-A: ;C ;= >75 (= 47 (45 (4= (<= 44 54 ( ; ( (\(7C>( U-,E2N3-BF�TF*/B-AE 4(7 (;5 ;<( (;5 4<4 4<= (7> 4>< 7; =( (6 4 4\44<;5 )A,,O�AX�]FWO 7 ( 4 ( ( (4;= V,F�AX�]FW-./3-A:, ( (<( U-,3O�)EF,.O�]FW-./3-A:, ( 4 6<> @FQ2/0�̂A:3/.3 4 4 ; =7< _FNF/3FW�LXXF:,F, < > 6( > 5 >< < 6; (>C77 R/ES�3A�@F0X ( ( (4 4 4 ( (=5( T200+-:9�Y�D-30F�II ( (54 T200+-:9�G�D-30F�̀I ( (56 T200+-:9�G�D-30F�Ia 4 4=( R/E/,,O�Y�D-30F�II ( (=4 R/E/,,O�Y�D-30F�̀I ( 6 4 6 6 ( 6 ( (7=6 R/E/,,�G�D-30F�Ia 4 ; 7=> bA3�8A00Ac-:9�I:,3O 6C ; ( 4 4 (C ;C=; 8/-02EF�3A�̂ASN0+ (< (; 4; 6C 4C6 6> 4= << ( 4 6 >4>=5 V,F?)A,O�U/:9FE�MF/N ( ( 44C(<?(7�DA3/0, >44 6;6 (\;(7 6;7 <>C <C= ><6 756 (>; 4C= 7 44 ; ;\;644C(;?(<�DA3/0, 75< >67 =56 >;C ;<5 >5= ;(5 7=C 47< 64= ( (C > defgh4C(>?(;�DA3/0, <74 <;6 7C; 6(< >44 6<> >5> 7>6 6C7 664 6 (; > deiji

195



���������	��
������
���������������������
��� ������ ������� ������� �������� � !"#$%&�'""%(&) *+ ,- *-* .#/ )#0/ �*, �*1 �+*, �(" #0/�%02�3 45#0/ +6� +-1 +�++ 7 89%)"�:�;959&�<09 == =, --> 7 89%)"�:�;959&�7?4 >� ,* 161 7 89%)"�:�;959&�7 899 , @ == � !"#$%&�A0B(8! �- �* �1@ C(0" � ��6 <) 98�D9%E40" , , +�� �4""��84 #F�<FB9$)" ,1 ,- �6�, 39G(%&�'""%(&)�'))9HE)92 * � ��+ 39G(%&�I%8%""H90) -= >- >-�> I%8%""H90) �66 *61 *-@�1 J(&&!#0/ -= @- =>�- K8(/"�:��4""�4L +� >6 >+�= K8(/"�:�M"9NM0298�A0L& ,- +1 *6�@ K#")8#F()#40�4L�K8(/" @ �+ -*6 K#")8#F()#40�4L�'&$4 4& + > -*� '&$4 4&�:��4""�4L =6 �- �=** '&$4 4&�:�M"9NM0298�A0L& *+ = �-*> 74F%$$4�:��4""�4L -* 1, *-*1 74F%$$4�:�M"9�4L *+ ,, +�*@ �(F&#$�A029$90$! + -,, ;%8$90!�O7 9L)P -+ =1 -�,+ '8"40N.%&"9�.#89�'&%8H * * ++6 A0"(F482#0%)#40 �Q�6- �Q,>= �Q�-6+� K#"8(E)#59�J9 %5#48 �Q@*- *Q6,- *Q**1>= �4""�4L�R92#$%)#40" �, �6 �*>@ M"9�4L�R92#$%)#40" �1� K#")��89"$�R92" � * ,1* K#")�S40:�89"$�R92" , ,1+ 39G(%&�T40)%$) - �+ @-1 U9E9%)92�J9 %5#48 ��> �*6 �+6-- I%8H�)4�39&L @ �* �@=� J(&&!#0/�:�7#)&9�AA 1 � �=* J(&&!#0/�:�7#)&9�VA �, , �=, J(&&!#0/�:�7#)&9�AW > � *@� I%8%""H90)�:�7#)&9�AA > � �@* I%8%""H90)�:�7#)&9�VA �1 �> �-@, I%8%""H90)�:�7#)&9�AW �* �, -@+ S4)�.4&&4?#0/�A0")8($)#40 >= �*@ >6@> .%#&(89�)4�T4HE&! ,++ +�6 +*+@1 U(0�'?%! �@= M"9N�4""X�K%0/984("�D9%E40" , + *74)%&" >Q6*6 >Q1+� >Q>,*

196



���������	
���������������������������������� �!������"����# !���������#�$���� �%����� �# �����!� ��%&#�'��(�)! ��%��!!�&%�*�$ ��� ��*�������!+%���%����*�������!+%���%��"�*���#�������!+%���%������*�,�-,�������*�(�)! ��%� �.&�)*��&�!*���#�������"��(��!/��01 ����-!2���$�������%%��)(�!��$��&�!� ��%&# ���(�%%��*�� �+!�$�*�(� ���,�%%*�!�&���&�!���#�33��&�!/���� !�#���� !��)�% ��%�"������-(���#����#�����������#����������(�!��������)���!/4��!��$�������!����� �%�����# ����%)� -(����!����%�!�$��)���#�-&!��,���##��!!�#�,)�5 !�� ���# !� (% ���(����#&��!��!�"�%%��!�!�$��)�(�����-!/��6��!�� ������ #��� $)�!�&#���!�"��������� �%�������#��� �!�!�����)�����-�� ����#���#�(%���#� ���((��(� �����#&��� ���%�(�����-!��!����#�#���#���7& ��#�,)�%�"/8�9��:;�<�����=�>==��
����?
�@�	
��������
�=��A�@�=���� :;BCDBE :;BEDBF :;BFDBGH�)! ��%�4!!�&%� IJ KLJ KMJ1 ��� �� KIL KNK JOO�������P���%�K KNK KOO KIK�������P���%�J QO NR QN�������P���%�R O KR I3�-,������� KH�)! ��%�S�.&�) RI OK RK1 ����-! K KT�����5������&!�6��(��! M M OH�!!/�U���� ��H��� , ��#�T,.���! JKV!����#�H�!!�!! ���5������&!�6��(��! O O J����%! MQK MRR WOKXYZ[\]�̂]]_̀ab\Zc�da\e�fghi]�b[c�̂j̀_e_j����5 !�� ��k!�#�&��#����� ���#��*��%��+!��!��!�l,������%)m��!n"��#!o��!�"�%%��!�����!�%�!(��)!�#�! ���#����#������#�&����! #&������ �&�����,��&!�#/��H�����!��$�!�&#���!*�"��������,����!���� ���#������# �������&!���$��%����%����������#�&�!������!����#�������&��!&!(��! �����#&�� ���(�����-� !���%($&%/8�9��:B�<�����=�>==��
����?
�@����������>���@��:;BCDBE :;BEDBF :;BFDBG5�&�! QQ KKL QK4%����% KLQ RL OJp�# ��� ��! KQ KQ KN����%! JKO KMQ KRI

197



�����������	��
�����������������������������������	����������������� !" #$% #&' #() $(# $*+ &#% &,) &,% )-.� �/* 0#* 0-% 0,( 1,2 1,* 2�- 2,* *�# *�� *,& *,0 .#2 34& 50� 5-( * 67 %,%#(4896:;<=�#66><=" ? (%�.>6 ?@ A ? A B B C ? @ ? @ ?A ? .%�.>6 DE? �1�F; ?G:H8":!H @ @ D A D .%�.>6 ?B4>68:!H�I�.8J�:!H A K ? .%�.>6 ?L%8M <"6�N�( � =�? A ? .%�.>6 D? �1�F; ?%8M <"6�N�( � =�@ ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? .%�.>6 C4 M6J!<=�-!O>M9 @ ? .%�.>6 A4J667�4MJ8:P:" Q�,PO ? ? ? ? ? ? .%�.>6 K. F><=�0<M<66R !" ? .%�.>6 ?0<M<66R !"� @ ? .%�.>6 A$>==9:!H ? @ @ ? .%�.>6 K4>P=:;�-!Q ; !;9� ? .%�.>6 ?-!6>PJMQ:!<":J! @ ? B ? ? ? ? C @ ? .%�.>6 @A? �1�F; ?):6M>S":� �$ 8<�:JM @ D A ? ? ? ? A ? D @ ? ? .%�.>6 @B* S <" Q�,TT !6 6 @ ? ? .%�.>6 D0<MR�. =TN#;"U4J" !":<= ? .%�.>6 ?0<M<66R !"�N�%:"= �V- ? ? .%�.>6 @G<:=>M �"J�&JRS=9 @ ? B .%�.>6 C? �1�F; ?*>!�#W<9 ? ? ? D .%�.>6 E%J"<=�* 6J=>":J!6@ ??E ?A@ C A ?? B X ?KD C E ?A? B A @ DL D B ?EX%J"<=�(%�.>6S !6:J!6 ? ?%J"<=�.%�.>6S !6:J!6@ ??E ?A@ C A ?L B X ?KD C E ?A? B A @ AK D B ?ED%J"<=��R MH !;9��F;=>6:J!6 D D%J"<=��FS>=6:J!6

198



���������	��
���������������
���������������������������������	��� !"# $%& '%& (%& )%& *%& +%& *,& &,& -,& ,,& .%' /$0 +!12 34#5607819:56�$115;6# < �=>;6 <? @ ? < A ? B3�&;1 ?@< ? &3�&;1 C? �%�=: ?D9E7#9"E ? ? �=>;6 <A C ? B3�&;1 @AF ? ?F G ?C <A H @ &3�&;1 ??I0;179"E�5"J�&74 9"E ? ? B3�&;1 << K? ? K ? ?A ?C &3�&;1 ??F37L!5#1�M�B! !6�? H ? C ? &3�&;1 ??37L!5#1�M�B! !6�< ? �=>;6 ?< ? ? ? B3�&;1 AC ?K H I A C ? &3�&;1 GC? �%�=: ?37L!5#1�M�B! !6�C ? ? ? ? �=>;6 G? B3�&;1 ?? �%�=: ?0!L14"56�N"O;L8 ? G ? �=>;6 H? C B3�&;1 GC ? &3�&;1 GD9L!5LP1 ? �=>;6 ?.#7!L�Q5"E!L4;1�-!5>4"1 ? �=>;6 ?? B3�&;1 ?? &3�&;1 ?04112�0L47R9#!J�.RO!:# ? B3�&;1 ?G < ? &3�&;1 K&!=;56�$115;6#S$##!P>#!J ? �%�=: ?&!=;56�,5L511P!"# ? ? �=>;6 <? B3�&;1 ?< G < K ? ? C &3�&;1 <F,5L511P!"# ? B3�&;1 ?? C G G C C G ? &3�&;1 <C';6689"E G B3�&;1 G< ?F G < ? &3�&;1 ?@QL;E1�M�0411!1194" ? G ? ? �=>;6 K< ? H <K A ? B3�&;1 G<QL;E1M�T"J!L2�N"U62 ? ? C ? ? �=>;6 K? C K ? ? B3�&;1 ?CQL;E1�M�Q91#L9R;#94" ? G ? �=>;6 H? &3�&;1 ?$6:4746�M�Q91#L9R;#94" < ? C ? �=>;6 K$6:4746�M�0411!1194" ? ? �=>;6 << ? < G B3�&;1 @$6:4746�M�T1!ST"J!L�N"U6;!":! ? ? �=>;6 <A ? ? ? B3�&;1 I34R5::4�M�0411!1194" ? ? C ? < &3�&;1 I34R5::4�M�T1!�4U ? <K ? &3�&;1 <@B5L:!"8S37!U# ? ? B3�&;1 <? K C ?K ? &3�&;1 <@

199



����� ��� 	�� 
�� ��� ��� �� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��	 ��� ��� ��������������������������� � � � !"� #� $���"� �� ����"� �%��"&��'������� � � � � !"� () # ( $���"� �#* * ��+ ) ) �, ## - + ����"� �+./���"!�����	�0����� � � !"� �# ( ( $���"� ,# ( �1* # #. - #( (, ( �) ����"� ##(- # � ��� 2 )������������3���'�2������ # � � $���"� -� � � ����"� (4����3���'�2������ � ����"� �/������3�����2����'���'�� � # $���"� (�� "���
����2� # # ( ����"� )�!����'��33����� # � ( � !"� .# * $���"� )( �� ) # #1 ����"� -(�����������3 � � �� # � ��� 2 �.	"��5��6�7�������%% � ����"� �	"��5��6�7�������8% � ����"� ������������7�������8% � � � ����"� (���������9��6�%����"2���� � ����"� �����"������
��!�5 � , � � ( ����"� �-4���������/��6���"�����!��� � � � !"� #����������"������*#(-*,�- +, *)�(1#.) -# *. ) � �:�.,������� !"������ � * ( # �( �, + . ) .-������$���"�!�������� (, - + * #* ** �( ) �*)����������"�!��������(#�-�- ) ,# -� ,, �+� �+ -( � +#1����������6��� 2�"������ � � * �� - ( � #)���������'����5������6�����

200



���������	��
������
���������
������������������������� �!��"#�$%���&�'()����*�+��%�,�!+���
����� -./01/2 -./21/3 -./31/456789:;<= >?@=A@B<CD�EF@::;G=HF=BI<=GJKFCH�L8:7F=:;<= > > >LM<CBJKFCH�L8:7F=:;<= >NO >PQ >RP5HFCGF=SD�56S98:;<= >T Q PK<B@9: >PR >ON >RUV�W
��-2�X�V���
�Y�ZZ
����	��
����������	��
����
��������
����� -./01/2 -./21/3 -./31/456789:;<= Q Q >>?@=A@B<CD�EF@::;G=HF=B >I<=GJKFCH�L8:7F=:;<= OO PN ORLM<CBJKFCH�L8:7F=:;<= PNU QRP OR[5HFCGF=SD�56S98:;<= >T [ >UK<B@9: O>T RN\ QQOV�W
��-3�X�V���
�]�̂	���	��
����������	��
����
��������
����� -./01/2 -./21/3 -./31/456789:;<= PU OR ON?@=A@B<CD�EF@::;G=HF=BI<=GJKFCH�L8:7F=:;<= >TP >NO >TTLM<CBJKFCH�L8:7F=:;<= P>T QTU NP\5HFCGF=SD�56S98:;<= T >T [K<B@9: OQN [>> OTNV�W
��-4�X�V���
������������������	��
������
���������
��������
����� -./01/2 -./21/3 -./31/456789:;<= OQ QN QP?@=A@B<CD�EF@::;G=HF=B >I<=GJKFCH�L8:7F=:;<= >QT >RU >O[LM<CBJKFCH�L8:7F=:;<= U[P >_P\U >_TUP5HFCGF=SD�56S98:;<= \T \P N>K<B@9: >_\\T >_QUQ >_NPR

201



���������	
�	�������������	������������������������������������������������������� �������������������������!!�!��������������������������"��������������#�������"�����������$��������%����������������	��	�����������
���������������	"�	����������	%��������������������	�����������������"������������	����������������&��&��������������������������&"�&����������	������������������������������������������������'���������"���������(������!����)�������������������!�#����$���	�����$�����#������������!�����������������������������"���'���#���������������*+,-.�/0�1�2.3.+4�566.78.89����� 	�� "�� 	��	� 	"�	� ����� �"��� &��&� &"�&� ����� �":;##���� 	
 	;�)�'��� �& � 	 	;������ �� �(���)�<�)� &" & 	(=��� �� & � �>����� 	" �>��=� &
 	&>���������� &� � � 	 	?����=� &� � 	 	<@��A������ 	� " & 	 	 �B���=�C�)�� &
 "B�������)� 	� & 	 	 	B�����!�B��!���� �� &A�������� "� 	A����� �� 	D������� "% 	� & 	D���� �� " � " 	 	E��!��� �" 	 	E����� &% 	E��)����� 	� &E����� 
 � 	 �9����@� �" 
 & � � 	 	 	F������� �� 	 	 ������ &" � ���������� �� 
 	;�������A9 	&� 	� � 	 �(������A9 	&� 	� � &G������A9 		� � " & 	A������>������A9 �	� "& 	& 	� � & �A������D����A9 	&� �
 	� � � 	E�������A9 �& 	& 
 � & � � 	A������D����B9 	%� 	� "A������9�����B9 �%
 && 
 	 	A������ ����B9 	�	 	 	A������B��@���B9 "� 	� �$������	�� ��" %� �
 	% 	� 	� � 	 �H����I��������� ���� ���	 ����& ����� ������ �����
 ������ �����	 ������� ������%

202



���������	��
�������
�����

�����
���
��������������
���
�� �� � � � � � �  ! " � �# �� �� �
���$%&'()*+, - . / 00 01 0. 00 1.23,435+67�893))*:,;9,5 <=+,:>?96;�@')&9,)*+, 0 0< 0/ -A A1 -A AB 0/ 0/C@D+65>?96;�@')&9,)*+, A 0E A< /A -- 0< -C 0CB 0C< A00 0<A 00- B/ /A 0<E.$;96:9,F7�$%F(')*+, 0 A 0 . B C - - A -0A<01GA<0B�?+53() A 0E A0 /. -/ 0< -C A<. A<1 A/1 0.A 01. 00C BC 0H-.BA<0/GA<01�?+53() - 01 -C 0E 0- A- .0 AAE A/< A/- A00 AAE 0BE 0EA 0H1E1A<0.GA<0/�?+53() 0 0. 0C 00 -E A1 -- 0.A A<A 0BA 0/A 0/A 0/B EE 0HAA<�I���I���J�����
����
K��I?D9�3(596,35*L9�&6+:63;�M,+N,�3)�O;P'4);3,�N3)�*;&(9;9,594�4'6*,:�5D9�)&6*,:�+Q�A<0<�Q+6�)5'49,5)�ND+�D34�P99,�(+,:>596;�)')&9,494�Q+6�59,�437)�+6�(+,:96�3,4�Q+6�5D+)9�)5'49,5)�ND+�N969�9%&9((94�Q6+;�)FD++(R�������#�	��I���I���S����T�����J��
��I������
���
�� �#��U�� �#��U� �#� U�!=+,:�?96;�@')&9,)*+,�@5'49,5)�ND+�3559,494�O;P'4);3, 0<- 00- 0<B$%&9((94�@5'49,5)�ND+�3559,494�O;P'4);3, /- /C .B@&9F*3(�V*6F';)53,F9�@5'49,5)�ND+�3559,494�O;P'4);3, 0< 0. 0-W��
�
��X������������K�S�Y����Z����[���
�?D9�')9�+Q�P6935D�59)5*,:�49L*F9)�*)�69:'(3594�P7�\+(*F7�/.E<�3,4�69(3594�8'(9�/.E<R0R��?D9�P6935D�59)5*,:�49L*F9�*)�')94�5+�;93)'69�3(F+D+(�(9L9()�*,�)5'49,5)�35�5D9�D*:D�)FD++(�3,4�;*44(9�)FD++(�(9L9()R��8'(9�/.E<R0�&6+L*49)�5D35�5D9�]+364�+Q�$4'F35*+,�P9�:*L9,�3,,'3(�69&+65)�+Q�5D9�'5*(*̂35*+,�+Q�5D9�P6935D�59)5*,:�49L*F9)R��?D9)9�,';P96)�4+�,+5�*,F('49�5D9�')9�+Q�5D9�_(F+>̀ 3,4)R���������	�X��������[���Z����[���
��������

��II��� Wa� Xa� ba� �a� ca� �a� ac a� ad ee� ?+53(_4;*,*)59694 . 1 . / - AA\+)*5*L9) 0 . . A 00S���������
�����������

��f����#��U�� �#��U� �#� U�!_4;*,*)59694 -B -/ AA\+)*5*L9) A- 00 00S����T�����e�����K����������	�S����T�����e�����K�e�����K� �#��U�� �#��U� �#� U�!89g'9)594 . E 0AV+,4'F594 - B 1h&D9(4 - 1 /

203



��������	���
����������
������������
���������������������
����
����
����������	���
������
��������������
��� ������
� !������������ 	���������� ��
�� "�#�����
���$%%&'()&* +,-./ 0,1/- 0,23. 4,52. +46/17$*89:; 24. 4.5 244 +,/20 056/07<%==>�?)*='>&'* +2 0. /5 -/ 56/+7@;AB&' 2 0+ 0- /- 56047@;'>);B -+ /. .5 0.- 56427?&':;8=%=(C +35 23 44 11. 063/7?);D&8&* +1 /0 15 3. 56107EA>=B')A& -. -/ 001 +4+ 060/7F;*8'=�GA8&*8)A;% /44 02+ +53 -.2 /6+27H&;>;B9&IJ)(';)A& 055 0/+ +4+ 131 +6017H&;')A( 4+ 10 /. 0/2 56457JK*BK%;' /. 01 /- 24 56/-7L'89=M&>)B 0/1 050 32 /// 06117N)*)=A -3 12 OP 0-+ 56-17L89&' -2+ 122 .00 0,-20 -6-07Q'&(A;ABC - 56557Q*CB9=%=()B;% 2+- 4.1 0,0-- +,4.2 006.57�
����
�	���
��������R9&�:;S=')8C�=T�*B'&&A)A(*�M&'T=':&>�)A�89&�JQU�H&;%89�V==:*�;'&�)A�W)A>&'(;'>&A,�F';>&*�0,�+,�/,�1,�-,�;A>�05�;*�X&%%�;*�A&X�*8K>&A8*�>K&�8=�*8;8&�'&YK)'&:&A8*6�?)TT&'&AB&*�)A�AK:D&'*�)A�*B'&&A)A(*�;'&�M'):;')%C�>K&�8=�89&�M;M&'X='Z�89;8�)*�*KD:)88&>�DC�M;'&A8*I(K;'>);A*6�������[������������	���
������������#�������� �	���
������#����������������� �������������
��� �����
�����������$K>)=:&8&'�R&*8*� 0/,-50 11-N)*)=A�UB'&&A)A( 00,+23 330L';%�UB'&&A)A( 00,-2+ 040?);D&8)B�UB'&&A)A(*\ 04,150 5����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+501I+50.�R=8;%*���� .+,055 0,+/3����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+50.+5I04�R=8;%* .+,+-2 0,/2/����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+504I+50-�R=8;%*����� ./,0-/ 0,.33\?);D&8)B�UB'&&A)A(*�;'&�A=8�;�*8;8&�'&YK)'&>�9&;%89�B;'&�*B'&&A)A(*6��������]�����
���	���
������
������
��
��
��� _̂̀[à] _̂̀]àb _̂̀bàcUB9==%�dK'*&�I@d$I@J$ 051,0-. 000,/14 052,33-H&;%89�Q;';IL89&' 042,5-3 044,41+ 022,-.5R=8;%* +-+,+.1 +--,322 +3-,-1-

204



���������	
������������������������������������������������������������� !�!"#�$#%&''&'%�()�!"#�*+,*-,.�/0"((1�2#34�(54�/0"((1�0(5'/#1(4/�$#%3'�6(057#'!&'%�!"#&4�&'6&8&6531�0('!30!/�9&!"�/!56#'!/:�� )!#4�!"#�8&/&!;�!"#�0(5'/#1(4/�6(057#'!�!"#�8&/&!�&'�(54�/!56#'!�&')(473!&('�/2/!#7�5/&'%�3�834&#!2�()�03!#%(4&#/�(4�<0('!30!�!2=#/>:����?���@A�����������������������������������������������������*+,BC,D DE;F+G*+,DC,E D,;*,F*+,EC,H DE;*EE��?���@I�����������������������JK����K�L����������JK��
������� MNOP
OL MNOL
OA MNOA
OIQ#4/('31�3'6�R(0&31 ,D;FD. ,D;FFB ,H;.H, 036#7&0�Q13''&'% F;*E+ F;B.G ,+;G.,S4(5=�Q34!&0&=3!&(' G;+*H B;,GE B;DG* 036#7&0�Q4(%4#// D;FD+ D;H+B D;G+HT!"#4 .;*FF *;DB, .;+.+��?���@U�����������������V��������������������������V�����������*+,BC,D ,+;GEG*+,DC,E ,*;BFG*+,EC,H ,.;*FF��?���@W������������V������������JK����K�L����������JK��
������� MNOP
OL MNOL
OA MNOA
OI !!#'63'0# B;EDG B;.BD B;D,+Q#4/('31�3'6�R(0&31 ,;,E* ,;D,F ,;EFFX37&12�Y#13!#6�Z('0#4'/ ,;B+D ,;H*G ,;**D 036#7&0�Q4(%4#// EHF DF* E*B 036#7&0�Q13''&'% BFG BEB EBG

205



����������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������  ���������������������������������������� ���������!���"��
���#�!!���$������
�����!����� !������� ���%������� !������������������������������������ ������������ ����������������������!���"��&'��()�*�+,	&���-.�����������	�/��0-1���/��0-1����20� 3)4(546 3)46547 3)475489������:���� ; < ;9�����:���� = > <?���� @ >�������A1B��C�1B�-1�.-��DB,E�1B��FB*/��G$�����!������������!� �����!�����������������������%������������������������������������������H����������I�����������������%������"��J�!!������� ��������!�����!������9������9��%�����������������!!�������������!���� �������!�������������������������� �������!!��������!"��&'��(4�*�D,�K�E��A1B��C�1B�-1�L�C�' 3)4(546 3)46547 3)47548M!�������� =N N@ N@#�!��9����! OO P@ <@>Q����9����! NN => P>
���!� <OO <R> >>=�S�'E�F&,����1E�+�T'�KB��&'��(3�*��S�'E�F&,����1E�+�T'�KB�/�0-�B�L�C�' 3)4(53)46 3)46547 3)47548M!�������� RP PO PU#�!��9����! =O >P =@Q����9����! <U <O <O
���!� <;= <>N <;P

206



�����������	
����
�����
���
������������������������������������� �!"#�$%����!!&������"���'() �*+,-�' �.�'!����(�'��'/# "'��0('��1!' "'(�&�#$/23�&�!�!&�1$!4& .�5��6 ��� $���$ � "�!/$�2 #�'!�$ 7 $��'/# "'��'!�'� ($����!!&8��*+,-�6 �.�(7�'� %��/�1 �'���#$/23�&�!�!&9$ &�' #�1$!4& .56 �.���!&& �'��##('(!"�&�("7!$.�'(!"�!"�$ 7 $$ #��'/# "'��'!�# ' $.(" �(7�'� $ �(����$ ��!"�'!�4 &( ) ����'/# "'�.(2�'���) ����!"� $"�$ &�'("2�'!�#$/23�&�!�!&�# 1 "# "�%�(��/ �5��:'� $�$ 7 $$�&���!. �7$!.�1�$ "'��!$�7$!.�'� ��!'&(" �0�(����& $'��*+,-�& �# $��'!�1!' "'(�&�#$/2�!$��&�!�!&�1$!4& .�5��,7�('�(��# ' $.(" #�'��'�'� $ �(����1!' "'(�&�1$!4& .;�1�$ "'�32/�$#(�"���$ ��!"'��' #��"#� "�!/$�2 #�'!���) �'� ($���(&#�'�< ���#$/23�&�!�!&� )�&/�'(!";�2 '�'$ �'. "';�!$�'�< �!'� $��' 1��'!��!&) �'� �1$!4& .5��=���>?�@�����������A�B��������
C��
�����
���
�D��C� A�B������ �
�����
���
� E��������
��A�B������F G ����� F G ����� F G �����H I J K J L J L M MML N M O I M N J L JMM MN H PI MP O MH P P QMP MO MP PH MJ K PM P J I��������������������������������������������6!'�&� QQ PI NH JJ MN QH O N MJ��=���>>�@���	C�
��A�B������R��
�����
���
R����
��A�B������S����������T��������
���U�
 V>@VW VW@VX VX@VYZ 7 $$�&� MPP MLP NH,"' $) "'(!"� HP KH QH[!��&�\2 "�%�Z 7 $$�&� JI PJ MJ]̂__̀abĉ_d�èf̀gghid�jkllmnopklq�pq�r�sktulorvw�xvkyvrz�rl{�vm|mvvrtq�rvm�}rqm{�kl�xrvmlo�nklqmlo~��po��o�m�yvk�ply�lmm{�|kv�mrvtw�plomvsmlopkl�xvkyvrzq��jkllmnopklq��rq�nvmrom{�ok�{momno�rl{�nkl|vklo�zmlort��mrto��xvk}tmzq�pl�n�pt{vml�rl{�ok�qmm��rxxvkxvprom�qktuopklq�o�ro��mtx�mrn��n�pt{�vmrn���pq�kv��mv�|uttmqo�xkomloprt~�jkllmnopklq��kv�q��po��qn�kkt�rl{�zm{pnrt�xvk|mqqpklrtq�ok�p{mlop|w�n�pt{vml�pl�lmm{�k|�qmvspnmq~��h�ì����������̀g�̂f�]̂__̀abĉ_�èf̀gghid�����gh�̀��$�# � M P J Q I N O K ������/.4 $�!7�Z 7 $�&����PLMN9MO� H N MQ MJ MM MJ JP QI JP MOI�/.4 $�!7�Z 7 $�&����PLMI9MN �\ �\ �\ �\ �\ �\ �\ �\ �\ MIM

207



��������	
	��������	���������������	������	������� 	!"#"$�%&'�&�("")	��*+,$"	,!	-&,$*&,$"%	.��	�!"	/'	0,++&�%	!*�%"$*!	&$%	1&�"$*!2		3*�%"$*!	&$%	1&�"$*!	-&'	4&++	*�	�"1��*	�$	&$'	!�/5"4*2		3*&�*,$6	,$	*�"	�789�8�	!4���+	'"&�	0,++&�%	:�/+,4	34���+!	4�++&/��&*"%	(,*�	*�"	;�'!<�($	=&*,�$&+	>�*+,$"	.��	!�,4,%"	,$*"�#"$*,�$	&$%	4&++	!"�#,4"!2��?��	@A	B	CD?�E	�F	��F�	�GH���	�������	�������I�G JKL@MLN JKLNMLA JKLAMLOP��6! Q R ��+4���+S&$6!S�$! 8 9 �;�++',$6T>&�&!!-"$* R 8� U<��"&*! � �V,6�*! 83�,4,%" 8W 87 �8�/�!" 8 �X*�"�	3&."*'	Y�$4"�$! U W W<�*&+! �� �� ��

208



���������	�
����������������������������������������� ���!��" ���#�$� �������� �������%%���� ��&���&�����#���$��$��&���#'��(�)���%�$����%%���� ������*!��"���$����#��$���+*�����������,�!��$*�&$��&��$������%%���� ������*!��"����"�,��#�� �-��&$"������%%. �+%%���'������ ����� �$��$���� ���� �������%%���� ������� $����&�$���$���������/'�������� �������%%���� �������0������$��!��)����*�&$��"���$"���!��$ �/����������� �� �**���1����&�$���$���������/'234���56�7����������	�
����������������8����9�23:�9 8;� <;� =;� >;� ?;� �;� ;?@� ;�@� ;A@� @@�B��� $�(���&" C D D E D�������F���$������%%���-�$�$��& � D-��  ���*�G& $���$��&H�I��%�J��� K'CL CL D DM DE EN DD E'L DO DP�$���&$�-�&%���&�� �Q-������G&R DD DS LD MO PC KP DCL DSP EE LS����&$�-�&%���&�� �Q-������G&R CN DS SK CK SM LL KN SE DK�����$�B  �  *�&$ C D D C C DK��$���,� $���$�,��#�,�#�������� ��T��PS

209



���������	
��
��������������������������������������� ����������!�"�#�$�������%������������%��&����������%����������#���"�%���'�(�������������)��������$$�#*��+�����#�+��%����',�-��./�0��122��3��4����������	
��
���5��61��� 7������4�89:; 7������4�89:< 7������4�89:=>���� ?@A ?BC ?DC��1�� BDA BAB BCCE�� ?@F ?GC ?@D(����� H�DHC H�?CF H�DGI5��61����JK��66����������	
�>���� IDI IGD ID?��1�� H?F HDH H@@E�� IDC IGC I@B(����� DCF DG? @HD>12-���4���16L���J��
�	LM����������	
��>���� II? HAH IIG��1�� HGI H?A HDHE�� IB@ IHG IIH(����� DFB ?DG DF?>12-���4����������	
��J��
�6>���� GCD BID BCB��1�� I?G IDC ICDE�� GDB BB@ BF?(����� H�FFG H�HBH H�H@?J

��NO�P��1��4�Q	����6����������	
��J��
�6>���� RC�GG@�@HI RC�HBA�F@? RHF�@@A�AFG��1�� RB�FDF�@A? RD�FCB�@C? RD�C?G�HGBE�� R?�ACF�IA? RB�GBA�?GI R?�ADA�CB?(����� RHC�G@C�CFI RHC�?CG�GAI RIG�DFI�CCIJ����	�����������	
�JK��66>���� II IG GF��1�� II ID IHE�� BF BG BH(����� CB AI AI

210


	Board Packet            September 18, 2017
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	Board Minutes for      September 5, 2017
	Financials
	Check Register
	Activity Fund
	E.4. Committee Meeting Minutes  Sept. 11, 2017
	G.1. Approval of Policy 3718 - Program-Beverages
	H.1. Approval of Rule 3718.1 - Program-Beverages
	H.2. Reaffirm Policy 4115 - Access to Personnel Files
	H.3. Reaffirm Rule 4115.1 - Access to Personnel Files
	H.4. Reaffirm Policy 4215 - Summer School and Adult Education Teachers
	H.5. Approval of Annual Cooperative Agreement with UNO and MPS 2017-2018
	H.6. Approval of Learning Community Early Childhood/Buffett Institute Agreement
	H.7. Approval of 2018-2019 MPS Poverty Plan
	H.8. Approval of 2018-2019 MPS Limited English Proficiency Plan
	I.1. ACT Report - Graduating Class 2017
	I.2. Student Services Year End Report 2016-2017
	2017-9-18 Administrative Memorandum.pdf
	MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS




